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THE CITY OF SEATTLE, WASHINGTON
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WATER SYSTEM REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, 2012

DATED: DATE OF INITIAL DELIVERY DUE: SEPTEMBER 1, AS SHOWN ON PAGE i

The City of Seattle Water System Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2012 (the “Bonds”), will be issued as fully registered bonds under a
book-entry only system, registered in the name of Cede & Co. as bond owner and nominee for the Depository Trust Company
(HDTC”).

DTC will act as initial securities depository for the Bonds. Individual purchases of the Bonds will be made in book-entry form, in
the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof within a single maturity. Purchasers will not receive certificates
representing their interest in the Bonds. Interest on the Bonds is payable semiannually on each March 1 and September 1,
beginning September 1, 2012. The principal of and interest on the Bonds are payable by the City’s Bond Registrar, currently the
fiscal agent of the State of Washington (currently The Bank of New York Mellon in New York, New York), to DTC, which is
obligated in turn to remit such payments to its participants for subsequent disbursement to beneficial owners of the Bonds, as
described in “Description of the Bonds—Book-Entry Transfer System” and in Appendix D.

The Bonds are being issued to refund, depending on market conditions, certain outstanding obligations of the Water System and to
pay the administrative costs of the refunding and the costs of issuing the Bonds.

The Bonds are subject to redemption prior to maturity as described herein. See “Description of the Bonds—Redemption of
Bonds.”

The Bonds are special limited obligations of the City of Seattle (the “City”) payable solely out of the Bond Account. The Net
Revenue of the Water System and all money and investments held in the Bond Account, the Rate Stabilization Account and the
Construction Account (with certain limited exceptions) are pledged to the payment of all Parity Bonds, including the Bonds. This
pledge constitutes a lien and charge upon the Net Revenue prior and superior to any other liens and charges. See “Security for the
Bonds.”

The Bonds do not constitute general obligations of the City, the State of Washington (the “State’”), or any political
subdivision of the State, or a charge upon any general fund or upon any money or other property of the City, the State, or any
political subdivision of the State not specifically pledged thereto by the legislation authorizing the issuance of the Bonds.
Neither the full faith and credit nor the taxing power of the City, nor any revenues of the City derived from sources other than
the Water System, are pledged to the payment of the Bonds.

The Bonds are offered for delivery to the initial purchaser, when, as, and if issued, subject to the approving legal opinion of Foster
Pepper PLLC, Seattle, Washington, Bond Counsel. The form of Bond Counsel’s opinion is attached hereto as Appendix B. It is
expected that the Bonds will be ready for delivery at DTC’s facilities in New York, New York, or to the Bond Registrar on behalf
of DTC by Fast Automated Securities Transfer, on or about May 30, 2012.

This cover page contains certain information for quick reference only. It is not a summary of this issue. Investors must read the entire official
statement to obtain information essential in making an informed investment decision.



No dealer, broker, salesperson, or other person has been authorized by the City to give any information or to make any
representations with respect to the Bonds other than those contained in this Official Statement, and, if given or made, such
other information or representations must not be relied upon. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer to sell or
the solicitation of an offer to buy the Bonds, nor shall there be any sale of the Bonds by any person in any jurisdiction in
which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation, or sale.

The information set forth herein has been furnished by the City, DTC, and certain other sources that the City believes to be
reliable. The information and expressions of opinion contained herein are subject to change without notice. Any statements
made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion or estimates, whether or not so expressly stated, are set forth as
such and not as representations of fact or representations that the estimates will be realized. Summaries of documents do not
purport to be complete statements of their provisions, and all such summaries are qualified by references to the entire contents
of the summarized documents.

Neither the City’s independent auditors nor the State Auditor nor any other independent accountants have compiled,
examined, or performed any procedures with respect to this Official Statement or any financial information contained
herein, nor have they expressed any opinion or any other form of assurance on such information, and they assume no
responsibility for, and disclaim any association with, this Official Statement and such information.

The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice, and neither the delivery of this
Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, create any implication that there has been
no change in the affairs of the City since the date hereof.

The presentation of certain information, including tables of receipts from revenues, is intended to show recent historical
information and is not intended to indicate future or continuing trends in the financial position or other affairs of the City.
No representation is made that past experience, as it may be shown by such financial and other information, will continue to
be repeated in the future.

This Official Statement contains forecasts, projections, and estimates that are based upon expectations and
assumptions that existed at the time such forecasts, projections, and estimates were prepared. In light of the important
Sactors that may materially affect forecasted conditions, the inclusion in this Official Statement of such forecasts,
projections, and estimates should not be regarded as a representation by the City that such forecasts, projections, and
estimates will occur. Such forecasts, profections, and estimates are not intended as representations of fact or as
guarantees of results. If and when included in this Official Statement, the words “plan,” “expect,” “forecast,”
“estimate,” “budget,” “project,” ‘“intends,” “anticipates,” and similar words are intended to identify forward-
looking statements, and any such statements inherently are subject to a variety of risks and uncertainties that could
cause actual results to differ materially from those profected. Such risks and uncertainties include, among others,
general economic conditions, changes in political conditions, weather conditions, social and economic conditions,
regulatory initiatives and compliance with governmental regulations, litigation, and various other events, conditions,
and circumstances, many of which are beyond the control of the City. These forward-looking statements speak only as
of the date they were prepared.

This Official Statement is not to be construed as a contract with the purchasers of the Bonds.

The Bonds have not been registered under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, in reliance upon a specific exemption
contained in such act, nor have they been registered under the securities laws of any state.



MATURITY SCHEDULE

THE CITY OF SEATTLE, WASHINGTON
$238,770,000
WATER SYSTEM REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, 2012

Due Interest

September 1 Amounts Rates Yields CUSIP Numbers
2012 $ 2,445,000 2.00% 0.20% 812728RQ8
2013 1,260,000 3.00 0.30 812728RR6
2014 8,500,000 4.00 0.40 812728RS4
2015 10,825,000 5.00 0.55 812728RT2
2016 11,335,000 5.00 0.69 812728RU9
2017 11,845,000 5.00 0.87 812728RV7
2018 12,400,000 5.00 1.07 812728RW5
2019 12,990,000 5.00 1.26 812728RX3
2020 13,695,000 5.00 1.49 812728RY1
2021 15,550,000 5.00 1.72 812728RZ8
2022 16,435,000 5.00 1.88 812728SA2
2023 17,010,000 5.00 2.06? 812728SB0
2024 8,580,000 5.00 2.199 812728SC8
2025 9,010,000 5.00 2.319 812728SD6
2026 9,465,000 5.00 2.44@ 812728SE4
2027 9,935,000 4.00 2.729 812728SF1
2028 10,340,000 4.00 2.85% 8127285G9
2029 10,750,000 3.00 3.10 812728SH7
2030 11,080,000 5.00 2.64% 812728SJ3
2031 11,635,000 5.00 2.709 812728SK0
2032 9,270,000 4.00 3.162 812728SL8
2033 9,645,000 4.00 3.23@ 812728SM6
2034 4,770,000 4.00 3.309 812728SN4

(1) The CUSIP data herein are provided by CUSIP Global Services, managed on behalf of the American Bankers Association by
Standard & Poor’s. CUSIP numbers are not intended to create a database and do not serve in any way as a substitute for CUSIP
service. CUSIP numbers have been assigned by an independent company not affiliated with the City and are provided solely for
convenience and reference. The CUSIP numbers for a specific maturity are subject to change after the issuance of the Bonds.
Neither the City nor the purchaser of the Bonds take responsibility for the accuracy of the CUSIP numbers.

(2) Calculated to the September 1, 2022, par call date.
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT

THE CITY OF SEATTLE, WASHINGTON
$238,770,000
WATER SYSTEM REFUNDING REVENUE BONDS, 2012

The purpose of this Official Statement, which includes the cover, inside cover, and appendices, is to set forth
certain information concerning The City of Seattle, Washington (the “City”), a municipal corporation duly
organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Washington (the “State”), Seattle Public
Utilities (“SPU”), and the City’s water system, referred to in the legislation authorizing the issuance of the
Bonds as the “Municipal Water System” (the “Water System”), in connection with the offering of
$238,770,000 aggregate principal amount of its Water System Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2012 (the “Bonds”),
dated the date of their initial delivery.

The Bonds are to be issued by the City in accordance with Ordinance 121939, passed by the City Council on
September 26, 2005, as amended (the “Bond Ordinance”), and Resolution 31382, adopted by the City Council
on May 15, 2012 (the “Bond Resolution,” and together with the Bond Ordinance, the “Bond Legislation”).
The Bonds also are issued pursuant to chapters 35.92 and 39.53 of the Revised Code of Washington (“RCW")
and the Seattle City Charter.

Appendix A to this Official Statement is a copy of Ordinance 121939. Appendix B is the form of the legal
opinion of Foster Pepper PLLC of Seattle, Washington (“Bond Counsel”). Appendix C is the audited 2011
financial statements of the Water Fund. Appendix D provides demographic and economic information for the
City. Appendix E is a description provided on its website by The Depository Trust Company, New York,
New York (“DTC”), of DTC procedures with respect to book-entry bonds. Capitalized terms that are not
defined herein have the meanings set forth in the Bond Legislation.

DESCRIPTION OF THE BONDS

Registration and Denomination

The Bonds are issuable only as fully registered bonds under a book-entry transfer system, registered in the
name of Cede & Co. as bondowner and nominee for DTC. DTC will act as initial securities depository for the
Bonds. Purchasers will not receive certificates representing their interest in the Bonds purchased. The Bonds
will be issued in denominations of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof.

The Bonds will be dated the date of their initial delivery. The Bonds will mature on September 1 in the years
and amounts set forth on page i of this Official Statement. Interest on the Bonds is payable semiannually on
each March 1 and September 1, beginning September 1, 2012, at the rates set forth on page i of this Official
Statement. Interest on the Bonds will be computed on the basis of a 360-day year consisting of twelve 30-day
months.

The principal of and interest on the Bonds are payable by the City’s Bond Registrar, currently the fiscal agent
of the State of Washington (currently The Bank of New York Mellon in New York, New York) to DTC,
which is obligated in turn to remit such payments to its participants for subsequent disbursement to beneficial
owners of the Bonds, as described herein under “Book-Entry Transfer System” and in Appendix E.

Redemption of the Bonds

Optional Redemption. The Bonds maturing on and before September 1, 2022, are not subject to redemption
prior to maturity. The City reserves the right and option to redeem Bonds maturing on and after September 1,
2023, prior to their stated maturity dates at any time on and after September 1, 2022, as a whole or in part at a
price of par plus accrued interest to the date fixed for redemption.



Selection of Bonds for Redemption. If fewer than all of the Bonds subject to redemption are to be optionally
redeemed prior to maturity, the City will select the maturity or maturities to be redeemed. If fewer than all of
a single maturity of Bonds are to be redeemed prior to maturity, then:

@) if such Bonds are in book-entry form at the time of such redemption, DTC is required to select the
specific Bonds in accordance with the Letter of Representations, and

(i1) if such Bonds are not in book-entry form at the time of such redemption, the Bond Registrar is
required to select the specific Bonds for redemption by lot or in such manner as the Bond Registrar in
its discretion may deem to be fair and appropriate.

The portion of any Bond of a denomination more than $5,000 to be redeemed will be in the principal amount
of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof, to be selected, as the case may be, by DTC in accordance with the
Letter of Representations or by the Bond Registrar in such manner as the Bond Registrar in its discretion may
deem to be fair and appropriate.

Notice of Redemption. Notice of any intended redemption of Bonds will be given not less than 20 nor more than
60 days prior to the date fixed for redemption by first-class mail, postage prepaid, to the registered owner of
any Bond to be redeemed at the address appearing on the Bond Register at the time the Bond Registrar
prepares the notice. The notice requirements will be deemed to have been fulfilled when notice is mailed,
whether or not it actually is received by the owner of any Bond. As long as the Bonds are held in book-entry
form, notices will be given in accordance with procedures established by DTC. See “Description of the
Bonds—Book-Entry Transfer System” and Appendix E.

In the case of an optional redemption, the notice may state that the City retains the right to rescind the
redemption notice and the related optional redemption of the Bonds by giving a notice of rescission to the
affected registered owners at any time on or prior to the scheduled optional redemption date. Any notice of
optional redemption that is so rescinded shall be of no effect, and the Bonds for which the notice of optional
redemption has been rescinded shall remain outstanding.

Effect of Redemption. Interest on Bonds called for redemption will cease to accrue on the date fixed for
redemption unless the notice of redemption has been duly rescinded or the Bonds called are not redeemed
when presented pursuant to the call.

Purchase

The City reserves the right to purchase any of the Bonds at any time at any price acceptable to the City plus
accrued interest to the date of purchase.

Book-Entry Transfer System

Book-Entry Bonds. DTC will act as initial securities depository for the Bonds. The ownership of one fully
registered Bond for each maturity of the Bonds, as set forth on page i of this Official Statement, each in the
aggregate principal amount of such maturity, will be registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee for
DTC. See Appendix E for additional information. As indicated therein, certain information in Appendix E has been
obtained from DTC’s website. The City makes no representation as to the accuracy or completeness of the information in
Appendix E provided by DTC. Purchasers of the Bonds should confirm this information with DTC or its participants.

Termination of Book-Entry Transfer System. If DTC resigns as the securities depository and the City is unable to
retain a qualified successor to DTC or if the City determines that a continuation of the book-entry transfer
system is not in the best interest of the City, the City will deliver at no cost to the beneficial owners of the
Bonds or their nominees Bonds in registered certificate form, in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral
multiple thereof within a maturity of the Bonds. Thereafter, the principal of the Bonds will be payable upon
the presentation and surrender thereof at the principal office of the Bond Registrar. Interest on the Bonds will
be paid by checks or drafts mailed by the Bond Registrar on the interest payment date to the registered owners
at the address appearing upon the Bond Register on the 15th day of the month preceding the interest payment
date or, at the request of a registered owner of $1,000,000 or more in aggregate principal amount of Bonds, by



wire transfer to an account in the United States designated in writing by such registered owner prior to the
Record Date. The Bonds then will be transferable as provided in the Bond Legislation.

Refunding or Defeasance of Bonds

The City may issue refunding bonds or use money available from any other lawful source to redeem and retire,
release, refund, or defease the Bonds or any portion thereof (the “Defeased Bonds”). If sufficient money
and/or Government Obligations, defined below (taking into account known earned income from the
investment thereof) are set aside in a special fund pledged irrevocably to the redemption, retirement or
defeasance of the Defeased Bonds (the “Trust Account”), then all right and interest of the owners of the
Defeased Bonds in the pledges and covenants of the Bond Legislation and in the Net Revenues and the funds
and accounts pledged to the payment of the Defeased Bonds, other than the right to receive the funds so set
aside and pledged, will cease and become void. Such owners thereafter will have the right to receive payment
of the principal of and interest or redemption price on the Defeased Bonds from the Trust Account.

The term “Government Obligations” has the meaning given in chapter 39.53.010 RCW, as amended,
currently: (i) direct obligations of, or obligations the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally
guaranteed by, the United States of America, and bank certificates of deposit secured by such obligations;
(i1) bonds, debentures, notes, participation certificates, or other obligations issued by the Banks for
Cooperatives, the Federal Intermediate Credit Bank, the Federal Home Loan Bank system, the Export-Import
Bank of the United States, Federal Land Banks or the Federal National Mortgage Association; (iii) public
housing bonds and project notes fully secured by contracts with the United States; and (iv) obligations of
financial institutions insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation or the Federal Savings and Loan
Insurance Corporation, to the extent insured or to the extent guaranteed as permitted under any other
provision of State law.

After the establishing and full funding of such a Trust Account, the City then may apply any money in any
other fund or account established for the payment or redemption of the Defeased Bonds to any lawful
purposes as it may determine.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Purpose

The Bonds are being issued to refund certain outstanding obligations of the Water System, described under
“Refunding Plan,” and to pay the administrative costs of the refunding and the costs of issuing the Bonds.

Sources and Uses of Funds

The proceeds of the Bonds will be applied as follows:

SOURCES OF FUNDS

Par Amount of Bonds $ 238,770,000
Net Original Issue Premium 45,515,451
Total Sources of Funds $ 284,285,451
USES OF FUNDS

Refunding Escrow Deposit $ 282,897,364
Costs of Issuance* 1,388,087
Total Uses of Funds $ 284,285,451

* Includes legal fees, financial advisory and rating agency fees, printing costs, underwriter’s discount, and other costs of issuing the Bonds
and refunding the Refunded Bonds.



Refunding Plan

The City intends to refund the City’s outstanding callable Water System Revenue Bonds, 2001, Water System
and Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2003, and Water System Revenue Bonds, 2004 (the “Refunded Bonds”), set
forth below. The refunding is being undertaken to achieve debt service savings.

REFUNDED BONDS
Maturity Interest Par CUSIP
Bond Date Rate Amount Call Date Call Price Number
Water System Revenue Bonds, 2001
Serials 11/01/2012 5.000% $ 1,365,000 06/29/2012 100% 812728HB2
11/01/2013 5.000 1,425,000 06/29/2012 100 812728HCO
11/01/2014 5.000 1,490,000 06/29/2012 100 812728HDS
11/01/2015 5.000 1,555,000 06/29/2012 100 812728HE6
11/01/2016 5.000 1,630,000 06/29/2012 100 812728HF3
11/01/2017 5.000 1,705,000 06/29/2012 100 812728HG1
11/01/2018 5.000 1,790,000 06/29/2012 100 812728HH9
11/01/2019 5.000 1,875,000 06/29/2012 100 812728HJ5
11/01/2020 5.000 1,970,000 06/29/2012 100 812728HK2
11/01/2021 5.000 2,070,000 06/29/2012 100 812728HLO
Term 11/01/2026 5.000 12,025,000 06/29/2012 100 812728HR7
Term 11/01/2031 5.000 15,420,000 06/29/2012 100 812728HW6
Subtotal $ 44,320,000
Maturity Interest Par CUSIP
Bond Date Rate Amount Call Date Call Price Number

Water System and Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2003
Serials 09/01/2014* 4.000% $ 7,705,000 09/01/2013 100% 812728JL8

09/01/2015* 5.000 8,005,000 09/01/2013 100 812728IM6
09/01/2016* 5.000 8,385,000 09/01/2013 100 812728JN4
09/01/2017* 5.000 8,750,000 09/01/2013 100 812728JP9
09/01/2018* 5.000 9,150,000 09/01/2013 100 812728JQ7
09/01/2019* 5.000 9,585,000 09/01/2013 100 812728JR5
09/01/2020* 5.000 10,120,000 09/01/2013 100 812728JS3
09/01/2021 5.000 11,790,000 09/01/2013 100 812728JT1
09/01/2022 5.000 12,480,000 09/01/2013 100 812728JU8
09/01/2023 5.000 12,870,000 09/01/2013 100 812728JV6
09/01/2024 4.625 4,225,000 09/01/2013 100 812728JW4
09/01/2025 4.625 4,420,000 09/01/2013 100 812728JX2
Term 09/01/2028 4.700 14,535,000 09/01/2013 100 812728JY0
Term 09/01/2033 5.000 29,320,000 09/01/2013 100 812728127
Subtotal $ 151,340,000

* Partial maturities.



REFUNDED BONDS (CONTINUED)

Maturity Interest Par CUSIP
Bond Date Rate Amount Call Date Call Price Number
Water System Revenue Bonds, 2004

Serials 09/01/2015 5.000% $ 2,060,000 09/01/2014 100% 812728KS1
09/01/2016 5.000 2,165,000 09/01/2014 100 812728KT9
09/01/2017 5.000 2,270,000 09/01/2014 100 812728KU6
09/01/2018 5.000 2,385,000 09/01/2014 100 812728KV4
09/01/2019 5.000 2,505,000 09/01/2014 100 812728KW2
09/01/2020 5.000 2,630,000 09/01/2014 100 812728KX0
09/01/2021 5.000 2,760,000 09/01/2014 100 812728KY8
09/01/2022 5.000 2,900,000 09/01/2014 100 812728KZ5
09/01/2023 5.000 3,045,000 09/01/2014 100 812728LA9
09/01/2024 5.000 3,195,000 09/01/2014 100 812728LB7
09/01/2025 5.000 3,355,000 09/01/2014 100 812728LC5
09/01/2026 5.000 3,525,000 09/01/2014 100 812728LD3
09/01/2027 5.000 3,700,000 09/01/2014 100 812728LE1
09/01/2028 5.000 3,885,000 09/01/2014 100 812728LF8
09/01/2029 5.000 4,080,000 09/01/2014 100 812728LG6

Term 09/01/2034 5.000 23,665,000 09/01/2014 100 812728LH4

Subtotal $ 68,125,000

Total $ 263,785,000

The City will enter into a Refunding Trust Agreement with U.S. Bank, National Association, as Refunding
Trustee, upon the delivery of the Bonds, to provide for the refunding of the Refunded Bonds. The Refunding
Trust Agreement creates an irrevocable trust fund to be held by the Refunding Trustee and to be applied solely
to the payment of the Refunded Bonds. A portion of the proceeds of the Bonds will be deposited with the
Refunding Trustee and will be invested in Government Obligations that will mature and bear interest at rates
sufficient to pay the principal of and accrued interest coming due on the redemption date of the Refunded
Bonds.

The Government Obligations and earnings thereon will be held solely for the benefit of the registered owners
of the Refunded Bonds.

The mathematical accuracy of (i) the computations of the adequacy of the maturing principal amounts of and
interest on the Government Obligations to be held by the Refunding Trustee to pay principal of and interest on
the Refunded Bonds as described above, and (ii) the computations supporting the conclusion of Bond Counsel
that the Bonds are not “arbitrage bonds” under Section 148 of the Code, will be verified by Causey Demgen &
Moore Inc., independent certified public accountants.

SECURITY FOR THE BONDS

Pledge of Net Revenue

The Bonds are special limited obligations of the City payable solely from the Bond Account. The Net
Revenue of the Water System and all money and investments held in the Bond Account, the Rate Stabilization
Account and the Construction Account (with certain limited exceptions) are pledged to the payment of all
Parity Bonds, including the Bonds. This pledge constitutes a lien and charge upon the Net Revenue prior and
superior to any other charges. See Appendix A—Bond Ordinance—Section 16. The City has reserved the
right to combine the Water System, including its funds and accounts, with other City utility systems, funds
and accounts. See “Combined Utility Systems” below.



THE BONDS DO NOT CONSTITUTE GENERAL OBLIGATIONS OF THE CITY, THE STATE OF WASHINGTON (THE
“STATE”), OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE, OR A CHARGE UPON ANY GENERAL FUND OR UPON
ANY MONEY OR OTHER PROPERTY OF THE CITY, THE STATE, OR ANY POLITICAL SUBDIVISION OF THE STATE
NOT SPECIFICALLY PLEDGED THERETO BY THE BOND LEGISLATION. NEITHER THE FULL FAITH AND CREDIT
NOR THE TAXING POWER OF THE CITY, NOR ANY REVENUES OF THE CITY DERIVED FROM SOURCES OTHER
THAN THE WATER SYSTEM, ARE PLEDGED TO THE PAYMENT OF THE BONDS.

The Water Revenue Bond Account (the “Bond Account”) has been created in the Water Fund for the sole
purpose of paying the principal of and interest on all Parity Bonds, including the Bonds. The City has agreed
to pay into the Bond Account on or prior to the respective dates on which principal and interest are payable,
all utility local improvement district (“ULID”) assessments on their collection (except for ULID assessments
deposited in a construction account) and certain amounts from the Net Revenue of the Water System
sufficient to pay such principal and interest when due. See Appendix A—Bond Ordinance—Section 13.

Reserve Subaccount

The Reserve Subaccount has been created in the Bond Account to secure the payment of the principal of and
interest on the Parity Bonds. So long as any Parity Bonds remain outstanding, the City is required to maintain
the Reserve Subaccount at the lesser of (i) Maximum Annual Debt Service or (ii) 125% of Average Annual
Debt Service on the Parity Bonds (the “Reserve Requirement”). Under the Bond Legislation, the City must
fund any increase in the Reserve Requirement due to the issuance of the Bonds from Parity Bond proceeds,
Net Revenue in no more than five annual installments, or Reserve Insurance. See Appendix A—Bond
Ordinance—Section 13.

Upon the issuance of the Bonds, the Reserve Requirement is expected to be funded as shown in the following
table. Under the Bond Legislation, the following surety policies qualify as Reserve Insurance in order to
satisfy the Reserve Requirement, as each issuer was assigned a credit rating in the two highest rating categories
at the time of issuance. See Appendix A—Bond Ordinance.

Surety Expiration Current Ratings
Bond Issue Surety Bonds Provider Date Moody's S&P
1993 $ 19,069,616 AMBAC 12/01/2023 Withdrawn
1997 3,783,203 FGIC 08/01/2026 Withdrawn
1998 5,397,000 AMBAC 10/01/2027 Withdrawn
1999) 4,431,090 FGIC 03/01/2029 Withdrawn
1999 9,440,403 FGIC 07/01/2029 Withdrawn
2001 1,279,360 FGIC 11/01/2031 Withdrawn
2003 4,256,356 MBIA @ 09/01/2033 B3 B
2004 3,474,371 MBIA @ 09/01/2034 B3 B
2006 3,110,214 FSA 02/01/2037 Aa3 AA-

Total Surety Bond Amounts $ 54,241,613

Cash Deposit from

2008 Bond Proceeds $ 8,936,113
Cash Deposit from
2010 Bond Proceeds 7,748,123

Total Cash and Surety Bonds § 70,925,849

Reserve Fund Requirement $ 65,392,996

(1) Surety will be outstanding until the earlier of the termination date or the day on which no Parity Bonds are outstanding.

(2) Reinsured by National Public Finance Guarantee Corp., a wholly-owned subsidiary of MBIA, Inc., currently rated Baa2 by Moody’s
and BBB by S&P.



Outstanding Bonds

Outstanding Parity Bonds. The outstanding 2001 Bonds, 2003 Bonds, 2004 Bonds, 2005 Bonds, 2006 Bonds,
2008 Bonds, 2010A Bonds, and 2010B Bonds issued by the City and secured by revenues of the Water System
on a parity with the Bonds collectively are referred to as the “Outstanding Parity Bonds.” The Outstanding
Parity Bonds, the Bonds and any Future Parity Bonds collectively are referred to as the “Parity Bonds.” The
following table provides a summary of the Outstanding Parity Bonds.

OUTSTANDING PARITY BONDS

Original Par Outstanding Principal

Bond Description Amount on 05/01/2012
Water System Revenue Bonds, 2001* $ 52,525,000 $ 44,320,000
Water System Revenue and Refunding Bonds, 2003* 271,320,000 185,725,000
Water System Revenue Bonds, 2004* 84,750,000 73,735,000
Water System Revenue and Refunding Bonds, 2005 138,040,000 123,000,000
Water System Revenue and Refunding Bonds, 2006 189,970,000 173,015,000
Water System Revenue and Refunding Bonds, 2008 205,080,000 185,205,000
Water System Revenue Bonds, 2010A 109,080,000 109,080,000
Water System Revenue and Refunding Bonds, 2010B 81,760,000 73,500,000
Total $ 1,132,525,000 $ 967,580,000

* All of the Water System Revenue Bonds, 2001, and a portion of the Water System Revenue and Refunding Bonds, 2003, and
Water System Revenue Bonds, 2004, will be refunded with a portion of the proceeds of the Bonds. See “Use of Proceeds—
Refunding Plan.”

Other Outstanding Obligations

Since 1993, the City has entered into six agreements with the Washington State Department of Community,
Trade and Economic Development under its Public Works Assistance Account Loan Program for the
construction of certain capital improvements, as described below. These loans are secured by a lien on Net
Revenue of the Water System junior to that of the Parity Bonds.

PUBLIC WORKS ASSISTANCE ACCOUNT LOANS
(AS OF DECEMBER 31, 2011)

Year of Agreement Amount Outstanding  Interest Rate

1993 $ 236,433 1.00%
2005 3,189,474 1.50%
2007 3,142,222 1.50%
2008 2,551,579 1.50%
2010 5,920,997 1.00%
2010 2,583,474 1.50%
Total $ 17,624,179



Future Obligations

Future Parity Bonds. Future Parity Bonds may be issued upon satisfaction of certain conditions set forth in the
Bond Legislation. Among other conditions, the City must have on file at the time of the issuance of the Future
Parity Bonds:

@) a certificate of the Director of Finance showing that during any 12 consecutive months out of the
preceding 24 months Adjusted Net Revenue was at least equal to 1.25 times the Adjusted Annual
Debt Service (the “Coverage Requirement”) for all Parity Bonds plus the Future Parity Bonds to be
issued, or

(ii) a certificate of the Director of Finance and the Director of SPU stating that, in their opinion, the
Adjusted Net Revenue (taking into account certain permitted revenue adjustments) will be at least
equal to the Coverage Requirement for the five years next following the earlier of (a) the end of the
period during which interest on the Future Parity Bonds to be issued is capitalized or, if no interest is
capitalized, the year in which the Future Parity Bonds are issued, or (b)the date on which
substantially all the facilities financed with those Future Parity Bonds are expected to commence
operations.

Future Subordinate Lien Bonds. In the Bond Legislation, the City has reserved the right to issue revenue bonds
or other obligations having a lien on Gross Revenue subordinate to the lien thereon of the Parity Bonds.

Parity Payment Agreements. The City may enter into Parity Payment Agreements secured by a pledge of and
lien on Net Revenue on a parity with the Parity Bonds, subject to the satisfaction of the requirements for the
issuance of Future Parity Bonds. See Appendix A—Bond Ordinance—Section 19.

Contract Resource Obligations. The City may enter into Contract Resource Obligations to acquire water supply,
transmission or other commodity or service from facilities to be constructed. The City may determine that all
payments under those Contract Resource Obligations (including payments prior to the time such supply or
service is being provided or during suspension or after termination of supply or service) will be an Operation
and Maintenance Expense, upon compliance with certain requirements of the Bond Legislation. See
Appendix A—Bond Ordinance—Section 22.

Rate Covenant

The City has covenanted to establish, maintain, and collect rates and charges for water service that will
produce Adjusted Net Revenue of the Water System in each fiscal year at least equal to 1.25 times the
Adjusted Annual Debt Service on all Parity Bonds for that year (the “Coverage Requirement”). See Appendix
A—Bond Ordinance—Section 1 for definitions of “Adjusted Net Revenue” and “Adjusted Annual Debt
Service,” and Appendix A—Bond Ordinance—Section 17(b).

Rate Stabilization Account. The City may deposit Gross Revenue and any other money received by the Water
System into the Rate Stabilization Account and may withdraw money from that account for inclusion in
Adjusted Gross Revenue for any fiscal year of the Water System. Such deposits and withdrawals may be
made up to and including the date that is 90 days after the end of the fiscal year for which the deposit or
withdrawal will be included as Adjusted Gross Revenue. No deposit of Gross Revenue may be made into the
Rate Stabilization Account to the extent that such deposit would prevent the City from meeting the Coverage
Requirement in the relevant fiscal year. As of December 31, 2011, the balance in the Rate Stabilization
Account was $9.0 million. See “Water System—Financial Policies” and Appendix A—Bond Ordinance—
Section 15.

Other Covenants

In the Bond Legislation, the City has entered into other covenants, including those with respect to
maintenance of the Water System, sale of the Water System, and preservation of tax exemption for interest on
the Bonds. See Appendix A—Bond Ordinance—Section 17.



No Acceleration of the Bonds

The Bonds are not subject to acceleration upon the occurrence of a default. The City, therefore, would be
liable only for principal and interest payments as they become due. In the event of multiple defaults in
payment of principal of or interest on the Parity Bonds, the registered owners would be required to bring a
separate action for each such payment not made. This could give rise to a difference in interests between
registered owners of earlier and later maturing Parity Bonds.

Separate Utility Systems

The City may create, acquire, construct, finance, own, and operate one or more additional systems for water
supply, transmission or other commodity or service. The revenue of the separate system will not be included
in Gross Revenue, and may be pledged to the payment of revenue obligations issued for the purposes of the
separate system. Neither the Gross Revenue nor the Net Revenue of the Water System will be pledged to the
payment of any obligations of the separate system, except as a Contract Resource Obligation or on a basis
subordinate to the lien of the Parity Bonds on that Net Revenue. See Appendix A—Bond Ordinance—
Section 21.

Combined Utility Systems

The City has reserved the right to combine the Water System with other City utility systems, including their
funds and accounts. See the definition of “Municipal Water System” in Appendix A—Bond Ordinance—
Section 1. Also see “Seattle Public Utilities—Administrative Structure” for a description of existing City
utilities that have reserved the right to combine with other City utilities.

Debt Service Requirements

The following table shows the debt service scheduled to be paid from the Net Revenue of the Water System.



DEBT SERVICE ON THE OUTSTANDING PARITY BONDS®

TheBonds

Year 2001 2003 2004 2005 2006 2008 2010A @ 2010B Principal Interest Total

2012 $ 1,108,000 $ 14,125,163 $ 3,763,625 $ 10,894,400 $ 13,120,625 $ 14,481,050 $ 6,100,956 $ 8,051,900 $ 2,445,000 $ 2,805,922 $ 76,896,641
2013 10,427,200 2,061,500 10,883,400 13,108,000 14,477,800 6,100,956 8,052,500 1,260,000 11,051,450 77,422,806
2014 2,731,600 2,058,000 10,865,900 13,103,625 14,481,550 6,100,956 8,058,600 8,500,000 11,013,650 76,913,881
2015 2,749,000 10,856,650 13,096,750 14,481,550 6,100,956 8,067,000 10,825,000 10,673,650 76,850,556
2016 2,772,250 10,844,650 13,086,875 14,482,175 6,100,956 8,071,600 11,335,000 10,132,400 76,825,906
2017 2,794,250 10,839,400 13,083,250 14,477,800 6,100,956 8,077,200 11,845,000 9,565,650 76,783,506
2018 2,814,750 10,829,900 13,080,000 14,482,550 6,100,956 8,088,400 12,400,000 8,973,400 76,769,956
2019 2,868,500 10,820,650 13,076,375 14,480,550 9,460,956 4,769,600 12,990,000 8,353,400 76,820,031
2020 2,908,500 10,815,900 13,086,250 14,481,050 9,409,044 4,777,850 13,695,000 7,703,900 76,877,494
2021 10,819,650 13,083,750 14,483,050 9,357,229 4,789,350 15,550,000 7,019,150 75,102,179
2022 10,815,650 13,083,250 14,480,675 9,304,914 4,800,950 16,435,000 6,241,650 75,162,089
2023 10,813,400 13,078,875 14,478,050 9,243,120 4,810,450 17,010,000 5,419,900 74,853,795
2024 10,816,900 13,084,500 14,483,925 9,184,699 4,825,450 8,580,000 4,569,400 65,544,874
2025 10,804,900 13,084,000 14,477,300 9,109,559 4,840,200 9,010,000 4,140,400 65,466,359
2026 10,797,150 13,081,500 11,449,800 9,033,152 4,849,200 9,465,000 3,689,900 62,365,702
2027 7,357,400 13,080,875 11,453,925 8,966,001 4,867,200 9,935,000 3,216,650 58,877,051
2028 - - - 7,350,244 13,071,125 11,454,925 8,885,868 - 10,340,000 2,819,250 53,921,412
2029 - - 7,344,675 13,068,588 11,452,050 8,804,708 - 10,750,000 2,405,650 53,825,671
2030 - 6,920,900 11,448,719 8,716,804 - 11,080,000 2,083,150 40,249,573
2031 - - - 6,918,538 11,452,613 8,626,705 11,635,000 1,529,150 40,162,005
2032 - - - 6,920,713 11,452,094 8,520,033 9,270,000 947,400 37,110,239
2033 - - - 6,916,975 7,078,844 8,412,265 9,645,000 576,600 32,629,684
2034 - - - 6,916,875 7,077,850 8,297,817 - 4,770,000 190,800 27,253,342
2035 - - - - 6,919,738 7,076,500 8,178,560 - - - 22,174,797
2036 - 6,920,000 7,078,875 8,056,639 - - - 22,055,514
2037 - 6,917,213 7,079,056 7,926,465 - - - 21,922,734
2038 - - - - - 7,081,125 7,792,745 - - 14,873,870
2039 - - - - - - 7,649,888 - - - 7,649,888
2040 - - - - - - 7,507,601 - - - 7,507,601
Total $ 1,108,000 $ 44,191,213 $ 7,883,125 $ 184,570,819 $290,909,163 $325,365,450 $233,151,461 $99,797,450 $238,770,000 $125,122,472 $1,550,869,152

(1) Totals may not add due to rounding. Excludes the Refunded Bonds.

(2) Does not reflect the 35% interest rate subsidy associated with the 2010A Bonds
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SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES

Administrative Structure

Seattle Public Utilities (“SPU”), a single department of the City, administers four distinct business lines:
drainage, wastewater, and solid waste for Seattle residents and businesses, and drinking water for 1.3 million
regional customers. FEach business line has a manager responsible for ensuring that its assets perform
adequately to meet defined customer service levels.

Within SPU, there are three separate funds: the Water Fund, the Drainage and Wastewater Fund, and the
Solid Waste Fund. The City has reserved the right to combine the Water System, including the Water Fund,
with other City utility systems, funds, and accounts.

Management

SPU consists of the Director’s Office and six Executive Branches: Human Resources and Service Equity,
Field Operations and Maintenance, Finance and Administration, Customer Service, Project Delivery, and
Utility Systems Management. The Director administers SPU in accordance with policies established by the
Mayor of the City (the “Mayor”) and the City Council. Brief biographies of the members of SPU’s executive
management team follow.

Ray Hoffinan, Director. Mr. Hoffman was appointed Acting Director of SPU in 2009 and was named Director
in 2010. In this role, he is responsible for SPU’s annual budget and oversight of its rates and utility funds, as
well as conservation of the City’s watersheds and compliance with federal and state water quality and
environmental laws. Previously, he was Director of Corporate Policy and Performance, with responsibilities
for external government relations, legislative affairs, and risk management. In addition, he formerly served as
an advisor to the Mayor on utilities and environmental issues, was the lead for regional affairs and
negotiations for SPU, worked in recycling planning and program development for solid waste, and served as
Executive Director for Washington Citizens for Recycling. With more than 20 years of increasingly
responsible roles in public policy and management, Mr. Hoffman is known for negotiating multi-party
agreements on complex policy issues. Mr. Hoffman has a doctorate from the University of Washington
School of Business, as well as a bachelor’s degree and master's degree in accounting from the University of
Illinois.

Martin Baker, Deputy Director for Corporate Strategies and Communications. Mr. Baker was appointed to the
interim position in 2009 and named the permanent deputy director in 2010. He currently oversees all
functions related to corporate policy and performance, asset management and economic services, and
corporate communications, as well as climate change and sustainability and community relations
development. Previously, he served as a Strategic Advisor in the Director’s Office for 13 years. Prior to
joining SPU, Mr. Baker served as Deputy Director, Habitat Program, with the Washington Department of
Fish and Wildlife, Public Affairs Director of the Central Puget Sound Regional Transit Authority), and
Executive Director of the Washington Environmental Council. He graduated from the University of
Washington with both a master’s degree and a bachelor’s degree in history.

Kimberly Collier, Deputy Director for Human Resources and Service Equity. Ms. Collier was appointed to this
position in 2009. The Human Resources and Service Equity branch is comprised of the Human Resources
Division, HR Operations and Management, and the Environmental Justice and Service Equity Division.
Prior to joining SPU, Ms. Collier was a human resources executive for Cox Communications in Arizona,
where she also had responsibilities for diversity leadership including serving as the co-founder of the
company’s Diversity Council and held a number of roles in the community supporting diversity. A graduate
of the College of New Jersey, Ms. Collier earned a bachelor’s degree in management.

Rick Scott, Deputy Director for Field Operations and Maintenance. Mr. Scott joined SPU in 2010 as director of
SPU’s Distribution and Transmission Division and was appointed to Deputy Director of Field Operations and
Maintenance in November 2011. As Deputy Director, he is responsible for developing operational strategies
and directing and managing the production, delivery, and maintenance for water, wastewater, storm water,
and solid waste services. Prior to joining SPU, he served as the water treatment superintendent for the City of
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Glendale, Arizona, where he worked for 24 years. He started out as a plant mechanic and held roles with
increasing responsibilities throughout the utility, serving as the water treatment superintendent for eight years.
Mr. Scott has an associate degree in civil engineering from Glendale Community College and additional credit
hours in utility operations and management or work-related courses.

Melina Thung, Deputy Director for Finance and Administration. Ms. Thung was appointed to this position in 2005
and oversees the branch’s activities, including finance, information technology, fleet and facilities
management, and risk management. Prior to that, she was Finance Director for SPU and also formerly served
as budget analyst, budget manager, and environmental planner. She holds a bachelor’s degree in international
relations from Georgetown University, a master’s degree in public administration from the University of
Washington, and a master’s degree in finance from Seattle University.

Susan Sanchez, Deputy Director for Customer Service. Ms. Sanchez was appointed to Acting Deputy Director in
2009 and in 2010 was named Deputy Director for the branch, which serves as the main liaison between SPU
ratepayers and the department’s operations. Prior to this, she was the Director for the Customer Programs and
Contract Management Division, which manages the city’s graffiti abatement and education, waste prevention,
resource conservation, and community stewardship programs. Ms. Sanchez has over 20 years of experience in
the environmental, transportation, and land use fields at the local, regional, and federal levels. Before joining
SPU, she was Director of the Planning, Policy, and Major Projects Division for the Seattle Department of
Transportation. She holds a bachelor’s degree in urban planning from the University of Washington.

Nancy Ahern, Deputy Director for Utility Systems Management. Ms. Ahern, who was appointed to this position in
2005, leads staff who provide policy direction, regulatory compliance, and capital programming for SPU’s
drinking water, drainage, wastewater, and solid waste lines of business. She joined SPU in 2001 as Deputy
Director for Resource Management and previously spent more than 15 years in state and local government
services, focusing on utilities and natural resource management. During that time, she served as manager of
the Water and Land Resources Division for King County, and prior to that, she worked in the City of Bellevue
Utilities Department for six years and for the Puget Sound Water Quality Authority for three years. She also
worked in Washington D.C. for the World Wildlife Fund/Conservation Foundation and in environmental
consulting. Ms. Ahern holds a bachelor’s degree in biology and environmental studies from Principia College
and a Ph.D. degree in natural resource management from the University of Michigan. She also has a master’s
degree from Seattle University in organizational systems and renewal.

Linda De Boldt, Deputy Director for Project Delivery. Ms. De Boldt was appointed to this position in 2007. In this
role, she serves as the chief engineer for the utility and leads engineering services for the capital improvement
programs for all of the lines of business. The branch also provides other key technical services such as review
of private development proposals and management of SPU’s dam safety and landslide mitigation programs.
She is a licensed professional engineer with 27 years of experience in public works engineering and
management for the City. She has worked for the City as a design engineer, engineering manager, and
division director in the fields of transportation, drainage, wastewater, water supply and treatment, and
environmental restoration. She graduated from the University of Washington with a bachelor’s degree in civil
engineering.

Employment Retirement System and Employee Relations

Currently SPU has approximately 1,400 regular employees, almost all of whom are members of the Seattle
City Employee Retirement System (“SCERS”). SCERS requires SPU, like all City departments, to make
contributions equal to an actuarially determined percentage of covered payrolls. See “The City of Seattle—
Pension System.” Approximately 70 percent of SPU employees are represented under one of ten labor
agreements with unions. SPU is currently negotiating with two unions on labor agreements that expired
December 31, 2011. Currently there is no expected date by which an agreement will be reached, and the
unions continue to operate under the expired contracts. Eight additional labor agreements are effective
through December 31, 2013. SPU believes that labor relations are satisfactory. See “The City of Seattle—
Labor Relations.”
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WATER SYSTEM

General

The Water System was established in 1890. It currently includes two watershed sources of supply east of the
City and two small wellfields south of the City, as well as approximately 1,800 miles of pipeline and
400 million gallons (“MG”) of storage capacity in transmission and distribution reservoirs. The Water
System’s service area includes retail service to Seattle and portions of the Cities of Shoreline, Burien and Lake
Forest Park, as well as a portion of unincorporated King County (the “direct service area”), and wholesale
service to areas served by 21 suburban water districts and municipalities plus the Cascade Water Alliance
(“Cascade”) (together, the “Wholesale Customers”) in King County and south Snohomish County. The
population of the Water System’s direct service area is approximately 670,000, and the population indirectly
served through the Wholesale Customers is approximately 634,000. The map on the following page shows the
direct service area and the locations of the Wholesale Customers. A summary of operating statistics for the
Water System follows.
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TABLE 1
WATER SYSTEM OPERATING STATISTICS

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Population Served

Retail 642,385 649,286 658,951 664,458 669,654

Wholesale " 609,613 616,592 621,606 628,536 634,193
Total Population Served 1,251,998 1,265,878 1,280,557 1,292,994 1,303,847
Water Sales Revenues ($000) P®

Retail $ 102,334 $ 106,689 $ 130,272 $ 136,443 $ 137,382

Wholesale 41,558 42,884 48,454 45,073 44,050
Total Water Sales Revenues $ 143,892 $ 149,573 $ 178,726 $ 181,515 $ 181,432
Billed Water Consumption (MG) @

Retail 21,311 20,599 20,956 19,868 19,305

Wholesale 22,741 22,255 23,554 20,437 20,922
Total Billed Water Use 44,052 42,853 44,510 40,305 40,227
Operating Costs ($ per MG) Y $ 3,143 $ 3,423 $ 3,679 $ 4,075 $ 3,842
Gallons Used per Day per Capita 96 93 95 85 85
Retail Meters in Use 185,272 187,032 188,102 188,332 188,754
Number of New Retail Meters 1,696 1,760 1,070 230 422
Total Water Diversions (MGD) 125.9 125.1 129.5 118.4 117.9

Non-Revenue 52 8 7.5 8 7.7

% Non-Revenue 4.1 6.4 5.8 6.7 6.5

(1) This is the estimated total population served by SPU’s water supply. As some Wholesale Customers obtain some or all of their water
from sources other than SPU, this number is less than the total population of the shaded areas on the map on the previous page.

(2) Revenues represent payments from customers for service provided at published rates in each year. Revenues shown are not net of
transfers to the Rate Stabilization Account or other credits or deferrals of income.

(3) Revenue increases have been a result of increases in rates, as retail consumption has steadily decreased due largely to conservation
efforts. Variations in billed water use are primarily associated with year-to-year variations in temperature and precipitation in the
summer irrigation period. There has been no significant change in the geographic area served nor any appreciable change in the
number or composition of retail customers.

(4) The increases in per-unit operating costs in 2009 and 2010 are due in part to a temporary increase in the City’s utility tax rate and
increased amortization expense, both due to Lane v. City of Seattle. See “Litigation and Claims.”

Source: Seattle Public Utilities

Comprehensive Planning

The SPU Water System Plan (the “Water System Plan”) is a 20-year comprehensive plan for the Water
System that is updated every six years. The most recent Water System Plan was approved by the Washington
State Department of Health (the “DOH”) in 2007. The 2013 Water System Plan is undergoing public review
and is yet to be adopted by the City Council and approved by the DOH; the information provided herein is
based on work used to develop the update. The Water System Plan provides guidance for planning and
operating the Water System, and includes objectives for the next six years in the areas of water quality,
maintenance and rehabilitation, water conservation, and water supply.

‘Water Supply

The Water System’s two surface water supply diversions are located on the Cedar River and on the South Fork
of the Tolt River, each approximately 25 miles east of Seattle. The watershed areas upstream of the water
supply intakes on these two rivers consist of approximately 104,000 acres of forest land in the Cascade
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Mountains of western Washington. Rainfall in the watersheds averages in excess of 100 inches annually. The
snow pack at higher elevations averages five feet per year. Raw water storage capacity is 40,000 acre feet in
the Cedar River Watershed and 56,000 acre feet in the South Fork Tolt Watershed. Two barge-mounted
pumping plants on Chester Morse Lake in the Cedar River Watershed provide access to an additional 42,000
acre feet of stored water.

The City has diverted water from the Cedar River for use by the Water System since 1902. The City acquired
this right by purchase, riparian right, appropriation, and other applicable laws. This claim of water rights, its
relationship to instream flow requirements and the effect of the City’s diversion dam in blocking passage of
anadromous fish have been addressed in the Cedar River Watershed Habitat Conservation Plan (the “HCP”),
a comprehensive, 50-year set of legal agreements with State and federal governments signed in 2000. In 2006,
in a comprehensive settlement with the Muckleshoot Indian Tribe regarding the Cedar River Watershed, the
City agreed to further limits on its annual diversions. The City agreed to dedicate that portion of its water
right above 124 million gallons per day (“MGD”) to instream flows, and to certain limits on its annual
diversions from the Cedar River in perpetuity. The agreement resolved long-standing issues between the City
and the Muckleshoot Indian Tribe and strengthened the status of the City’s water rights on the Cedar River.

The establishment of water rights under State law is a complex process subject to ongoing interpretation and
litigation. The City’s water rights on the South Fork of the Tolt River were established by permits for water
storage and water diversion granted by the State in 1957, with a priority date of July 14, 1936. The reservoir
storage certificate was issued in 2003, but the diversion water right remains in permit status. In 1989, the
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission granted a license to Seattle City Light to build a hydroelectric power
plant on the South Fork of the Tolt River, resulting in modifications to the terms of the original water permits.
In 1997, Seattle City Light documented the full beneficial use of the water needed for the hydropower plant
and received a certificate of water right.

In two wellfields located immediately north of the Seattle-Tacoma International Airport (the “Seattle Well
Fields”), the City has developed three supply wells with a combined capacity of 10 MGD to augment the
City’s surface water supply. The feasibility of augmenting recharge of the aquifer with surplus winter-spring
flows from the Cedar River has been tested successfully. The wells are operated under temporary permits from
the State of Washington Department of Ecology (“Ecology”). The City has applied for permits that can be
converted into water rights.

The City also has water rights applications on file with Ecology for potential future sources of supply,
including the North Fork of the Tolt River and the Snoqualmie Aquifer. See “Future Water Supply and
Conservation.”

Future Water Supply and Conservation

At present, SPU has adequate supply resources to meet Water System demands under a wide range of weather
conditions. Existing sources of supply owned by the City provide an average annual firm yield of 172 MGD,
an increase of one MGD from that reported in the 2007 Water System Plan. The current firm yield is based
on an update completed in 2011 to represent current operating conditions, namely the use of the current spring
refill target of elevation 1,563 feet for Chester Morse Lake and the use of a revised monthly demand
distribution based upon the actual demand in 2005 through 2009. Demand in the service area has averaged
less than 130 MGD since 2005.

While population has steadily risen in the service area, water demand has been decreasing due to
conservation. Conservation has been encouraged through higher marginal rates in the summer peak season,
aggressive water conservation programs, new state plumbing codes specifying efficiency standards for water
fixtures, and improved Water System operations. In addition, water use reductions occur without SPU
intervention when customers purchase new plumbing fixtures and water-using appliances that meet or, in
many cases, exceed federal and State codes. Between 1999 and 2010, these programs and actions achieved an
estimated cumulative average annual savings of more than 30 MGD.
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SPU and 18 of the Wholesale Customers operate regional conservation programs collaboratively as the Saving
Water Partnership. These regional conservation programs provide opportunities for customers within the
direct service area and the service areas of participating Wholesale Customers.

In 2003, the State Legislature passed a Municipal Water Law that resulted in the adoption of water use
efficiency rules by the DOH. The rules include planning requirements, distribution leakage standards, water
use efficiency goal-setting, and performance reporting. SPU’s 2007 Water System Plan includes a six-year
regional conservation goal to achieve compliance with the Municipal Water Law for 2007 through 2012.
SPU'’s draft 2013 Water System Plan includes the six-year regional goals proposed for 2013 through 2018. See
“Capital Improvement Program.”

Current forecasts of demand and supply included in the draft 2013 Water System Plan suggest that a new
primary source of supply will not be needed before 2060, which is the end of the planning horizon currently
used by SPU. This is due in part to the impact of the conservation savings noted above and in part to the
declining-block contract with Cascade. See “Wholesale Customer Contracts.” SPU considered the potential
uncertainties associated with demand forecasts, as well as the potential impacts future climate change may
have on its water supplies and demands, in determining that no significant investments in new sources are
needed before 2060. Nevertheless, in addition to new conservation programs, several potential new water
resources were identified in the 2007 Water System Plan and will be carried forward in the 2013 Water System
Plan. These include:

6] development of the Snoqualmie River Valley/North Bend Aquifer,

(i) use of a permanent pumping plant at Chester Morse Lake for normal supply,

(ii1) drawdown of Lake Youngs (which stores water from the Cedar River) for water supply,
@) additional drawdown of the reservoir on the South Fork of the Tolt River,

) development of a new source of supply at the North Fork of the Tolt River, and

(vi) development of reclaimed water projects in the direct service area.

These new resource alternatives vary in the amount of new supply provided, capital and operating costs, and
level of effort needed to develop. SPU has not selected a preferred next source of supply.

Endangered Species Act

In 1999, the National Marine Fisheries Service (“NMFS”) listed the Puget Sound Chinook salmon, which
migrate through waterways within and adjacent to the City, as a “threatened species” under the Endangered
Species Act (the “ESA”). NMFS subsequently finalized a “4(d) rule” extending the ESA’s prohibition against
“take” to Puget Sound Chinook salmon. This rule enables jurisdictions to submit plans that, if approved,
would limit the application of the general prohibition to activities covered in the plan. Eligible activities
include certain municipal, residential, commercial, and industrial development activities, certain road
maintenance activities, and certain forestry activities. The full implications of this listing and the 4(d) rule for
the Water System are difficult to predict due to the many legal and scientific uncertainties associated with the
application of the ESA to water supply operations.

In an effort to reduce uncertainty with regard to its largest water supply source, the Cedar River, the City
entered into the HCP with the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (“USFWS”) and NMFS in 2000. The HCP
specifies the measures the City will undertake to minimize and mitigate potential impacts on listed species.
The HCP commits the City to spend about $103 million (in 2012 dollars) to improve conditions for fish and
wildlife within the Cedar River Watershed through the year 2050. See “Watershed Management Policies” and
“Capital Improvement Program.” While these measures include commitments to instream flow levels, the
Water System’s estimated firm yield would not be impacted adversely by the HCP. The incidental take
permit, which the City was issued when the HCP was approved, protects the City from ESA liability resulting
from potential impacts of the Water System’s Cedar River operations on Chinook salmon, bull trout,
steelhead, northern spotted owls, marbled murrelets, bald eagles, and approximately 76 other species of fish,
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mammals, birds, and amphibians known to be present and potentially affected by the City’s water supply and
hydroelectric and land management activities.

The second major Water System supply is drawn from the South Fork of the Tolt River with the aid of a dam.
Streamflow levels downstream from the impoundment are affected by dam operations and water diversions,
with potential impacts on Chinook salmon and steelhead, which are both listed under the ESA as threatened.
The City, tribes, and several federal agencies entered into the Tolt River Settlement Agreement in 1988, which
included commitments for streamflows and habitat improvements that are intended to mitigate for impacts
caused by the City’s water supply and power generation operations.

Bull trout also have been listed as threatened and endangered and other fish listings can be anticipated.
Because it is unknown whether bull trout are present in the Tolt River, the impact of the bull trout listing on
the Tolt River and other City operations is unknown.

To further manage legal risks, the City has invested in Chinook salmon research for its major waterways and
participated in regional watershed planning for the Cedar River, the Snohomish/Tolt Rivers, and the
Green/Duwamish Rivers. As a result, the City has assembled substantial data on Chinook salmon and new
scientific methods that provide the basis for development of best management practices in several key City
activity areas, including for water maintenance activities within road rights-of-way. In addition, salmon
research and funding of staff at federal regulatory agencies responsible for ESA Section 7 consultations are
allowing better project design, which is expected to result in fewer anticipated permit delays.

The City and SPU expect that additional funding will be needed to support habitat restoration programs that
address salmon-related policy objectives. Funding for these programs is expected to come from a variety of
sources, including City water rates, drainage and wastewater rates, taxes or fees imposed by other local
jurisdictions, and federal and State grants.

Transmission Facilities

The transmission facilities of the Water System consist of multiple primary transmission lines from the Cedar
River, one transmission line and substantial portions of a second line from the Tolt River (“Tolt 1” and
“Tolt 2””) and a network of supply mains throughout the service area. In all, there are approximately 160 miles
of primarily concrete or steel pipelines ranging in diameter from 30 to 96 inches.

After two segments of Tolt 1 ruptured in the late 1980s, the entire pipe was replaced or sliplined with new pipe
by 2005. In addition, for both reliability and new capacity, approximately 18 miles of Tolt 2 were constructed
beginning at the Tolt Regulating Basin and running parallel to and interconnecting with Tolt 1 at several
locations. SPU is also expanding its cathodic protection program to extend the service life of both steel and
concrete cylinder pipelines.

To assist in maintaining water flow to the distribution portion of the Water System, the transmission system
includes two regulating basins, seven covered storage reservoirs and six elevated tanks and standpipes. In
addition, there are 15 transmission pumping stations with a total rated capacity of more than 180,000 gallons
per minute (“GPM”). The following table shows the hydraulic capacities of the primary transmission lines
and the transmission regulating basins and reservoirs of the Water System.
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TABLE 2
HYDRAULIC CAPACITY OF INDIVIDUAL COMPONENTS OF THE TRANSMISSION SYSTEM @

Facility Capacity
Transmission Lines (MGD)

Cedar River 200

Tolt River _ 135
Total 335
Raw Water Storage Facilities (MG)

Lake Youngs (regulating basin)® 4,812

Tolt Regulating Basin®® _312
Total 5,124
Treated Water Storage Facilities MG)

Reservoirs 215

Elevated Tank and Other Storage 8
Total 223

(1) Treatment capacity is 120 MGD on the Tolt River source and 180 MGD on the Cedar River source. Equalizing reservoirs
(clearwells) at the outlet of the treatment plants (5 MG on the Tolt River supply, 20 MG on the Cedar River supply) make it possible
to deliver higher flow rates as needed into the transmission system for several hours. Averaged over several days, though, effective
transmission capacity cannot exceed treatment capacity, as all water must be treated.

(2) Effective capacity under current operating guidelines is less than the capacity shown in the table.

Source: Seattle Public Utilities

During the month of record maximum consumption, July 1985, the transmission lines delivered an average of
301 MGD. Water delivery by transmission pipelines on peak days at present typically does not exceed
250 MGD.

In 2009, Tolt Pipelines 1 and 2 were found to cross a historic slide located between the regulating basin and
the Tolt Water Treatment Facility. The slide had been dormant, and therefore unknown, since the pipelines
were installed in the 1960s and late 1990s, but has become more active, apparently due to a combination of
logging in upland area and erosion by the North Fork Tolt River. This slope movement has affected both
pipelines. Since the discovery of the slide, Tolt Pipeline 1 has been kept empty most of the time to reduce the
risk of new small joint leaks triggered by the ground movement and aggravating slope stability. A 48-inch
double ball joint expansion sleeve was installed on the newer steel Tolt Pipeline 2 to allow the pipeline to
better conform to the creeping slide. In addition, SPU initiated an on-going survey and inclinometer
monitoring program to track the slide and pipeline movement.

Storage and Distribution

Storage of water within the distribution portion of the Water System is accomplished by eight reservoirs, five
standpipes, and one elevated tank, with capacities as follows:

TABLE 3
CURRENT DISTRIBUTION CAPACITY (MG)
Reservoirs 167.8
Standpipes 6.4
Elevated Tank 1.0
Total 175.2

Source: Seattle Public Utilities

The adequacy of SPU’s distribution and transmission storage volumes has been demonstrated by using a
computerized hydraulic model of the Water System to simulate a suite of emergency and peak demand
conditions and other analyses.
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The distribution system consists of approximately 1,690 miles of predominantly cast iron and ductile iron pipe
and some concrete cylinder and steel pipe. To assist in maintaining adequate pressure within the distribution
system, there are 16 electric and hydraulic pumping stations with a total rated pumping capacity of more than
100,000 GPM.

The storage and distribution facilities and conservation incentives have met the needs of the expanding
population in the service area. Peak day consumption levels as high as 329 MG and 348 MG were recorded
on June 29, 1987, and July 15, 1970, respectively. However, since 2003, peak daily consumption has been less
than 250 MG.

In 2010, SPU’s total uses of non-revenue producing water (leakage, system cleaning and flushing, fire fighting,
and lake flushing) was estimated to be 8.0 MGD, or 6.8% of total water produced. System-wide leakage losses
for 2010, including meter inaccuracies, were approximately 7.7 MGD.

System Reliability

Since the late 1980s, several engineering evaluations have been made of the major parts of the Water System to
assess its reliability in the event of a major earthquake. Analysis has included the effects of (i) a magnitude
7.5 earthquake centered under critical Water System facilities such as reservoirs and transmission lines, and
(il) a magnitude 8.25 subduction earthquake within 95 miles of critical facilities. Overall, Water System
facilities generally are expected to remain operational in the event of a major earthquake. Most of the tank-
type reservoirs, both elevated tanks and standpipes, are predicted to sustain some damage and leakage
resulting in water outages until repairs can be made.

Since 1993, several tanks and standpipes have been replaced or retrofitted with additional supports. Other
potential upgrades or replacements will be undertaken if it is determined that benefits outweigh costs. The two
transmission pipeline seismic upgrades and a major valve control structure identified by the original seismic
evaluations have been completed. While some smaller seismic upgrade projects may be undertaken in the
future, it is expected that most of the investments in this program have already been made.

Emergency Preparedness

SPU has an active program to identify and analyze security risks to the Water System’s critical assets and
systems, and to invest in strategies to lower risks, develop emergency plans, and train employees for improved
response. The Water System’s integrated security system includes access control devices, door and hatch
contacts, alarms, CCTV, and around-the-clock monitoring and surveillance. Additional physical security
measures are in place at the Cedar River and South Fork Tolt Watersheds. The reservoir covering program is
providing communities with multiple benefits, including improved water quality and security. SPU conducts
vulnerability and risk assessments; invests in security countermeasures; and partners with local, State and
federal agencies to coordinate planning and response activities.

SPU has developed and equipped a wildland fire crew to attack and suppress wildland fires that may start on
the Cedar River or South Fork Tolt Watersheds. To supplement classroom training and planned field
exercises, the team participates in mobilization training missions on actual wildfire events at the request of the
local, State, or federal governments during wildfire emergencies, when available.

Water Quality

SPU has a comprehensive source-to-tap water quality management program. Water quality is ensured
through an integrated effort of source protection, state-of-the-art treatment and ongoing monitoring throughout
the Water System for potential microbial and chemical contaminants.

SPU owns more than 99% of the Cedar River Watershed and 70% of the South Fork Tolt Watershed (the
other 30% is U.S. Forest Service land) above the intake points. Protection of the two watersheds from
agricultural, industrial and recreational activities helps ensure that high quality water is delivered to 1.3 million
people in the Seattle area. In addition to the two primary surface sources, three wells on an aquifer south of
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the City periodically provide a small portion of the City’s water supply. These wells, collectively known as
Seattle Well Fields, are deep and afford natural protection from contamination.

In 2001, SPU commissioned a new treatment plant for the Tolt supply with a maximum treatment capacity of
120 MGD. The Tolt filtration plant is operated under a long-term contract with American Water/CDM. The
plant provides primary treatment for the Tolt supply using treatment processes including ozonation, direct
filtration, pH and alkalinity adjustment, and chlorination.

On the Cedar River source, water is screened and fluoridated at the Landsburg Cedar River Diversion facilities
ahead of traveling through transmission pipelines to Lake Youngs. Primary treatment for the source is
provided by the Cedar Water Treatment Plant at the outlet of Lake Youngs, which was commissioned in 2004
with a maximum treatment capacity of 180 MGD. The Cedar treatment plant is operated under a long-term
contract with CH2M HILL OMI. The plant treatment processes include ozonation, ultraviolet light
disinfection, pH adjustment, and disinfection with chlorine.

When Seattle Well Fields are in operation, treatment includes chlorination, fluoridation and pH adjustment.
The intent of treatment is to protect public health and to comply with treatment and monitoring requirements
of the DOH. SPU operates a water quality laboratory accredited by Ecology for bacteriological and chemical
analyses to help ensure compliance with drinking water standards.

As an operator of a public water system, SPU must comply with treatment and monitoring requirements of the
Safe Drinking Water Act of 1974 as amended and any additional requirements as specified by the DOH.
Water quality parameters and regulations of particular significance are discussed below.

Surface Water Treatment. The federal Surface Water Treatment Rule established filtration and disinfection
requirements for public water systems utilizing surface sources. Since startup of the Tolt Treatment Facility in
2001, the Tolt supply has been treated to meet these requirements.

The Surface Water Treatment Rule also established criteria for unfiltered systems with a Limited Alternative
to Filtration (“LAF”), including (i) watershed protection and management, (ii) raw water quality,
(iii) treatment efficiency and redundancy, and (iv) some aspects of distribution system water quality. In 2004,
SPU began operation of the new Cedar Treatment Facility under the requirements of the LAF.

In 2006, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (the “EPA”) issued the Long-Term 2 Enhanced
Surface Water Treatment Rule, which requires higher levels of treatment for water sources with higher levels
of Cryptosporidium. SPU has completed monitoring for Cryptosporidium in the Tolt and Cedar supplies. The
results showed extremely low levels, and no change of water treatment is required.

Lead and Copper. Lead and copper have not been detected in the source water. Lead in water normally comes
from plumbing materials, primarily from corrosion of lead solder used to connect copper pipes and corrosion
of brass fixtures that contain lead. SPU recognized this as a potential problem over 25 years ago and has been
treating the water to reduce its corrosiveness since the early 1980s. The City was the first municipality in the
nation to ban the use of lead solder in potable plumbing systems. The steps taken in the last two decades to
reduce the corrosiveness of the water have been successful in reducing lead levels at customer taps. Results
from residential tap sampling in 2004 showed further reduction in lead and copper levels since the Tolt
Treatment Facility came on line, corrosion control was optimized, and two Tolt service area reservoirs were
covered. At the request of the DOH, the sampling frame was partitioned in 2004 into four subregions.
Monitoring has continued to show that all four subregions are below the lead and copper action levels required
by regulations.

Disinfection Byproducts. The use of disinfectants, such as chlorine, to provide protection against microbes in
water can result in the formation of disinfection byproducts (“DBPs”) when the disinfectants react with
organic matter in the water. SPU meets current (Stage 1 DBP Rule) regulatory standards for DBPs. In
addition, SPU has completed investigatory monitoring for the Stage 2 DBP Rule (issued in 2006), and
anticipates meeting the more stringent monitoring requirements of the rule, which took effect on April 1,
2012, without any changes to the Water System.
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Open Reservoirs. The 1994 revisions to DOH drinking water regulations required the development of a plan to
cover all open distribution reservoirs, and subsequently the Long-Term 2 Enhanced Surface Water Treatment
Rule required public water systems to have a state-approved plan for covering or treating finished drinking
water reservoirs in place by 2009. SPU developed and is now nearing the completion of its reservoir covering
plan, which the DOH approved. Since 2001, SPU has covered six reservoirs, and expects to complete a
seventh, the 60-million gallon Maple Leaf Reservoir, in 2012. Shortly after the completion of the Maple Leaf
Reservoir, SPU expects to remove its remaining two open storage facilities, the Roosevelt and Volunteer
Reservoirs, from service on a test basis. This test period may last for two or more years and is intended to
determine how the system operates without these two reservoirs in service. At the end of these test periods (it
may be different for each of the reservoirs), SPU would make the final decision to decommission each of these
reservoirs (most likely) or to proceed with reservoir covering plans (less likely). SPU maintains an open
reservoir protection plan with annual updates submitted to the DOH, which will no longer be needed after the
remaining two open reservoirs are either decommissioned or covered

Arsenic. EPA’s maximum contaminant level for arsenic is ten parts per billion (“ppb”). Testing of the City’s
two primary drinking water sources from the Cedar River and South Fork Tolt Watersheds indicate that
arsenic is not present above one part per billion, the analytic detection limits. Naturally occurring arsenic
concentrations in the Seattle Well Fields have ranged from 1.5 to 5.7 ppb.

Radon. Radon is a radioactive gas that emits ionizing radiation and may be released from tap water. No
current rule regulates radon in water. EPA proposed a radon rule in 1999; however, there has been very little
activity by EPA in the regulation of radon in drinking water in the past few years, so it is unknown if and
when a new regulation might be issued. Radon has not been detected in samples analyzed from the Cedar and
Tolt supplies. While the seasonally operated Seattle Well Fields contain naturally occurring radon, SPU
expects to be able to comply with the proposed radon rule requirements under current operational practices.

‘Watershed Management Policies

SPU carries out programs of watershed resource management, fire protection and the protection of water
resources within the Cedar River and South Fork Tolt Watersheds. Seattle City Light also operates small
hydroelectric plants in the Cedar River and South Fork Tolt Watersheds.

Land development impacts and more stringent regulatory standards have made ownership of the property in
the watersheds an increasingly important element of SPU’s overall strategy to preserve and enhance water
quality. The City now owns more than 99% of the 141-square-mile Cedar River Watershed above the intake
point. The City owns 70% of the 21-square-mile South Fork Tolt Watershed above the intake point, and the
U.S. Forest Service owns the remainder.

The City’s ownership of the Cedar River Watershed has resulted in strengthening forest management, wildlife
and other programs that are based upon comprehensive management policies adopted in 1989 to guide the
secondary uses of the watershed. In 2000, the City committed to discontinuing timber harvesting for
commercial purposes over the 50-year lifespan of the Cedar River Watershed HCP. While trees may be cut,
timber harvests are allowed only when they benefit fish or wildlife populations and support the goals and
objectives of the HCP.

The HCP commits the City to improving fish and wildlife habitat, including providing salmonid fish passage
above the Landsburg diversion dam, ecological and restoration thinning and planting of more than
17,000 acres of second growth forest, restoration of riparian, wetland and stream habitats, and the
abandonment of more than 200 miles of logging roads in the watershed.

A watershed management plan was developed for the South Fork Tolt Watershed in 2008 to provide a long-
term framework for managing the land and natural resources in the South Fork Tolt Watershed.
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‘Wholesale Customer Contracts

Approximately 24% of water sales revenue is derived from wholesale sales to Wholesale Customers.
Wholesale Customers consist of 21 water districts and municipalities served under individual contracts and
Cascade, a consortium of eight municipalities and water districts that includes five formerly served under
individual contracts.

Since 2001, 18 Wholesale Customers, representing about 56% of total Wholesale Customer consumption and
29% of total Water System consumption, have signed fixed block or full and partial requirements contracts
that expire January 1, 2062. The full and partial requirements contracts obligate the City to meet the
Wholesale Customers’ demand that is not already met by their independent sources of supply. The full and
partial contracts also allow the development by Wholesale Customers of alternative sources of water and the
reduction of purchases from the City. One customer, Highline Water District, has given notice under the
contract that it intends to reduce purchases from the City by an amount up to two mgd (approximately
975,900 hundred cubic feet (“ccf”)), effective August 1, 2016.

SPU signed a 50-year declining block sales contract with Cascade in 2003 that capped Cascade’s demand from
the Water System at 30.3 MGD through 2023, when the block volume begins to decline. In 2009, the contract
was amended to increase Cascade’s block to 33.3 MGD from 2009 through 2017 and to 35.3 MGD from 2018
through 2023, after which the block begins to decline. Cascade’s 2008 demand represents about 44% of total
Wholesale Customer consumption and 23% of Water System consumption. Cascade expects to develop
sources of supply to satisfy the future water demands of Cascade members above the block amount and is
pursuing the use of Lake Tapps in Pierce County as a potable water supply. In June 2009, Cascade requested
negotiations to further amend the contract, delaying the year in which the block volume begins to decline, and
to consider further increments in block size. This would allow Cascade to delay development of Lake Tapps.

In 2008, SPU signed a 60-year partial requirements contract with the City of North Bend to provide untreated
water for North Bend’s use in supplementing stream flows affected by their well operation. This contract has a
cap of 1.1 MGD. Water deliveries began in 2009.

In 2011, two Wholesale Customers (Lake Forest Park Water District and the City of Edmonds) signed
emergency intertie agreements with Seattle to replace their previous wholesale supply contracts that were
scheduled to expire at the end of 2011. These customers have alternate supplies and did not purchase water
from Seattle on a regular basis, and the new contracts more appropriately reflect this status.

SPU currently serves approximately 11,000 retail customers in the City of Shoreline, directly north of Seattle.
This represents approximately half of the retail customers in the City of Shoreline. The remainder are served
by Shoreline Water District, which is a Wholesale Customer. In November 2009, the City of Shoreline
requested to begin negotiations to acquire SPU’s water distribution system to provide retail service within its
city limits. Under the ordinances of the City authorizing the issuance of the Outstanding Parity Bonds, the
City may sell or transfer any facilities or property of the Water System if the aggregate depreciated cost value
of the facilities or property being transferred in any fiscal year comprises no more than 3% of the total assets of
the Water System. See Appendix A—Bond Ordinance—Section 18(c). The aggregate depreciated cost of
value of SPU’s water distribution system in Shoreline is less than 3% of the total assets of the Water System. If
SPU determines to sell or transfer its water distribution system in Shoreline, SPU expects to continue to
provide wholesale water service to the City of Shoreline, and does not expect that any such sale or transfer
would have a material adverse impact on the City’s ability to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds when
due.

The following table lists consumption in hundred cubic feet by individual Wholesale Customers and revenues
generated by water sales to individual Wholesale Customers in 2011.
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TABLE 4
ANNUAL WATER SALES TO WHOLESALE CUSTOMERS IN 2011%

‘Wholesale Customer Consumption(ccf) Revenue

Cascade Water Alliance 12,364,705 $ 18,052,107
Northshore Utility District® 2,473,758 4,743,305
Soos Creek Water and Sewer District® 2,008,295 3,247,261
Highline Water District™” 2,126,929 3,136,124
Woodinville Water District® 1,759,518 3,051,175
Water District #20? 1,234,040 1,802,531
City of Mercer Island® 924,044 1,402,294
Cedar River Water and Sewer District 758,691 1,269,758
City of Bothell? 637,415 1,206,272
Water District #49 638,260 934,501
Shoreline Water District® 656,942 908,684
Coal Creek Utility District® 507,604 830,027
Water District #90%? 493,819 711,960
Water District #125 499,267 708,198
Olympic View Water and Sewer District 348,497 515,049
City of Duvall 233,390 441,165
Water District #119 110,073 203,393
Water District #45% 106,783 155,513
City of Renton 88,749 119,661
Other Wholesale Customers 3,187 17,397
Total 27,973,966 $ 43,456,376

(1) Figures are 2011 metered water consumption and associated revenue from SPU records, not net of certain credits, accruals, and
allowances included in the audited financial statements.

(2) Indicates Wholesale Customers that buy all their water from SPU.
(3) Highline Water District has given notice under the contract that it intends to reduce purchases from the City by an amount up to
975,900 ccf, effective August 1, 2016.

Source: Seattle Public Utilities

Major Retail Water Users

There are no major water-intensive retail customers in the service area. The Water System’s ten largest retail
water users in 2011 were the University of Washington, the City of Seattle, the Port of Seattle, Seattle Housing
Authority, King County, Seattle Steam, Todd Shipyards, Nucor Steel, Seattle Public Schools, and Swedish
Medical Center. In the aggregate, revenue from these customers was less than 9% of billed direct service
revenues in 2011.

‘Water Rates

Establishment of Rates. Water rates are proposed by the Mayor, reviewed by the City Council and adopted after
public hearings. The City Council has exclusive authority to set rates and charges for water services. The City
is not subject to the rate-making jurisdiction of the Washington Utilities and Transportation Commission or
any other State or federal agency.
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The following table shows historical water rate increases for the last five years and adopted water rate
increases for 2013 and 2014.

TABLE 5
HISTORICAL WATER RATE INCREASES

Year Rate Increase
2008 5.9%
2009 11.7
2009? 6.9

2010 9.3

2011 0.6

2012 12.2

2013 7.2

2014 7.6

(1) January 1, 2009.

(2) March 31, 2009; a temporary surcharge through December 31, 2010, to cover costs related to Lane v. City of Seattle. See “Litigation
and Claims.”

Source: Seattle Public Utilities

The following table shows the rates in effect as of January 1, 2012. Both retail and wholesale rates are
seasonally differentiated; the summer residential rate has an inclining block structure. The structure and basis
for rates to Wholesale Customers served through master meters are governed by the Wholesale Customer
contracts.

TABLE 6
SEATTLE WATER SYSTEM
MONTHLY WATER RATES EFFECTIVE IN 2012

Residential'® Commercial® Wholesale

Commodity Charge ($ per ccf)

Winter (eight months) $ 4.04 $ 4.04 $1.52
Summer (four months) 5.15 2.26
Upto 5 ccf 4.34 na na
Next 10 ccf 5.15 na na
Over 15 ccf 11.80 na na

Basic Service Charge ($ per month)(z)

374" $13.25 $13.25 na
1" 13.65 13.65 na
11/2" 21.05 21.05 na
2" 23.35 23.35 na
4" 123.75 123.75 na

(1) Retail rates to customers outside the City limits and not within the City of Shoreline or the City of Lake Forest Park are 14% higher
than in the table above. Rates for customers within the City of Shoreline and the City of Lake Forest Park are 21% higher than in the
table above.

(2) The Basic Service Charge is based on the size of the customer’s meter. Rates for larger meters are not shown.

Source: Seattle Public Utilities
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Rate Comparisons. SPU’s water rates have risen faster than the rate of inflation over the past five years and now
are above the average of other cities of its size. The following table shows January 1, 2012, representative
water bills for SPU compared to other cities in the region.

TABLE 7
REGIONAL COMPARISONS
(RATES IN EFFECT AS OF JANUARY 1, 2012)

Residential Commercial Industrial
City State (5.0 ccf/month) (500 ccf/month) (15,000 ccf/month)
Seattle Washington $33.95 $2,265.35 $66,447.00
Bellevue  Washington 29.48 1,976.66 58,152.88
Tacoma Washington 24.96 876.74 22,642.40
Portland  Oregon 24.76 1,601.63 46,369.81
Everett Washington 16.02 737.30 18,283.30

Source:  SPU Survey

Billing. SPU accounts are billed bimonthly for residential and small commercial customers and monthly for
larger accounts. Inside the City, residential customers receive a combined utility bill that itemizes amounts
due for water, wastewater and solid waste services, while commercial customers receive a combined utility bill
that itemizes amounts due for water and wastewater. Customers outside the City receive bills for water only.
Payments received from the combined utility bills are allocated to the appropriate funds. If a payment
received from a customer is insufficient to cover the total amount due and payable under the combined utility
bill, that payment is credited first to the Solid Waste Fund. The balance of the payment is then credited to the
Drainage and Wastewater Fund and then, if funds are available, to the Water Fund. If an account is 33 days
past due, customers receive a water shut-off notice. By State law, water may be shut off when an account is
delinquent, and outstanding balances are considered a lien on the property. Delinquent charges bear interest
at the rate of 12% per annum. Total 90-day-plus outstanding balances for SPU billed water, wastewater and
solid waste services were $2.9 million (less than 1% of annual direct service revenue billed by SPU) as of
December 2011. These figures include all outstanding amounts going back to 2006.

Financial Policies

The Mayor and City Council have established financial policies by resolution for SPU, including the Water
System. In accordance with these policies, water rates are set to achieve generally positive net income and
cash balances and a minimum debt service coverage ratio on fixed rate long-term Parity Bonds of 1.70 times
annual debt service. In addition, in each rate study period, an average of at least 20% of capital expenditures is
expected to be financed with current revenue, with a minimum of 15% in any one year. The current rate study
period is 2012-2014, and approximately 45% of capital expenditures are expected to be financed with current
revenue during this period. Rates were adopted in late 2011 with increases effective on January 1, 2012, 2013,
and 2014.

In 2002, the City by ordinance strengthened the Rate Stabilization Account by announcing an intent to raise
rates to establish a balance of $9.0 million. As of December 31, 2011, the balance in the Rate Stabilization
Account was $9.0 million. The $9.0 million minimum balance in the account is intended for use during
periods of poor water sales, but amounts over and above the minimum balance may be used to meet operating
expenditures, pay capital improvement program expenditures, or meet financial policy requirements.
Revenues contributed to the Rate Stabilization Account are not considered available for debt service coverage
in the year they are contributed, but are considered available for coverage in the year they are withdrawn. See
Appendix A—Bond Ordinance—Section 14.

Under the City Charter, City taxes on the Water System may be paid only after provision has been made for

debt service and obligations of the Water System as well as for necessary betterments and replacements for the
current year.
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Financial Performance

The table titled “Operating Results” shows actual revenues and expenses of the Water System for the years
2007 through 2011, as well as projected results for 2012 and 2013. Footnotes for the table are on the following
page. The projections reflect rate increases effective January 1, 2012, and January 1, 2013, which were
approved in 2011.

Overall demand is assumed to decline by approximately 1.2% per year in 2012 and 2013. Regional
conservation programs are expected to continue offsetting the impact of population and employment growth
on wholesale water demand, while more than offsetting the effects of growth within the City.

SPU DOES NOT AS A MATTER OF COURSE MAKE PUBLIC PROJECTIONS AS TO FUTURE SALES, EARNINGS OR
OTHER RESULTS. HOWEVER, THE MANAGEMENT OF SPU HAS PREPARED THE PROSPECTIVE FINANCIAL
INFORMATION AS SET FORTH BELOW UNDER “WATER SYSTEM OPERATING RESULTS” AND “CAPITAL
IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM” TO PROVIDE READERS OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT INFORMATION RELATED TO
PROJECTED REVENUES AND EXPENSES OF THE WATER SYSTEM. THE ACCOMPANYING PROSPECTIVE
FINANCIAL INFORMATION WAS NOT PREPARED WITH A VIEW TOWARD PUBLIC DISCLOSURE OR WITH A VIEW
TOWARD COMPLYING WITH THE GUIDELINES ESTABLISHED BY THE AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED
PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS WITH RESPECT TO PROSPECTIVE FINANCIAL INFORMATION, BUT, IN THE VIEW OF
SPU’S MANAGEMENT, WAS PREPARED ON A REASONABLE BASIS, REFLECTS THE BEST CURRENTLY AVAILABLE
ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS, AND PRESENTS, TO THE BEST OF MANAGEMENT’S KNOWLEDGE AND BELIEF, THE
EXPECTED COURSE OF ACTION AND THE EXPECTED FUTURE FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE WATER
SYSTEM. HOWEVER, THIS INFORMATION IS NOT FACT AND SHOULD NOT BE RELIED UPON AS BEING
NECESSARILY INDICATIVE OF FUTURE RESULTS, AND POTENTIAL PURCHASERS OF THE BONDS AND THE
READERS OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT ARE CAUTIONED NOT TO PLACE UNDUE RELIANCE ON THE
PROSPECTIVE FINANCIAL INFORMATION.

NEITHER SPU’S INDEPENDENT AUDITORS NOR THE STATE AUDITOR NOR ANY OTHER INDEPENDENT
ACCOUNTANTS HAVE COMPILED, EXAMINED, OR PERFORMED ANY PROCEDURES WITH RESPECT TO THIS
OFFICIAL STATEMENT OR ANY FINANCIAL INFORMATION CONTAINED HEREIN, NOR HAVE THEY EXPRESSED
ANY OPINION OR ANY OTHER FORM OF ASSURANCE ON SUCH INFORMATION, AND THEY ASSUME NO
RESPONSIBILITY FOR, AND DISCLAIM ANY ASSOCIATION WITH, THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT AND SUCH
INFORMATION.

THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF THE WATER FUND AS OF AND FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
2011, INCLUDED HEREIN AS APPENDIX C, HAVE BEEN AUDITED BY MOSS ADAMS LLP, INDEPENDENT
ACCOUNTANTS, AS STATED IN ITS REPORT APPEARING HEREIN. SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES HAS NOT
REQUESTED THAT MOSS ADAMS LLP PROVIDE CONSENT FOR INCLUSION OF ITS AUDITED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT, AND MOSS ADAMS LLP HAS NOT PERFORMED, SINCE THE DATE
OF ITS REPORT INCLUDED HEREIN, ANY PROCEDURES ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ADDRESSED IN THAT
REPORT. FURTHER, M0OSS ADAMS LLP HAS NOT PARTICIPATED IN ANY WAY IN THE PREPARATION OR REVIEW
OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT.
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TABLE 8
WATER SYSTEM OPERATING RESULTS

Actual Projected
2007 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013
Operating Revenue
Water Sales $ 143,892,005 $ 149,573,411 § 178,726,401 $ 181,515,455 §$ 181,413,127 $ 202,310,622  $ 213,649,602
(Deposits to)/Withdrawals from Revenue Stabilization Fund M - - - 3,000,000 1,522,974 - -
Other 16,269,301 14,831,619 12,643,187 10,688,010 11,636,551 12,077,587 12,954,668
Total Operating Revenue $ 160,161,306  $ 164,405,030 $ 191,369,588 $ 195,203,465 §$ 194,572,652 $ 214,388,209  $ 226,604,270
Other Income
Interest Income-Other $ 3909309 $ 1065889 § 677,639 $ 3,206,775 $ 2,887,919 $ 3,054,094 $ 2,990,155
Gain/(Loss) on Sale of Assets, and Others-net 5,331,997 (976,997) 8,805,017 1,661,609 1,591,017 753,076 767,161
Total Other Income $ 9241306 $ 88,892 $§ 9482656 § 4,868,384 $ 4478936 $ 3807170 $ 3,757,316
Operating Expenses
Operating and Maintenance Expenses
Expenses $ 76,835299 $§ 8126509 $§ 84,557,526 $ 79,662,813 $ 77,923,361 $ 84,174,580 $ 92,787,903
Taxes Other Than City Taxes 5,609,435 5,761,732 6,559,190 7,035,586 7,231,727 7,886,099 8,475,169
Other Expenses
City Taxes @ 18,561,201 19,029,097 27,062,094 29,454,840 23,279,845 25,704,554 27,652,878
Depreciation and Amortization 37,435,778 40,615,626 46,099,498 48,085,386 46,061,914 48,693,325 50,517,862
Total Operating Expenses $ 138,441,713  § 146,671,551 § 164,278,307 $ 164,238,626 §$ 154,496,847 $ 166,458,558  $ 179,433,812
Other Income (Expenses)
Interest Expenses and Amortization of Debt Issue Costs
and Net Discount $ (37,668,952) $ (34,661,405) $ (40,736,109) $ (47,307,331) $ (46,289,430) $ (45,454,427) $ (44,229,583)
Contributions in Aid of Construction 7,886,096 17,339,107 10,033,490 12,183,558 3,531,294 2,878,935 2,933,836
Total Other Income (Expenses) $ (29,782,856) $ (17,322,298) $ (30,702,618) $ (35,123,773) $ (42,758,136) $ (42,575,492) $ (41,295,747)
Net Income $ 1,178,043 $ 500,073 $ 5871,318 $ 709,451 $ 1,796,605 $ 9,161,329 $ 9,632,027
Other Revenue Available for Debt Service
City Taxes @ $ 18,561,201 $ 19,029,097 $§ 27,062,094 $ 29,454,840 $ 23,279,845 $ 25704,554 $ 27,652,878
Deprecitaion and Amortization 37,435,778 40,615,626 46,099,498 48,085,386 46,061,914 48,693,325 50,517,862
Interest paid on Revenue Bonds 40,713,418 38,355,433 45,337,887 50,274,477 49,595,335 48,419,784 46,929,947
(Transfer to)/Withdrawal from Bonneville Power Admin. Account @ 413,024 595,473 436,196 198,207 100,000 - -
Capitalized Interest (3,286,626) (4,446,525) (4,704,212) (2,697,823) (2,635,254) (2,697,800) (2,697,800)
Accrued and Other Non-Cash Expenses (1,911,672) (12,153,362) (4,805,551) (10,307,855) (1,395,402) (725,000) (750,625)
Total Revenue Available for Debt Service © $ 93,103,166 $ 82,495815 § 115297230 $ 115,716,683 §$ 116,803,043 $ 128,556,192  $ 131,284,289
Debt Service ©
Parity Bonds Debt Service $ 52,215,444 $ 56,250,906 $ 70,377,702 $ 72,749,679 $ 78,552,207 $ 79,529,306 $ 79,503,656
Subordinate Lien Debt Service 6,173,146 3,489,526 867,289 870,641 1,041,421 1,173,770 1,375,633
Total Debt Service $ 58,388,590 $§ 59,740,432 $§ 71,244991 $ 73,620,320 $ 79,593,628 $ 80,703,076 $ 80,879,289
Debt Service Coverage ®
Parity Lien Debt Service Coverage 1.78 147 1.64 1.59 1.49 1.62 1.65
Overall Debt Service Coverage 1.59 1.38 1.62 1.57 147 1.59 1.62

28



NOTES TO TABLE:

(1) Withdrawals from the Rate Stabilization Account are added to Operating Revenues and deposits are deducted, in accordance with
FAS 71. Withdrawals from the Rate Stabilization Account are available for debt service and increase debt service coverage. Deposits
to the Rate Stabilization Account reduce revenue available for debt service and lower debt service coverage.

(2) The City currently levies a tax of 15.54% upon total gross income of the Water System from its retail business within and outside the
City. This rate was temporarily 19.87% from March 31, 2009, through December 31, 2010.

(3) Under the City Charter, City taxes on the Water System may be paid only after ample provisions has been made for debt service and
obligations of the Water System as well as for necessary betterments and replacements for the current year.

(4) Windfall revenues associated with the sale of an easement to the Bonneville Power Administration are included in net income in
2003, but are not considered available for payment of debt service until withdrawn from the Rate Stabilization Account.

(5) Revenue available for debt service = net income (including contributions in aid of construction) + City taxes + depreciation +
interest expenses + debt cost amortization + accrued and other non-cash expenses.

(6) Includes the effect of refunding certain subordinate lien bonds in 2009 through the issuance of Parity Bonds. Does not include the
effect of refunding the Refunded Bonds.

(7) Includes Public Works Assistance Account loans. See “Security for the Bonds—Other Obligations.”

Source: Seattle Public Utilities

The Water System has been designed and maintained to require a minimum of pumping, and does not rely on
outside sources to meet water demand. Inflationary pressures have increased operations and maintenance
expenses, which have been partially offset by decreasing CIP needs.

Operating revenues are generated primarily from wholesale and retail water sales. The water sales revenue
increase of 43% from 2006 to 2011 is primarily due to rate increases, as there was a decline in demand during
this period. Fluctuations in other operating revenue are primarily due to demand in tap installations and the
resulting installation fee revenue. These fluctuations are due to economic conditions.

Operating results during the period 2006 to 2011 were affected by a variety of factors:

) a temporary increase in amortization expense and in the City tax rate for 2009 and 2010 related to the
Lane v. City of Seattle case (see “Litigation and Claims.”),

(i1) withdrawals from the Rate Stabilization Account as planned for in the 2009-2011 rate study and
authorized by Ordinance 122841,

(ii1) significant asset sales in 2007 (unused reservoir site) and 2009 (easement along pipeline corridor to
local gas utility),

@iv) the refunding of certain subordinate lien bonds in 2009 through the issuance of Parity Bonds, and

) the receipt of federal Build America Bonds credit payments beginning in 2010 reported under Interest
Income.

Policy targets for net income, year-end cash, and cash financing of the Capital Improvement Program (the
“CIP”) were, or are projected to be, met for 2006-2012; however, the debt service coverage level fell below the
policy target beginning in 2008. For 2009 and beyond, this is partially due to the decision to issue additional
Parity Bonds to refund certain subordinate lien bonds, which occurred after the November 2008 rate proposal
was finalized. Under rates approved for 2012-2014, debt service coverage is projected to exceed the debt
service target by 2014.

Capital Improvement Program

Capital investments are guided by the Water System Plan and multi-year CIP, which is developed within the
framework of the Water System Plan and included in the capital improvement program of the City as a whole.
The CIP is reviewed, revised and adopted annually by the Mayor and City Council as part of the City’s budget
process. The CIP identifies facility needs and financing for rehabilitation, enhancement and expansion of the
Water System. Currently the main areas of focus are to rehabilitate the water distribution system and make
water quality improvements.

SPU expects to issue approximately $81 million in long-term debt for the CIP during the period 2012 through
2017. Annual debt service is expected to rise from $80 million in 2011 to $87 million in 2017.
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The CIP is organized into program areas: (i) Distribution, (ii) Habitat Conservation, (iii) Shared Cost Projects,
(iv) Technology, (v) Transmission, (vi) Water Quality and Treatment, (vii) Water Resources, and
(viil) Watershed Stewardship, as shown in the table below. The amount shown for each program area is based
on the adopted CIP.
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TABLE 9
WATER SYSTEM CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM
(Amounts in Thousands of Nominal Dollars)

Adopted
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 Total
Program Area
Distribution $ 15,194 $ 19,778 $ 20,394 $ 22,751 $ 24,085 $ 25,279 $ 127,481
Habitat Conservation 4913 3,372 3,649 2,945 2,489 1,809 19,176
Shared Cost Projects M 14,641 18,164 17,696 17,590 16,643 20,472 105,205
Technology 5,358 7,709 8,685 6,456 5,916 5,999 40,122
Transmission 1,343 3,027 3,076 3,137 3,195 3,393 17,172
Water Quality and Treatment 6,613 5,293 1,547 202 210 113 13,978
Water Resources 5,616 5,576 8,743 8,741 12,222 10,301 51,199
Watershed Stewardship 1,828 1,035 729 600 600 600 5,392
Total $ 55,506 $ 63,954 $ 64,519 $ 62,422 $ 65,360 $ 67,965 $ 379,725
Funding Sources
Debt Financing
Outstanding Parity Bonds $ 25,898 $ 33,479 $ 1,435 $ - $ - $ - $ 60,812
Future Parity Bonds - - 25,409 27472 29,032 30,223 112,136
Total Debt Financing $ 25,898 $ 33,479 $ 26,844 $ 27472 $ 29,032 $ 30,223 $ 172,948
Revenue Financing
Internally Generated Funds $ 19,428 $ 18,999 $ 26,081 $ 23,623 $ 24,511 $ 25,485 $ 138,127
Grants and Reimbursements 1,854 1,883 1,916 1,964 2,012 2,062 11,692
Total Revenue Financing $ 21,282 $ 20,882 $ 27,997 $ 25,587 $ 26,523 $ 27,547 $ 149,819

Adjustment for Expected Accomplishment® § 8326 $ 9593 $ 9678 $ 9363 $ 9805 $ 10,194 $ 56,959
Total $ 55506 $ 63954 $ 64519 $ 62422 $ 65360 $ 67,965  $379,725
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NOTES TO TABLE:

(1) Includes projects that affect the Water System, but involve more than a water purpose and are typically funded from multiple
sources. Current projects include Sound Transit projects, the Alaskan Way Viaduct and Seawall replacement, State Route 520
replacement, and the South Lake Union Urban Center redevelopment area.

(2) The amounts shown reflect the difference between the full amount of the budgeted CIP and the expected amount of CIP spending.

The development of the CIP balances financial capacity with the demands of rehabilitation, improvement,
water quality, and expansion. SPU steadily expanded the CIP through the late 1990s and the 2000s, raised
rates, and increased its long-term borrowing. In managing the CIP, SPU has emphasized efficient project
design and careful staging of improvements within the 20-year time frame of the Water System Plan, and has
reached a point where CIP needs are decreasing compared to the highs of the last decade. In the period 2012
through 2017, SPU expects the financial requirements for these projects to be met from Net Revenue of the
Water System and from the proceeds of Future Parity Bonds. Approximately 35% of projected CIP spending
is expected to be financed by the issuance of Future Parity Bonds.

Risk Management and Quality Assurance

A Risk and Quality Assurance Program (“RQA”) was first established by SPU in 2004 and more formally as a
separate division within the organization in January 2011. The RQA’s goals and objectives are to provide a
more structured framework to evaluate, manage and improve risk and performance levels for all business lines
through three main task areas: performance management, risk management and internal auditing. A Risk and
Quality Assurance Board, consisting of the SPU Director, the Executive Team, a Law Department
representative and six RQA staff members provide corporate-level oversight and accountability for the
program. RQA staff also coordinate with supervisors, project managers and subject matter experts throughout
SPU to use the framework to guide decision-making related to policy and program development, capital
projects and day to day operations.

The RQA'’s work plan priorities for 2012 include assessing and improving internal controls, restricting the sub-
rogation claim process, and overseeing implementation of prior audit recommendations. Additionally, RQA
staff are currently coordinating a focused internal audit and using external auditors to review the recently
discovered embezzlement of approximately $1 million in Water System funds by a former employee. This
audit is expected to result in implementation of additional control measures for handling financial transactions
within the utility. The City does not expect that the embezzlement incident or any resulting legal action would
have a material adverse impact on the City’s ability to pay principal of and interest on the Bonds when due.

Litigation and Claims

In Lane v. City of Seattle, 164 Wn.2d 875, 194 P.3d 977 (2008), the Washington Supreme Court ruled that the
cost of maintaining fire hydrants is a general governmental requirement that must be paid from taxes rather
than utility rate revenues. As a consequence, the City’s general fund was required to reimburse the Water
Fund for fire hydrant costs incurred from March 1, 2002, through December 31, 2004, and SPU was required
to make refunds to Water System ratepayers for those fire hydrant costs included in water rates during that
period, plus 12% interest. In response, the City adopted Ordinance 122916 temporarily increasing the utility
tax imposed on SPU from 15.54% to 19.87% from March 31, 2009, through December 31, 2010. To pay the
temporarily increased utility tax, the City adopted Ordinance 122913 imposing a 10.2% temporary surcharge
on water rates for all SPU retail customers from March 31, 2009, through December 31, 2010. All payments
related to the Lane case have been made.

Other claims associated with the normal operation of the Water System periodically are filed against the City.
The Water System’s practice is to include in its annual budget an amount for such claims that is equal to the
reasonably probable payment of claims for that year. For the purposes of financial reporting, annual claims
costs are accrued based on actuarial studies of claims history.
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THE CITY OF SEATTLE

The following provides general information about the City.

Municipal Government

Incorporated in 1869, the City is the largest city in the Pacific Northwest and is the seat of King County.

The City is a general purpose government that provides a broad range of services typical of local
municipalities, such as streets, parks, libraries, human services, law enforcement, fire fighting and emergency
medical services, planning, zoning, animal control, municipal court, and utilities. King County also provides
certain services throughout the County and within the City, including courts of general jurisdiction, felony
prosecution and defense, jail, public health, and transit services.

The City is organized under the mayor-council form of government and operates under its City Charter. The
mayor, the city attorney, nine City Council members, and eight Municipal Court judges are all elected to four-
year terms.

Mayor. The Mayor serves as the chief executive officer of the City. The Mayor presents to the City Council
annual statements of the financial and governmental affairs of the City, budgets, and capital improvement
plans. The Mayor signs, or causes to be signed on behalf of the City, all deeds, contracts and other
instruments.

City Council. The City Council is the policy-making legislative body of the City. The nine City Council
members are elected at-large to four-year staggered terms and serve on a full-time basis. The City Council sets
tax levies, sets utility rates, makes appropriations and adopts and approves the annual operating budget for the

City.

Municipal Court. The State Constitution provides for the existence of county superior courts as the courts of
general jurisdiction and authorizes the State Legislature to create other courts of limited jurisdiction. The
Seattle Municipal Court has limited jurisdiction over a variety of cases, including misdemeanor criminal cases,
traffic and parking infractions, collection of fines, violation of no-contact or domestic violence protection
orders, and civil actions for enforcement of City fire and housing codes. The Municipal Court has eight
judges. Municipal Court employees report to the judges.

Financial Management

City financial management functions are provided by the Department of Finance and Administrative Services.

Accounting. The accounting and reporting policies of the City conform to generally accepted accounting
principles for municipal governments and are regulated by the State Auditor’s Office, which maintains a
resident staff at the City to perform a continual current audit as well as an annual post-fiscal year audit of City
financial operations. The Accounting Services Division of the Department of Finance and Administrative
Services maintains general supervision over the accounting functions of the City.

Auditing. The State Auditor is required to examine the affairs of all local governments at least once every
three years; the City is audited annually. The examination must include, among other things, the financial
condition and resources of the City, compliance with the laws and Constitution of the State, and the methods
and accuracy of the accounts and reports of the City. Reports of the State Auditor’s examinations are required
to be filed in the office of the State Auditor and in the Department of Finance and Administrative Services.
The City’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for 2011 may be obtained from the Department of
Finance and Administrative Services and is available at Attp:/ /www.seattle.gov/cafrs/default. htm, which website
address is not incorporated herein by reference. The Water System’s 2011 financial statements are also
audited by an independent auditor and are attached as Appendix C.

In 2005, pursuant to an initiative approved by the State’s voters, the State Auditor’s Office was given authority
to conduct independent performance audits of State and local government entities. The Office of the City
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Auditor also reviews the performance of a wide variety of City activities such as management of city trees,
district councils, span of control, City-wide collections, special events permitting, and specific departmental
activities.

Municipal Budget. City operations are guided by a budget prepared under the direction of the Mayor by the
City Budget Office pursuant to State statute (chapter 35.32A RCW). The proposed budget is submitted to the
City Council by the Mayor each year not later than 90 days prior to the beginning of the next fiscal year.
Currently the fiscal year of the City is January 1 through December 31. The City Council considers the
proposed budget, holds public hearings on its contents, and may alter and revise the budget at its discretion,
subject to the State requirement that budgeted revenues must at least equal expenditures. The City Council is
required to adopt a balanced budget at least 30 days before the beginning of the next fiscal year, which may be
amended or supplemented from time to time by ordinance. The 2012 budget was adopted on November 21,
2011.

The City’s adopted General Subfund budget was $893.6 million in 2011 and $918.0 million in 2012. Total
general government tax revenue increased by about 1.2% from 2009 to 2010 (see Table 1). According to the
City’s November 2011 forecast, total General Fund revenues are expected to be about 2.5% and 2.9% higher in
2011 and 2012, respectively.

Investments

Authorized Investments. Chapter 35.39 RCW permits the investment by cities and towns of their inactive funds
or other funds in excess of current needs in the following: United States bonds; United States certificates of
indebtedness; State bonds or warrants; general obligation or utility revenue bonds of its own or of any other
city or town in the State; its own bonds or warrants of a local improvement district that are within the
protection of the local improvement guaranty fund law; and any other investment authorized by law for any
other taxing district. Under chapter 39.59 RCW, a city or town also may invest in the following: bonds of any
local government in the State that have at the time of investment one of the three highest credit ratings of a
nationally recognized rating agency; general obligation bonds of any other state or local government of any
other state that have at the time of the investment one of the three highest credit ratings of a nationally
recognized rating agency; registered warrants of a local government in the same county as the government
making the investment; and any investments authorized by law for the State Treasurer or any local
government of the State other than a metropolitan municipal corporation (other than bank certificates of
deposit of banks or bank branches not located in the State). Under chapter 43.84 RCW, the State Treasurer
(and, under chapter 39.59 RCW, cities and towns) may invest in the following: obligations of the United States
or its agencies and of any corporation wholly owned by the government of the United States; State, county,
municipal or school district general obligation bonds or general obligation warrants of taxing districts of the
State, if within the statutory limitation of indebtedness; motor vehicle fund warrants; Federal Home Loan
Bank notes and bonds, Federal Land Bank bonds, Fannie Mae notes, debentures and guaranteed certificates of
participation and obligation of any other government-sponsored corporation whose obligations are eligible for
collateral for advances to Federal Reserve System member banks; bankers’ acceptances purchased in the
secondary market; negotiable certificates of deposit of any national or state commercial or mutual savings
bank or savings and loan association doing business in the United States; and commercial paper.

Money available for investment may be invested on an individual fund basis or may, unless otherwise
restricted by law, be commingled within one common investment portfolio. All income derived from such
investment may be either apportioned to and used by the various participating funds or for the benefit of the
general government in accordance with City ordinances or resolutions.

Authorized Investments for Bond Proceeds. Funds derived from the sale of bonds or other instruments of
indebtedness will be invested or used in such manner as the initiating ordinances, resolutions, or bond
covenants may lawfully prescribe. In addition to the eligible investments discussed above, bond proceeds may
also be invested, subject to certain restrictions, in mutual funds with portfolios consisting of (i) only United
States government bonds or United States government guaranteed bonds issued by federal agencies with
average maturities of less than four years; bonds of the State or of any local government in the State that have
at the time of the investment one of the four highest credit ratings of a nationally recognized rating agency;
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general obligation bonds of any other state or local government of any other state that have at the time of the
investment one of the four highest credit ratings of a nationally recognized rating agency; (ii) bonds of states
and local governments or other issuers authorized by law for investment by local governments that have at the
time of investment one of the two highest credit ratings of a nationally recognized rating agency; or
(ii1) securities otherwise authorized by law for investment by local governments.

City Investments. The information in this section does not pertain to pension funds that are administered by
the City (see “Pension Plans”), and certain refunding bond proceeds that are administered by trustee service
providers.

All cash-related transactions for the City, including its utilities, are administered by the Department of Finance
and Administrative Services. City cash is deposited into a single bank account and cash expenditures are paid
from a consolidated disbursement account. Investments of temporarily idle cash may be made, according to
existing City Council-approved policies, by the Treasury Division of the Department of Finance and
Administrative Services in securities described under “Authorized Investments.”

State statutes, City ordinances and Department of Finance and Administrative Services policies require the
City to minimize market risks by safekeeping all purchased securities according to governmental standards for
public institutions and by maintaining safety and liquidity above consideration for returns. Current City
investment policies require periodic reporting on the City’s investment portfolio to the Mayor and the City
Council. The City’s investment operations are reviewed by the City Auditor and by the State Auditor.

As of December 31, 2011, the combined investment portfolios of the City, including SPU funds, totaled
$1,274 million at book value. The City’s Investment Pool is constituted solely of City funds. The City does
not invest any funds in other pools, with the exception of tax collection receipts initially held by King County.
For the 12-month period ending December 31, 2011, the yield on the City’s investment portfolio was 0.91%.
As of December 31, 2011, the average maturity of the portfolio was 822 days. Approximately 12%, or
$154.4 million, was invested in securities with maturities of three months or less. The City held no securities
with maturities longer than 15 years. Investments were allocated as follows:

Government-Sponsored Enterprises 77.4%
Taxable Municipal Bonds 8.2
Commercial Paper 6.1
Repurchase Agreements 5.2
U.S. Treasuries 3.0
Mortgage-Backed Securities 0.1

Interfund Loans. The City municipal code authorizes the Director of Finance, after consultation with the
Director of Administrative Services, the Budget Director, and the City Council Finance Committee Chair, to
approve interfund loans for a duration of up to 90 days and to establish a rate of interest on such loans.
Extension or renewal of interfund loans requires City Council approval by ordinance. The Director of Finance
also is authorized by City ordinance to make loans to individual funds participating in a common investment
portfolio by carrying funds in a negative cash position for a period of up to 90 days, or for a longer period upon
approval by ordinance, to the extent that such loans can be supported prudently by the common investment
portfolio and the borrowing fund is reasonably expected to be able to repay the loan. Loans of this type bear
interest at the common investment portfolio’s rate of return.

Risk Management

The City purchases excess liability insurance to address general, automobile, professional, public official, and
other exposures. The policies provide $40 million limits above a $6.5 million self-insured retention per
occurrence, but coverage excludes partial or complete failure of any dam. The City also purchases all risk
property insurance, including earthquake and flood perils, that provide up to $500 million in limits subject to a
schedule of deductibles. City hydroelectric generation and transmission equipment and certain other utility
systems and equipment are not covered by the property insurance policy.
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The City insures a primary level of fiduciary, crime liability, inland marine, and various commercial general
liability, medical, accidental death and dismemberment, and miscellaneous exposures. Surety bonds are
purchased for certain public officials, notary publics, and workers who are permanently and totally disabled
from a workplace injury or occupational disease.

Pension Plans

City employees are covered by one of the following defined benefit pension plans: SCERS, Firefighter’s
Pension Fund, Police Relief and Pension Fund, and Law Enforcement Officers’ and Fire Fighters’ Retirement
System (“LEOFF”). The first three are administered by the City; the State administers LEOFF through the
Department of Retirement Systems.

Nearly all permanent non-uniformed City employees, employees of the Seattle Public Library and certain
grandfathered employees of King County (and a predecessor agency of the County) participate in SCERS, a
single-employer public employee retirement system. SCERS estimated its total assets to be $1.813 billion as of
January 1, 2011.

Actuarial data for SCERS are determined through actuarial valuation. Historically, these reports were
prepared biennially, but in 2011 the City began preparing them annually. Unlike most public pension systems,
SCERS used the market value of assets to calculate its funding ratio in the past. Consequently, the full impact
of annual asset losses occurring in recent years was reflected in each actuarial valuation. From January 1,
2008, to January 1, 2010, the valuation ratio was reported as having fallen from 92.4% to 62.0%.

To improve its ability to manage short-term market volatility, the City adopted a five-year asset smoothing
methodology in 2011. The most recent actuarial valuation of SCERS was conducted by Milliman, Inc. as of
January 1, 2011, and reflects the following assumptions: investment return, 7.75%; price inflation, 3.50%;
expected annual average membership growth, 1.00%; and wage inflation, 3.50%. Based on this valuation, the
actuarial value of net assets available for benefits was $2.014 billion and the actuarial accrued liability was
$2.709 billion. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability declined from $1.008 billion on January 1, 2010, to
$695.4 million on January 1, 2011. The funding ratio increased from 62.0% on January 1, 2010 to 74.3%, due
to a variety of factors listed below, including the adoption of the five-year asset smoothing methodology.

SOURCES OF CHANGE FUNDING RATIO
January 1, 2010, Actuarial Valuation 62.0%
Expected Valuation to Valuation Change (0.6%)
Asset Gain/(Loss) on Market Value 3.0%
Salary Less/(Greater) than Expected 2.2%
Assumptions Changes (Demographic) 0.6%
Asset Smoothing Adoption 7.5%
Other (0.4%)
Total Change 12.3%
January 1, 2011, Actuarial Valuation 74.3%

According to the January 1, 2010, actuarial valuation, the actuarial required contribution (“ARC”) was
calculated to be 25.03% of pay based on the then-current mark to market valuation methodology. Although
the total contribution rate increased from 16.06% to 18.06% from 2010 to 2011, it was still insufficient to fully
amortize the system’s unfunded actuarial accrued liability. With the adoption of the smoothing methodology,
the January 1, 2011, actuarial valuation showed that the ARC would be 21.30% for 2012. Subsequent
revisions to this valuation, including lowering the credit interest rate from 5.75% to 4.47%, further reduced the
ARC to 21.04%. The credit interest rate is the rate at which member contributions earn interest if such
contributions are withdrawn from the system.

On November 21, 2011, the City Council passed Resolution 31334 affirming the City’s intent to fully fund the
actuarial required contribution each year with its budget. The City’s adopted 2012 Budget fully funds the
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ARC. Under the City’s existing collective bargaining contracts, most of which expire at the end of 2013,
increases in the employee contribution rate are limited to a total of 2.00%. The City is exploring options for
managing the system more cost-effectively in the long term.

Contribution rates for SCERS increased from 2010 to 2012 as shown below:

YEAR EMPLOYER EMPLOYEE TOTAL
2009 8.03% 8.03% 16.06%
2010 8.03% 8.03% 16.06%
2011 9.03% 9.03% 18.06%
2012 11.01% 10.03% 21.04%

Employee and employer contributions are expected to be $60.2 million in 2012, of which approximately 34%
is from general government departments. City utilities pay the employer share for their employees.

The Firefighter’s Pension Fund and the Police Relief and Pension Fund are single-employer pension plans that
were established by the City in compliance with State law. Since the effective date of LEOFF in 1970, no
payroll for employees was covered under these City plans, and the primary liability for pension benefits for
these City plans shifted from the City to the State. However, the City was still liable for all benefits of
employees in service at that time plus certain future benefits. The City is not required to adopt a plan to fund
the actuarial accrued liability of these City plans.

In 1994, the City established an actuarial fund for the Firefighter’s Pension Fund and adopted a policy of fully
funding the actuarial accrued liability by the year 2018 (which was subsequently extended to 2023). For 2011,
the City has elected to make the annual required contribution but not to make any additional contribution
toward funding the actuarial accrued liability of the Firefighter’s Pension Fund. As of January 1, 2011, the
actuarial value of net assets available for benefits in the Firefighter’s Pension Fund was $11.4 million, and the
actuarial accrued liability was $126.8 million. As a result, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability was
$115.4 million and the funding ratio was 9.0%. The City’s employer contribution to the fund in 2010 was
$7.3 million; there were no current member contributions.

The City funds the Police Relief and Pension Fund as benefits become due. As of January 1, 2011, the
unfunded actuarial accrued liability in the Police Relief and Pension Fund was $136.4 million. The City’s
employer contribution to the fund in 2011 was $8.7 million; there were no current member contributions.

LEOFF is a cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement system comprised of two separate defined-benefit plans.
LEOFF participants who joined the system by September 30, 1977, are Plan 1 members. Those who joined
afterward are Plan 2 members. Membership in LEOFF includes all full-time, fully compensated local law
enforcement officers and firefighters in the State.

Actuarial data for LEOFF are determined annually by the Office of the State Actuary. The most recent
actuarial valuation of LEOFF was conducted as of June 30, 2010. Based on this valuation, the actuarial
accrued surplus of Plan 1 was $1.180 billion and the funded ratio was 127%; the actuarial accrued surplus of
Plan 2 was $1.179 billion and the funded ratio was 124%.

Employee and employer contribution rates (calculated as a percentage of covered payroll) are developed by the
Office of the State Actuary to fully fund LEOFF. The contribution rates for Plan 1 are currently zero for
employees and 0.16% for employers, all of which is allocated to administrative expenses. The contribution
rates for Plan 2 are currently 6.36% for employees, 5.24% for employers (which includes 0.16% for
administrative expenses), and 3.38% for the State. The City’s employer contributions in 2011 were $14,000 for
Plan 1 and $12.1 million for Plan 2.

For additional information regarding the City’s retirement plans, see Note 11 to the City’s Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report for 2010, which may be obtained from the Department of Finance and
Administrative Services and is available at Attp:/ /www.seattle.gov/cafrs/ default. htm, which website address is not
incorporated herein by reference.
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Post-Employment Retirement Benefits

The City has liability for two types of other post-employment benefits (“OPEB”): (i) an implicit rate subsidy
for health insurance covering employees retiring under SCERS or LEOFF Plan 2 and dependents of
employees retiring under LEOFF Plan 1 and (ii) medical benefits for eligible beneficiaries of the City’s
Firefighter’s Pension Fund and Police Relief and Pension Fund. The implicit rate subsidy is the difference
between (i) what retirees pay for their health insurance as a result of being included with active employees for
rate-setting purposes and (ii) the estimated required premiums if their rates were set based on claims
experience of the retirees as a group separate from active employees. The City has assessed its OPEB liability
in order to satisfy the expanded reporting requirements specified by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board Statement No. 45 (“GASB 45”). While GASB 45 requires reporting and disclosure of the unfunded
OPEB liability, it does not require that it be funded. The City funds its OPEB on a pay-as-you-go basis.

As of January 1, 2010, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability for the implicit rate subsidy was $93.5 million;
the City’s contribution in 2010 was $3.2 million. As of January 1, 2011, the unfunded actuarial accrued
liability for OPEB in the City’s Firefighter’s Pension Fund was $241.4 million; the City’s contribution in 2010
was $10.4 million. As of January 1, 2011, the unfunded actuarial accrued liability for OPEB in the Police
Relief and Pension Fund was $261.0 million; the City’s contribution in 2010 was $12.0 million.

For additional information regarding the City’s OPEB, see Note 11 to the City’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report for 2011, which may be obtained from the Department of Finance and Administrative
Services and is available at Attp:/ /www.seattle.gov/ cafrs/default. htm, which website address is not incorporated
herein by reference.

Labor Relations

The City has 28 separate departments and offices with approximately 11,500 regular and temporary
employees. Twenty-six different unions and 47 bargaining units represent approximately 76% of the City’s
regular employees. The City has agreements with the coalition of City unions (representing most of the non-
uniformed employees) that expire at the end of 2013. Agreements with the Seattle Dispatchers’ Guild;
International Association of Machinists and Aerospace Workers, District Lodge 160, Local 289 and 79;
Firefighters Local 27; Fire Chiefs Local 2898; and the Seattle Police Management Association expired at the
end of 2011. Two agreements with the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers Local 77 expire on
January 22, 2013. The City’s labor agreement with the Seattle Police Officers’ Guild expired at the end of
2010. The City is actively negotiating renewals of these contracts. Negotiations also continue for two new
bargaining units that have not been covered by contracts in the past; the Seattle Prosecuting Attorneys and
WSCCCE, Local 21 (City Light).

INITIATIVE AND REFERENDUM

State-wide Measures

Under the State Constitution, Washington voters may initiate legislation (either directly to the voters, or to the
State Legislature and then, if not enacted, to the voters) and require that legislation passed by the State
Legislature be referred to the voters. Any law approved in this manner by a majority of the voters may not be
amended or repealed by the State Legislature within a period of two years following enactment, except by a
vote of two-thirds of all the members elected to each house of the Legislature. After two years, the law is
subject to amendment or repeal by the State Legislature in the same manner as other laws. The Washington
State Constitution may not be amended by initiative.

Initiatives and referenda are submitted to the voters upon receipt of a petition signed by at least 8% (initiative)
and 4% (referenda) of the number of voters registered and voting for the office of Governor at the preceding
regular gubernatorial election.

In recent years, several State-wide initiative petitions to repeal or reduce the growth of taxes and fees,
including City taxes, have garnered sufficient signatures to reach the ballot. Some of those tax and fee
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initiative measures have been approved by the voters and, of those, some remain in effect while others have
been invalidated by the courts. Tax and fee initiative measures continue to be filed, but it cannot be predicted
whether any more such initiatives might gain sufficient signatures to qualify for submission to the State
Legislature and/or the voters or, if submitted, whether they ultimately would become law.

Local Measures

Under the City Charter, City voters may initiate City Charter amendments and local legislation, including
modifications to existing legislation, and through referendum may prevent legislation passed by the City
Council from becoming law.

LEGAL AND TAX INFORMATION

No Litigation Affecting the Bonds

There is no litigation pending with process properly served on the City questioning the validity of the Bonds or
the power and authority of the City to issue the Bonds.

Other Litigation

Various lawsuits and claims are pending against the City involving claims for money damages. (See the
discussion of claims in Appendix B—The City’s 2010 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report—Note 14,
Contingencies.) Based on its past experience, the City has concluded that its ability to repay the Bonds on a
timely basis will not be impaired by the aggregate amount of uninsured liabilities of the City and the timing of
any anticipated payments of judgments that might result from suits and claims. For a description of litigation
relating to the Water System, see “Water System—Litigation and Claims.”

Approval of Counsel

Legal matters incident to the authorization, issuance and sale of the Bonds by the City are subject to the
approving legal opinion of Foster Pepper PLLC, Seattle, Washington, Bond Counsel. A form of the opinion
of Bond Counsel with respect to the Bonds is attached hereto as Appendix B. The opinion of Bond Counsel is
given based on factual representations made to Bond Counsel and under existing law as of the date of initial
delivery of the Bonds. Bond Counsel assumes no obligation to revise or supplement its opinion to reflect any
facts or circumstances that may thereafter come to its attention or any changes in law that may thereafter
occur. The opinion of Bond Counsel is an expression of its professional judgment on the matters expressly
addressed in its opinion and does not constitute a guarantee of result. Bond Counsel will be compensated only
upon the issuance and sale of the Bonds.

Limitations on Remedies

Any remedies available to the registered owners of the Bonds upon the occurrence of an event of default under
the Bond Legislation are in many respects dependent upon judicial actions, which are in turn often subject to
discretion and delay and could be both expensive and time-consuming to obtain. If the City fails to comply
with its covenants under the Bond Legislation or to pay principal of or interest on the Bonds, there can be no
assurance that available remedies will be adequate to fully protect the interests of the registered owners of the
Bonds.

In addition to the limitations on remedies contained in the Bond Legislation, the rights and obligations under
the Bonds and the Bond Legislation may be limited by and are subject to bankruptcy, insolvency,
reorganization, fraudulent conveyance, moratorium and other laws relating to or affecting creditors’ rights, to
the application of equitable principles, and to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases. The
opinion to be delivered by Foster Pepper PLLC, as Bond Counsel, concurrently with the issuance of the
Bonds, will be subject to limitations regarding bankruptcy, insolvency and other laws relating to or affecting
creditors’ rights. The various other legal opinions to be delivered concurrently with the issuance of the Bonds
will be similarly qualified. A copy of the proposed form of opinion of Bond Counsel is set forth in
Appendix B.
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Tax Exemption

Exclusion from Gross Income. In the opinion of Bond Counsel, under existing federal law and assuming
compliance with applicable requirements of the Code that must be satisfied subsequent to the issue date of the
Bonds, interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes and is not an item
of tax preference for purposes of the alternative minimum tax applicable to individuals.

Continuing Requirements. The City is required to comply with certain requirements of the Code after the date of
issuance of the Bonds in order to maintain the exclusion of the interest on the Bonds from gross income for
federal income tax purposes, including, without limitation, requirements concerning the qualified use of
proceeds of the Bonds and the facilities financed or refinanced with proceeds of the Bonds, limitations on
investing gross proceeds of the Bonds in higher yielding investments in certain circumstances, and the
requirement to comply with the arbitrage rebate requirement to the extent applicable to the Bonds. The City
has covenanted in the Bond Legislation to comply with those requirements, but if the City fails to comply with
those requirements, interest on the Bonds could become taxable retroactive to the date of issuance of the
Bonds. Bond Counsel has not undertaken and does not undertake to monitor the City’s compliance with such
requirements.

Corporate Alternative Minimum Tax. While interest on the Bonds also is not an item of tax preference for
purposes of the alternative minimum tax applicable to corporations, under Section 55 of the Code, tax-exempt
interest, including interest on the Bonds, received by corporations is taken into account in the computation of
adjusted current earnings for purposes of the alternative minimum tax applicable to corporations (as defined
for federal income tax purposes). Under the Code, alternative minimum taxable income of a corporation will
be increased by 75% of the excess of the corporation’s adjusted current earnings (including any tax-exempt
interest) over the corporation’s alternative minimum taxable income determined without regard to such
increase. A corporation’s alternative minimum taxable income, so computed, that is in excess of an
exemption of $40,000, which exemption will be reduced (but not below zero) by 25% of the amount by which
the corporation’s alternative minimum taxable income exceeds $150,000, is then subject to a 20% minimum
tax.

A small business corporation is exempt from the corporate alternative minimum tax for any taxable year
beginning after December 31, 1997, if its average annual gross receipts during the three-taxable-year period
beginning after December 31, 1993, did not exceed $5,000,000, and its average annual gross receipts during
each successive three-taxable-year period thereafter ending before the relevant taxable year did not exceed
$7,500,000.

Tax on Certain Passive Investment Income of S Corporations. Under Section 1375 of the Code, certain excess net
passive investment income, including interest on the Bonds, received by an S corporation (a corporation
treated as a partnership for most federal tax purposes) that has Subchapter C earnings and profits at the close
of the taxable year may be subject to federal income taxation at the highest rate applicable to corporations if
more than 25% of the gross receipts of such S corporation is passive investment income.

Foreign Branch Profits Tax. Interest on the Bonds may be subject to the foreign branch profits tax imposed by
Section 884 of the Code when the Bonds are owned by, and effectively connected with a trade or business of, a
United States branch of a foreign corporation.

Possible Consequences of Tax Compliance Audit. The Internal Revenue Service (the “IRS”) has established a
general audit program to determine whether issuers of tax-exempt obligations, such as the Bonds, are in
compliance with requirements of the Code that must be satisfied in order for interest on those obligations to
be, and continue to be, excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes. Bond Counsel cannot
predict whether the IRS would commence an audit of the Bonds. Depending on all the facts and
circumstances and the type of audit involved, it is possible that commencement of an audit of the Bonds could
adversely affect the market value and liquidity of the Bonds until the audit is concluded, regardless of its
ultimate outcome.
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Certain Other Federal Tax Consequences

Bonds Not “Qualified Tax-Exempt Obligations” for Financial Institutions. Section 265 of the Code provides that
100% of any interest expense incurred by banks and other financial institutions for interest allocable to tax-
exempt obligations acquired after August 7, 1986, will be disallowed as a tax deduction. However, if the tax-
exempt obligations are obligations other than private activity bonds, are issued by a governmental unit that,
together with all entities subordinate to it, does not reasonably anticipate issuing more than $10,000,000 of tax-
exempt obligations (other than private activity bonds and other obligations not required to be included in such
calculation) in the current calendar year, and are designated by the governmental unit as “qualified tax-exempt
obligations,” only 20% of any interest expense deduction allocable to those obligations will be disallowed.

The City is a governmental unit that, together with all subordinate entities, reasonably anticipates issuing more
than $10,000,000 of tax-exempt obligations (other than private activity bonds and other obligations not
required to be included in such calculation) during the current calendar year and has not designated the Bonds
as “qualified tax-exempt obligations” for purposes of the 80% financial institution interest expense deduction.
Therefore, no interest expense of a financial institution allocable to the Bonds is deductible for federal income
tax purposes.

Reduction of Loss Reserve Deductions for Property and Casualty Insurance Companies. Under Section 832 of the
Code, interest on the Bonds received by property and casualty insurance companies will reduce tax deductions
for loss reserves otherwise available to such companies by an amount equal to 15% of tax-exempt interest
received during the taxable year.

Effect on Certain Social Security and Retirement Benefits. Section 86 of the Code requires recipients of certain
Social Security and certain Railroad Retirement benefits to take receipts or accruals of interest on the Bonds
into account in determining gross income.

Other Possible Federal Tax Consequences. Receipt of interest on the Bonds may have other federal tax
consequences as to which prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult their own tax advisors.

Potential Future Federal Tax Law Changes. From time to time, legislative proposals are introduced in Congress
which, if enacted, could require changes in the description of federal tax matters relating to the Bonds set forth
above or adversely affect the market value of the Bonds. It cannot be predicted whether future legislation may
be proposed or enacted that would affect the federal tax treatment of interest received on the Bonds.
Prospective purchasers of the Bonds should consult with their own tax advisors regarding any proposed or
pending legislation that would change the federal tax treatment of interest on the Bonds.

Original Issue Discount. The Bonds maturing on September 1, 2029, have been sold at a price reflecting original
issue discount (“Discount Bonds”). Under existing law, the original issue discount in the selling price of each
Discount Bond, to the extent properly allocable to each owner of such Discount Bond, is excluded from gross
income for federal income tax purposes with respect to such owner. The original issue discount is the excess
of the stated redemption price at maturity of such Discount Bond over the initial offering price to the public,
excluding underwriters and other intermediaries, at which price a substantial amount of the Discount Bonds of
such maturity were sold.

Under Section 1288 of the Code, original issue discount on tax-exempt bonds accrues on a compound basis.
The amount of original issue discount that accrues to an owner of a Discount Bond during any accrual period
generally equals (i) the issue price of such Discount Bond plus the amount of original issue discount accrued in
all prior accrual periods, multiplied by (ii) the yield to maturity of such Discount Bond (determined on the
basis of compounding at the close of each accrual period and properly adjusted for the length of the accrual
period), less (iii) any interest payable on such Discount Bond during such accrual period. The amount of
original issue discount so accrued in a particular accrual period will be considered to be received ratably on
each day of the accrual period, will be excluded from gross income for federal income tax purposes, and will
increase the owner's tax basis in such Discount Bond. Any gain realized by an owner from a sale, exchange,
payment or redemption of a Discount Bond will be treated as gain from the sale or exchange of such Discount
Bond.
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The portion of original issue discount that accrues in each year to an owner of a Discount Bond may result in
certain collateral federal income tax consequences. The accrual of such portion of the original issue discount
will be included in the calculation of alternative minimum tax liability as described above, and may result in
an alternative minimum tax liability even though the owner of such Discount Bond will not receive a
corresponding cash payment until a later year.

Owners who purchase Discount Bonds in the initial public offering but at a price different from the first
offering price at which a substantial amount of those Discount Bonds were sold to the public, or who do not
purchase Discount Bonds in the initial public offering, should consult their own tax advisors with respect to
the tax consequences of the ownership of such Discount Bonds. Owners of Discount Bonds who sell or
otherwise dispose of such Discount Bonds prior to maturity should consult their own tax advisors with respect
to the amount of original issue discount accrued over the period such Discount Bonds have been held and the
amount of taxable gain or loss to be recognized upon that sale or other disposition of Discount Bonds.
Owners of Discount Bonds also should consult their own tax advisors with respect to state and local tax
consequences of owning such Discount Bonds.

Original Issue Premium. The Bonds maturing on September 1 in the years 2012 through and including 2028 and
2030 through and including 2034 have been sold at prices reflecting original issue premium (“Premium
Bonds”). An amount equal to the excess of the purchase price of a Premium Bond over its stated redemption
price at maturity constitutes premium on such Premium Bond. A purchaser of a Premium Bond must
amortize any premium over such Premium Bond's term using constant yield principles, based on the
purchaser's yield to maturity. The amount of amortizable premium allocable to an interest accrual period for a
Premium Bond will offset a like amount of qualified stated interest on such Premium Bond allocable to that
accrual period, and may affect the calculation of alternative minimum tax liability described above. As
premium is amortized, the purchaser's basis in such Premium Bond is reduced by a corresponding amount,
resulting in an increase in the gain (or decrease in the loss) to be recognized for federal income tax purposes
upon a sale or disposition of such Premium Bond prior to its maturity. Even though the purchaser's basis is
reduced, no federal income tax deduction is allowed. Purchasers of Premium Bonds, whether at the time of
initial issuance or subsequent thereto, should consult with their own tax advisors with respect to the
determination and treatment of premium for federal income tax purposes and with respect to state and local
tax consequences of owning such Premium Bonds.

Continuing Disclosure Undertaking

Basic Undertaking to Provide Annual Financial Information and Notice of Listed Events. To meet the requirements of
United States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) Rule 15¢2-12(b)(5) (“Rule 15¢2-12”), as
applicable to a participating underwriter for the Bonds, the City will undertake in the Resolution (the
“Undertaking”) for the benefit of holders of the Bonds, as follows.

Annual Financial Information. The City will provide or cause to be provided, either directly or through a
designated agent, to the Municipal Securities Rulemaking Board (the “MSRB”), in an electronic format as
prescribed by the MSRB:

6] annual financial information and operating data of the type included in this Official Statement as
generally described below under “Type of Annual Financial Information Undertaken to be Provided”;
and

(i) timely notice (not in excess of ten business days after the occurrence of the event) of the occurrence of

any of the following events with respect to the Bonds:

(a) principal and interest payment delinquencies;

(b) non-payment related defaults, if material;

(c) unscheduled draws on debt service reserves reflecting financial difficulties;
(d) unscheduled draws on credit enhancements reflecting financial difficulties;

(e) substitution of credit or liquidity providers, or their failure to perform;

42



(f) adverse tax opinions, the issuance by the Internal Revenue Service of proposed or final
determinations of taxability, Notice of Proposed Issue (IRS Form 5701—TEB), or other material
notices or determinations with respect to the tax status of the Bonds;

(g) modifications to rights of holders of the Bonds, if material;

(h) Bond calls (other than scheduled mandatory redemptions of Term Bonds), if material, and tender
offers;

(i) defeasances;

(j) release, substitution, or sale of property securing repayment of the Bonds, if material;

(k) rating changes;

() bankruptcy, insolvency, receivership, or similar event of the City, as such “Bankruptcy Events”

are defined in Rule 15¢2-12;

(m) the consummation of a merger, consolidation, or acquisition involving the City or the sale of all
or substantially all of the assets of the City, other than in the ordinary course of business, the entry
into a definitive agreement to undertake such an action or the termination of a definitive
agreement relating to any such actions, other than pursuant to its terms, if material; and

(n) appointment of a successor or additional trustee or the change of name of a trustee, if material.

The City also will provide or cause to be provided to the MSRB timely notice of a failure by the City to
provide required annual financial information on or before the date specified below.

Type of Annual Financial Information Undertaken to be Provided. The annual financial information that the City
undertakes to provide will consist of:

6] annual financial statements of the Water System, prepared in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles applicable to governmental units (except as otherwise noted therein), as such
principles may be changed from time to time and as permitted by State law; which statements will not
be audited, except that if and when audited financial statements are otherwise prepared and available
to the City they will be provided,;

(i1) a statement of authorized, issued and outstanding bonded debt secured by Net Revenue of the Water
System;

(1i1) debt service coverage ratios;

@iv) summary operating statistics for the Water System, including population served, water sales revenue

and billed water use; and

) current water rates.

Annual financial information, as described above, will be provided to the MSRB not later than the last day of
the ninth month after the end of each fiscal year of the City (currently, a fiscal year ending December 31), as
such fiscal year may be changed as permitted or required by State law, commencing with the City’s fiscal year
ended December 31, 2012. The annual information may be provided in a single or in multiple documents, and
may be incorporated by specific reference to documents available to the public on the Internet website of the
MSRB or filed with the SEC.

Amendment of Undertaking. The Undertaking is subject to amendment after the primary offering of the Bonds
without the consent of any holder of any Bond, or any broker, dealer, municipal securities dealer, participating
underwriter, rating agency, or the MSRB, under the circumstances and in the manner permitted by Rule 15¢2-
12.

The City will give notice to the MSRB of the substance (or provide a copy) of any amendment to the

Undertaking and a brief statement of the reasons for the amendment. If the amendment changes the type of
annual financial information to be provided, the annual financial information containing the amended
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information will include a narrative explanation of the effect of that change on the type of information to be
provided.

Termination of Undertaking. The City’s obligations under the Undertaking will terminate upon the legal
defeasance, prior repayment, or payment in full of all of the then outstanding Bonds. In addition, the City’s
obligations under the Undertaking will terminate if those provisions of Rule 15¢2-12 that require the City to
comply with the Undertaking become legally inapplicable in respect of the Bonds for any reason, as confirmed
by an opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel or other counsel familiar with federal securities laws
delivered to the City, and the City provides timely notice of such termination to the MSRB.

Remedy for Failure to Comply with Undertaking. The City has agreed to proceed with due diligence to cause any
failure to comply with the Undertaking to be corrected as soon as practicable after the City learns of that
failure. No failure by the City or any other obligated person to comply with the Undertaking will constitute a
default in respect of the Bonds. The sole remedy of any holder of a Bond will be to take such actions as that
holder deems necessary, including seeking an order of specific performance from an appropriate court, to
compel the City or other obligated person to comply with the Undertaking.

Other Continuing Disclosure Undertakings of the City. The City has entered into undertakings to provide annual
information and the notice of the occurrence of certain events with respect to all bonds issued by the City
subject to Rule 15¢2-12. The City believes that it has not failed to comply, in any material respect, with all
such undertakings.

OTHER BOND INFORMATION

Ratings on the Bonds

The Bonds have been rated “Aal” and “AA+” by Moody’s Investors Service, Inc. and Standard & Poor’s
Ratings Services, respectively. The ratings reflect only the views of the rating agencies, and an explanation of
the significance of the ratings may be obtained from each rating agency. No application was made to any
other rating agency for the purpose of obtaining an additional rating on the Bonds. There is no assurance that
the ratings will be retained for any given period of time or that the ratings will not be revised downward or
withdrawn entirely by the rating agencies if, in their judgment, circumstances so warrant. Any such
downward revision or withdrawal of the ratings will be likely to have an adverse effect on the market price of
the Bonds.

Purchaser of the Bonds

The Bonds are being purchased by Citigroup Global Markets Inc. at a price of $283,163,231.60 and will be
reoffered at a price of $284,285,450.60. The purchaser of the Bonds may offer and sell the Bonds to certain
dealers (including dealers depositing the Bonds into investment trusts) and others at prices lower than the
initial offering prices corresponding to the yields set forth on page i of this Official Statement, and such initial
offering prices may be changed from time to time by such purchaser. After the initial public offering, the
public offering prices may be varied from time to time.

In connection with the offering of the Bonds, the purchaser of the Bonds may overallot or effect transactions
which stabilize or maintain the market price of the Bonds at levels above that which might otherwise prevail in
the open market. Such stabilizing, if commenced, may be discontinued or recommenced at any time.

Fees Contingent

Some of the fees of the Financial Advisor and Bond Counsel are contingent upon the sale of the Bonds.

Official Statement

So far as any statements are made in this Official Statement involving matters of opinion or of estimates,
whether or not so expressly stated, they are set forth as such and not as representations of fact, and no
representation is made that any of the estimates will be realized. Information concerning the City, SPU, and
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the Water System contained in this Official Statement has been furnished by the City. Neither this Official
Statement nor any statement which may have been made orally or in writing is to be construed as a contract
with the owners of any of the Bonds.

Neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale of the Bonds will, under any circumstances, create
any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the City since the date hereof. The City
specifically disclaims any obligations to update any forward-looking statements to reflect occurrences or
unanticipated events or circumstances after the date of this Official Statement, except as otherwise expressly
provided under “Legal and Tax Information—Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.”

The execution and delivery of this Official Statement have been duly authorized by the City.
The City of Seattle
By: /s/ Glen M. Lee

Glen M. Lee
Director of Finance
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FOSTER PEPPER..

[FORM OF APPROVING LEGAL OPINION]

The City of Seattle, Washington

Re: The City of Seattle, Washington
$238,770,000 Water System Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2012

We have served as bond counsel to The City of Seattle, Washington (the “City”), in connection
with the issuance of the above referenced bonds (the “Bonds™), and in that capacity have examined such
law and such certified proceedings and other documents as we have deemed necessary to render this
opinion. As to matters of fact material to this opinion and of which attorneys within the firm involved with
the issuance of the Bonds have no independent knowledge, we have relied upon representations contained
in the certified proceedings and other certifications of public officials furnished to us.

The Bonds are issued pursuant to the laws of the State of Washington and Ordinance 121939, as
amended, and Resolution 31382 of the City (collectively, the “Bond Legislation”) to carry out the
refunding of all or a portion of the City’s outstanding Water System Revenue Bonds, 2001, Water System
and Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2003 and Water System Revenue Bonds, 2004, and to pay the issuance
costs of selling the Bonds, all as set forth in the Bond Legislation.

Reference is made to the Bond Legislation for the definitions of capitalized terms used and not
otherwise defined herein.

The Bonds are special limited obligations of the City payable solely out of the Water Revenue
Bond Account (the “Bond Account”), into which account the City irrevocably has bound itself to pay all
ULID Assessments upon their collection (except for ULID Assessments deposited in a construction
account) and, out of the Net Revenue, certain fixed amounts without regard to any fixed proportion, namely
amounts sufficient to pay the principal of and interest on the Parity Bonds and net payments on Parity
Payment Agreements as they respectively become due and to fund the Reserve Requirement, all at the
times and in the manner set forth in the Bond Legislation.

The Net Revenue and all money and investments held in the Bond Account (including the Reserve
Subaccount therein) and the Rate Stabilization Account have been pledged to the payment of the Parity
Bonds and to make payments into the Reserve Subaccount required by the Bond Legislation and Parity
Bond Authorizing Ordinances, and this pledge constitutes a lien and charge upon the Net Revenue prior
and superior to any other charges whatsoever.

Under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the “Code™), the City is required to comply
with certain requirements after the date of issuance of the Bonds in order to maintain the exclusion of the
interest on the Bonds from gross income for federal income tax purposes, including, without limitation,
requirements concerning the qualified use of Bond proceeds and the facilities financed or refinanced with
Bond proceeds, limitations on investing gross proceeds of the Bonds in higher yielding investments in
certain circumstances and the arbitrage rebate requirement to the extent applicable to the Bonds. The City
has covenanted in the Bond Legislation to comply with those requirements, but if the City fails to comply

TEL: 206.447.4400 FAX: 206.447.9700 1111 THIRD AVENUE, SUITE 3400 SEATTLE, WASHINGTON 98101-3299 www.FOSTER.com

SEATTLE wasHINGTON SPOKANE wWASHINGTON
51217390.1



The City of Seattle, Washington
[Date]
Page 2

with those requirements, interest on the Bonds could become taxable retroactive to the date of issuance of
the Bonds. We have not undertaken and do not undertake to monitor the City’s compliance with such
requirements.

As of the date of initial delivery of the Bonds to the purchaser thereof and full payment therefor, it
is our opinion that under existing law:

1. The City is a duly organized and legally existing first class city under the laws of the State
of Washington;

2. The City has duly authorized and approved the Bond Legislation, and the Bonds are issued
in full compliance with the provisions of the Constitution and laws of the State of Washington, the Bond
Legislation and the ordinances of the City relating thereto;

3. The Bonds constitute valid obligations of the City payable solely out of the Net Revenue of
the Water System and money in the Bond Account (including the Reserve Subaccount therein) and the Rate
Stabilization Account, except only to the extent that enforcement of payment may be limited by
bankruptcy, insolvency or other laws affecting creditors’ rights and by principles of equity if equitable
remedies are sought;

4, The Bonds are not general obligations of the City; and

5. Assuming compliance by the City after the date of issuance of the Bonds with applicable
requirements of the Code, the interest on the Bonds is excluded from gross income for federal income tax
purposes and is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the alternative minimum tax applicable to
individuals; however, while interest on the Bonds also is not an item of tax preference for purposes of the
alternative minimum tax applicable to corporations, interest on the Bonds received by corporations is to be
taken into account in the computation of adjusted current earnings for purposes of the alternative minimum
tax applicable to corporations, interest on the Bonds received by certain S corporations may be subject to
tax, and interest on the Bonds received by foreign corporations with United States branches may be subject
to a foreign branch profits tax. We express no opinion regarding any other federal tax consequences of
receipt of interest on the Bonds.

This opinion is given as of the date hereof, and we assume no obligation to revise or supplement
this opinion to reflect any facts or circumstances that may hereafter come to our attention, or any changes
in law that may hereafter occur.

We express no opinion herein concerning the completeness or accuracy of any official statement,
offering circular or other sales or disclosure material relating to the issuance of the Bonds or otherwise used
in connection with the Bonds. We bring to your attention the fact the foregoing opinions are expressions of
our professional judgment on the matters expressly addressed and do not constitute guarantees of result.

Respectfully submitted,

51217390.1
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

To the Director of Seattle Public Utilities
Water Fund
Seattle, Washington

We have audited the accompanying balance sheets of Seattle Public Utilities - Water Fund (the
“Fund”), as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related statements of revenues, expenses and
changes in net assets and cash flows for the years then ended. These financial statements are the
responsibility of the Fund’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audits to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
consideration of internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Fund’s internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we express no such
opinion. An audit also includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation.
We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Seattle Public Utilities - Water Fund as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the
results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended, in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

The accompanying management discussion and analysis is not part of the basic financial statements
but is supplementary information required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America. This information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required
by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America,
which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic
financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial
statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide
any assurance.



Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the basic financial statements.
The supplemental information following the financial statements is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The supplemental information following
the financial statements has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Seattle, Washington
April 25,2012



SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES - WATER FUND
(An Enterprise Fund of the City of Seattle)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 AND 2010

As management of Seattle Public Utilities (“SPU”), a department of the City of Seattle (the “City”), we offer
readers of SPU’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the
Water Fund (the “Fund”) for the fiscal years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. The revenues, expenses,
assets, and liabilities of Seattle’s water system are recorded in the Water Fund, the functions of which are
primarily supported by user fees and charges charged to customers. The financial situation of other aspects
of Seattle City government, including other utility services and general government operations, are reported
elsewhere.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Fund’s financial statements. The
financial statements include Management’s Discussion and Analysis and basic financial statements with
accompanying notes.

Basic Financial Statements - The basic financial statements of the Fund report information about the Fund
using accounting methods similar to those used by private sector companies. These statements offer short-
term and long-term financial information about its activities. The basic financial statements begin on
page 11 of this report and are comprised of three components: (1) Balance Sheets, (2) Statements of
Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets, and (3) Statements of Cash Flows.

The Balance Sheets present information, as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, on all of the Fund'’s assets and
liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net assets. They also provide information about
the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets), obligations to the Fund’s creditors (liabilities),
and provide the basis for assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the Fund.

The Statements of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets present changes in the Fund’s net assets
for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. All changes in net assets are reported when the
underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. These
statements reflect the results of the Fund’s operations for the years identified to provide information about
the Fund’s credit worthiness and its ability to successfully recover all its costs through service fees and
other charges.

The Statements of Cash Flows are required to provide information about the Fund’s cash receipts and cash
payments during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010. To provide answers to questions about
sources, uses, and impacts to cash, these statements report cash receipts, cash payments, and net changes in
cash resulting from operations, investing and financing activities for the reporting period.

Notes to the Financial Statements - The notes are an integral part of the financial statements. They
provide additional disclosures that are essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the financial
statements, such as for certain estimates and financing details. The notes to the financial statements begin
on page 16 of this report.




SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES - WATER FUND
(An Enterprise Fund of the City of Seattle)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 AND 2010

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

Increases or decreases in net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of whether the Fund’s financial
position is improving or deteriorating. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the Fund’s assets exceeded
liabilities, resulting in surpluses in total net assets of $312.7 million and $310.9 million, respectively. During
these years, the Fund’s overall position improved, with increases in net assets amounting to $1.8 million
(0.6%) and $0.7 million (0.2%) during 2011 and 2010, respectively. The following summary balance sheets
present the assets of the Fund and show the mix of liabilities and net assets used to acquire these assets:

SUMMARY BALANCE SHEETS
2011 2010 2009
ASSETS
Current assets $ 38,558,607 $ 40,383,090 $ 36,865,593
Capital assets, net 1,203,705,381 1,204,705,000 1,174,893,172
Restricted, deferred and other 140,023,920 170,315,553 90,748,661
Total assets 1,382,287,908 1,415,403,643 1,302,507,426
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities 66,665,963 67,597,206 64,312,832
Revenue bonds 961,925,299 993,907,949 890,018,584
Other 41,018,801 43,017,248 38,004,221
Total liabilities 1,069,610,063 1,104,522,403 992,335,637
NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 290,541,426 275,465,946 297,764,998
Restricted 27,646,433 25,143,871 19,608,399
Unrestricted accumulated surplus (deficit) (5,510,014) 10,271,423 (7,202,108)
TOTAL NET ASSETS $ 312,677,845 $ 310,881,240 $ 310,171,789

2011 Compared to 2010

Assets - Current assets decreased $1.8 million (4.5%) from 2010. This decrease was due to decreases in
operating cash of $1.2 million, due from other City funds of $0.7 million, due from other governments of
$0.3 million and inventory of $.03 million. The decrease was offset by an increase in unbilled revenues of
$0.7 million.

Restricted, deferred, and other assets decreased $30.3 million (17.8%) over 2010. The largest portion of the
change was due to reductions in the construction fund of $38.6 million and the revenue stabilization account
of $1.4 million. These decreases were offset by increases in other deferred charges of $9.2 million, mostly
due to charges for the Morse Lake Pump Plant, and in notes and contracts receivable of $0.5 million.

Liabilities - Current liabilities decreased $0.9 million (1.4%) from 2010. Most notable decreases were due
to other City funds for $2.4 million, interest payable of $0.4 million, and other current liabilities and deferred
credits of $0.3 million. These decreases were offset by a $2.3 million increase in the current portion of
bonds payable.




SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES - WATER FUND
(An Enterprise Fund of the City of Seattle)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 AND 2010

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Other liabilities decreased $2.0 million (4.6%). The most significant factors affecting this were decreases in
deferred credits for the revenue stabilization account of $1.4 million, noncurrent public works trust loans
payable of $0.9 million, and other noncurrent liabilities of $0.7 million. This decrease was offset by increases
in Habitat Conservation Plan (“HCP”) liability of $0.7 million and other postemployment benefits of
$0.5 million.

Net Assets - Net assets invested in capital assets, net of debt, was the largest portion of the Fund’s net assets
($290.5 million or 92.9%). This amount reflects the Fund’s investment in capital assets such as land,
buildings, and equipment, less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The Fund uses
these assets to provide services to customers; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the Fund’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, the resources
needed to repay the debt are provided by fees paid by customers for services provided by these assets. In
2011, net assets invested in capital assets increased $15.1 million from 2010 primarily from a decrease in
debt offset by an increase in other deferred charges.

The Fund'’s restricted net assets ($27.6 million or 8.8%) represent resources that are subject to restrictions
on how they may be used. Restricted net assets increased $2.5 million primarily due to the restriction of
deferred charges.

The Fund’s unrestricted net deficit ($5.5 million deficit or 1.8%) represent resources that are not subject to
external restrictions and may be used to meet the Fund’s obligations to creditors. This portion decreased
$15.8 million in 2011.

2010 Compared to 2009

Assets - Current assets increased $3.5 million (9.5%) over 2009. This increase was primarily due to
increases in accounts receivable of $2.2 million, unbilled revenues of $1.1 million and the prepayments and
other of $1.1 million. The increase was offset by decreases in amounts due from other City funds and other
governments of $0.5 million and a reduction in the BPA account of $0.4 million.

Restricted, deferred, and other assets increased $79.6 million (87.7%) over 2009. The largest portion of the
change was due to an increase of $91.7 million from bonds issued January 21, 2010. In addition, the BPA
account increased $0.2 million and unamortized loan fees rose by $0.1 million. These increases were offset
by a $9.4 million decrease in other deferred charges and a $3.0 million withdrawal from the revenue
stabilization account.

Liabilities - Current liabilities increased $3.3 million (5.1%) from 2009. Most notable increases were a
$3.7 million increase in the current portion of bonds payable, a $2.8 million increase in interest payable, a
$2.8 million increase in amounts due to other City funds and $1.4 million increase for deferred credits
related to the Consolidated Customer Services System. These increases were offset by a $5.2 million
decrease in the current portion of the Habitat Conservation Plan and a $2.2 million decrease in
accounts payable.




SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES - WATER FUND
(An Enterprise Fund of the City of Seattle)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 AND 2010

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Other liabilities increased $5.0 million (13.2%). The most significant factors affecting this increase were a
$6.0 million loan from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act and $2.7 million loan from the Public
Works Trust Fund. This increase was offset by a $3.6 million decrease in deferred credits, mostly from a
withdrawal from the Revenue Stabilization account.

Net Assets - Net assets invested in capital assets, net of debt, was the largest portion of the Fund'’s net assets
($275.5 million or 88.6%). This amount reflects the Fund’s investment in capital assets such as land,
buildings, and equipment, less any related outstanding debt used to acquire those assets. The Fund uses
these assets to provide services to customers. Consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the Fund'’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, the resources
needed to repay the debt are provided by fees paid by customers for services provided by these assets. In
2010, net assets invested in capital assets decreased $22.3 million from 2009 primarily from an increase in
the debt related to capital assets placed in service.

The Fund’s restricted net assets ($25.1 million or 8.1%) represent resources that are subject to restrictions
on how they may be used. Restricted net assets increased $6.0 million primarily due to the restriction of
2010 bond proceeds set aside as a bond reserve.

The Fund’s unrestricted net assets ($10.3 million or 3.3%) represent resources that are not subject to
external restrictions and may be used to meet the Fund’s obligations to creditors. This portion increased

$17.5 million in 2010.

The following summary statements of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets present the annual
surplus of revenues over expenses (the change in net assets):

SUMMARY STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

2011 2010 2009
Operating revenues $ 194,572,652 $ 195,203,465 $ 191,369,588
Operating expenses (154,496,847) (164,238,625) (164,278,308)
Net operating income 40,075,805 30,964,840 27,091,280
Other expenses, net of other revenues (41,810,494) (42,438,947) (31,253,453)
Fees, contributions, and grants 3,531,294 12,183,558 10,033,491
Change in net assets $ 1,796,605 $ 709,451 $ 5,871,318

2011 Compared to 2010

Operating revenue decreased approximately $0.6 million (0.3%) over 2010. This change was driven by a
$1.0 million decrease in wholesale water revenue and $1.5 million reduction in the revenue stabilization
account. The decrease was offset by increases in direct service revenue of $0.9 million and other ancillary
revenue of $0.9 million.




SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES - WATER FUND
(An Enterprise Fund of the City of Seattle)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 AND 2010

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS (Continued)

Operating expenses decreased by $9.7 million (5.9%) primarily due to the decrease in City taxes of
$6.2 million due to the City tax rate decreasing from 19.87% to 15.54% as of January 1, 2011, and
amortization of deferred charges decreasing $3.7 million primarily as a result of the fully amortized Lane
settlement in 2010.

2010 Compared to 2009

Operating revenue increased approximately $3.8 million (2.0%) over 2009. This change was driven by an
increase in water rates effective January 1, 2010 and a surcharge added to rates through December 31, 2010
to recover costs related to the hydrant settlement (see Note 12), resulting in a $6.2 million rise in direct
customer water service revenue. In addition, $3.0 million was recognized as rate stabilization revenue.
These increases were offset by a decrease in wholesale revenue of $3.4 million due to a wetter than normal
summer and a reduction in new water services of $2.0 million due to a continued economic downturn.

Operating expenses decreased by $0.04 million (0.02%) due to several factors. Overall branch expenses
decreased $4.9 million. This decrease was offset by increases in city taxes of $2.4 million due to an increase
in the City tax rate from 15.54% to 19.87% from March 2009 to December 2010, depreciation and
amortization increases of $2.0 million due mainly for depreciation on donated asset additions and increases
in other taxes by $0.5 million.

CAPITAL ASSETS

The following table summarizes capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, by major asset category as
of December 31,2011, 2010, and 2009.

SUMMARY OF CAPITAL ASSETS, NET OF ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

2011 2010 2009
Land and land rights 41,554,148 40,634,660 39,127,903
Buildings 139,390,553 133,716,122 136,730,786
Structures 207,894,613 211,678,140 185,675,086
Machinery and equipment 732,620,473 731,874,638 696,527,888
Computer systems 25,297,192 28,659,382 28,883,342
Construction in progress 56,020,194 57,228,686 87,082,670
Other property 928,208 913,372 865,497

Capital assets, net of

accumulated depreciation

Additional information about the Fund’s capital assets can be found in Note 3 of this report.

$ 1,203,705,381

$ 1,204,705,000

$ 1,174,893,172




SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES - WATER FUND
(An Enterprise Fund of the City of Seattle)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 AND 2010

CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

2011 Compared to 2010

The Fund’s investment in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2011, amounted to $1.2 billion, net
of accumulated depreciation. This represents a net decrease of approximately $1.0 million (0.1%) for the
current fiscal year. The decrease in 2011 as compared with 2010 was due mainly to fewer additions to
projects in construction and retirements in computer systems and structures. Highlights of the Fund’s major
capital assets placed in service during 2011 include the following:

e Improvements at the Cedar Watershed and emergency preparedness programs totaling $17.1 million.

¢ Distribution pipelines upgrades and replacements totaling $13.0 million.

e  Water tank and pump station improvements totaling $4.4 million.

e  Water pipeline replacements for Operational Facilities and other projects totaling $1.7 million.

e  Water pipeline replacements for Alaskan Way and Spokane Street Viaduct project totaling $1.7 million.

The Fund had $56.0 million in construction work in progress as of December 31, 2011. Projects under
construction are the following:

e Reservoir covering projects totaling $39.6 million.

e Business and technology infrastructure upgrades totaling $3.3 million.

e  Water conservation projects totaling $2.6 million.

e  Water system improvements and rehabilitation projects totaling $2.1 million.

e South Lake Union project totaling $1.8 million.

e Regional facility project totaling $1.3 million.

e Rebuilding for Alaskan Way Viaduct & Seawall project totaling $1.2 million.

e  “One Percent for Art” program totaling $1.1 million.

2010 Compared to 2009

The Fund’s investment in capital assets for the year ended December 31, 2010, amounted to $1.2 billion, net

of accumulated depreciation. This represents a net increase of approximately $29.8 million (2.5%) for the
fiscal year.




SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES - WATER FUND
(An Enterprise Fund of the City of Seattle)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 AND 2010

CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Highlights of the Fund’s major capital assets placed in service during 2010 include the following:
o  West Seattle reservoir covering project was completed at a cost of $34.8 million.

e Water tanks and pump station improvements were placed in service at a cost of $12.5 million.

e Improvements at the Cedar River Watershed and emergency preparedness programs totaling
$5.4 million.

e Water pipeline upgrades and replacements totaling $5.2 million.

The Fund had $57.2 million in construction work in progress as of December 31, 2010. Projects under
construction are the following:

e Water system improvements, rehabilitations, reservoir coverings, and environmental stewardship
projects totaling $27.5 million.

e Water conservation projects totaling $11.7 million.

e Design and construction of the Sockeye hatchery at the Cedar River Watershed and improvements at the
Ballard Locks totaling $8.2 million.

e Business and technology infrastructure upgrades totaling $3.2 million.

Rebuilding water systems for interagency projects and operation facilities totaling $3.9 million.
DEBT ADMINISTRATION

The Fund’s debt primarily consists of bonded debt and public works trust loans. Bonded debt is secured
solely by water system revenues and provides financing for capital improvements. Public works trust loans
are unsecured loans issued by the Washington State Department of Commerce for certain capital
improvements.

Additional detail about the Fund’s revenue bonds and public works trust loans are located in Notes 4 and 9
of this report.

2011 Compared to 2010

At December 31, 2011 the Fund had $977.1 million in bonded debt and $17.6 million in public works trust
and American Recovery and Reinvestment Act loans, as compared to $1,006.3 million and $18.5 million,
respectively, at December 31, 2010. Bonded debt decreased $29.1 million, attributed primarily to the
payment of debt principal on existing bonds. Loans decreased $0.9 million due to payment of principal on
existing loans.




SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES - WATER FUND
(An Enterprise Fund of the City of Seattle)
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 AND 2010

DEBT ADMINISTRATION (Continued)
2010 Compared to 2009

At December 31, 2010 the Fund had $1,006.3 million in bonded debt and $18.5 million in public works trust
and American Recovery and Reinvestment Act loans, as compared to $904.0 million and $10.5 million,
respectively, at December 31, 2009. Bonded debt increased $102.3 million, attributed primarily to the
issuance of $190.8 million of new debt during the year, offset by a payment of $61.8 million to refund the
1998 Water Parity bond and payments of $26.7 million of debt principal on existing bonds. Loans increased
$8.6 million due to additional draw downs of $2.7 million in public works trust loans and a $5.9 million loan
from the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

The Fund'’s financial statements are designed to provide a general overview of the Fund’s finances, as well as
to demonstrate the Fund’s accountability to its customers, investors, creditors, and other interested parties.
Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial
information should be addressed to Seattle Public Utilities, Finance and Administration Branch, Finance
Division, PO Box 34018, Seattle, WA 98124-4018, telephone (206) 684-3000.
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SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES - WATER FUND
(An Enterprise Fund of the City of Seattle)
BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31,2011 AND 2010

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and equity in pooled investments

Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful
accounts of $529,345 and $514,850, respectively

Unbilled revenues

Due from other City funds

Due from other governments

Current portion of notes and contracts receivable

Materials and supplies inventory

Prepayments and other

BPA account - cash and equity in pooled investments

Total current assets

RESTRICTED ASSETS

Bond reserve account - cash and equity in pooled investments
Construction fund

Cash and equity in pooled investments

Dedicated investments
Vendor deposits - cash and equity in pooled investments
Revenue stabilization fund - cash and equity

in pooled investments
BPA account - cash and equity in pooled investments

Total restricted assets

DEFERRED CHARGES AND OTHER
Unamortized bond issue costs and loan fees
Notes and contracts receivable
Deferred conservation costs
Other deferred charges

ASSETS

2011 2010
$ 7,297,606 $ 8,504,138
13,532,093 13,618,259
10,947,286 10,198,787
910,697 1,615,647
755,085 1,065,352
16,118 21,228
3,820,951 4,074,958
1,210,771 1,184,721
68,000 100,000
38,558,607 40,383,090
16,710,973 16,700,466
60,641,445 81,101,884
- 18,097,906
- 13,250
9,014,423 10,444,399
395,294 463,101
86,762,135 126,821,006
4,918,240 5,180,374
465,194 169
29,905,009 29,568,737
17,973,342 8,745,267
53,261,785 43,494,547

Total deferred charges and other

CAPITAL ASSETS, at cost
Capital assets - excluding land
Less accumulated depreciation
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation

1,664,690,270
(559,487,439)

1,627,958,898
(522,030,616)

1,105,202,831

1,105,928,282

Construction in progress 56,020,194 57,228,686
Land and land rights 41,554,148 40,634,660
Other property 928,208 913,372

Total capital assets

TOTAL ASSETS

See accompanying notes.

1,203,705,381

1,204,705,000

$ 1,382,287,908

$ 1,415,403,643
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SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES - WATER FUND
(An Enterprise Fund of the City of Seattle)
BALANCE SHEETS (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2011 AND 2010

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

2011 2010
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable $ 5,126,658 $ 5,322,275
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes payable 1,465,971 1,358,521
Taxes payable 523,314 541,047
Interest payable 18,172,161 18,552,762
Due to other City funds 4,553,017 6,959,499
Claims payable 1,626,270 1,649,957
Compensated absences payable 401,748 400,168
HCP liability 533,222 527,457
Revenue bonds due within one year 31,425,000 29,140,000
Public works trust loans due within one year 858,293 858,293
Other current liabilities and deferred credits 1,980,309 2,287,227
Total current liabilities 66,665,963 67,597,206
REVENUE BONDS
Revenue bonds - due serially 977,160,000 1,006,300,000
Less revenue bonds due within one year (31,425,000) (29,140,000)
Bond premiums 30,949,689 32,856,664
Loss on refunding (14,759,390) (16,108,715)
Total revenue bonds 961,925,299 993,907,949
NONCURRENT AND OTHER LIABILITIES
Vendor deposits payable - 13,250
Compensated absences payable 4,346,982 4,417,733
Other postemployment benefits 2,033,474 1,551,050
Public works trust loans 16,765,886 17,624,179
Claims payable 3,966,596 4,087,808
HCP liability 4,514,553 3,784,109
Deferred credits - Revenue Stabilization Fund 9,007,262 10,443,950
Other noncurrent liabilities 384,048 1,095,169
Total noncurrent and other liabilities 41,018,801 43,017,248

Total liabilities 1,069,610,063 1,104,522,403

NET ASSETS
Invested in capital assets - net of related debt 290,541,426 275,465,946
Restricted 27,646,433 25,143,871
Unrestricted accumulated deficit (5,510,014) 10,271,423
Total net assets 312,677,845 310,881,240

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See accompanying notes.

$ 1,382,287,908

$ 1,415,403,643
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SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES - WATER FUND

(An Enterprise Fund of the City of Seattle)

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES IN NET ASSETS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 AND 2010

2011 2010

OPERATING REVENUES

Direct service

End of year

See accompanying notes.

$ 137,382,037

$ 136,442,800

Rate stabilization revenue 1,522,974 3,000,000
Wholesale 44,031,090 45,072,655
Other 11,636,551 10,688,010
Total operating revenues 194,572,652 195,203,465
OPERATING EXPENSES
Pre-capital planning and development 1,330,792 2,059,112
Utility systems management 14,717,263 14,906,335
Field operations 22,836,313 20,816,456
Project delivery 4,311,408 6,419,956
Customer services 7,453,815 7,666,552
General and administrative 27,273,770 27,794,402
City taxes 23,279,845 29,454,840
Other taxes 7,231,727 7,035,586
Depreciation and amortization 46,061,914 48,085,386
Total operating expenses 154,496,847 164,238,625
NET OPERATING INCOME 40,075,805 30,964,840
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSES)
Investment income 2,887,919 3,206,775
Interest expense (46,589,417) (47,576,654)
Amortization of bond premiums and discounts 1,906,975 1,916,704
Amortization of loss on refunding (1,349,325) (1,389,620)
Amortization of debt expenses (257,663) (257,760)
Gain on sale of assets 543,577 153,772
Other, net 1,047,440 1,507,836
Total other expenses (41,810,494) (42,438,947)
FEES, CONTRIBUTIONS, AND GRANTS
Capital fees, contributions, and grants 3,096,313 11,643,915
Operating fees, contributions, and grants 434,981 539,643
Total fees, contributions, and grants 3,531,294 12,183,558
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS 1,796,605 709,451
NET ASSETS
Beginning of year 310,881,240 310,171,789

$ 312,677,845

$ 310,881,240
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SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES - WATER FUND

(An Enterprise Fund of the City of Seattle)

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 AND 2010

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers
Cash paid to suppliers
Cash paid to employees
Cash paid for taxes
Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Operating grants received
Other cash inflows
Other cash outflows
Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of bonds
Capital fees, contributions, and grants
Principal payments on revenue bonds
Proceeds from public works trust loans
Principal payments on public works trust loans
Capital expenditures and deferred charges
Interest paid on long-term debt
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Debt issuance costs
Net cash (used in) provided by capital
and related financing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of investments
Proceeds from sales of investments
Interest received on investments
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND
EQUITY IN POOLED INVESTMENTS

CASH AND EQUITY IN POOLED INVESTMENTS
Beginning of year

End of year

See accompanying notes.

2011

2010

$ 194,414,793

$ 193,874,859

(27,067,874) (29,811,046)
(54,453,769) (54,676,245)
(31,107,892) (33,993,625)
81,785,258 75,393,943
440,981 525,064
2,384,713 2,936,200
(228,870) (39,136)
2,596,824 3,422,128
- 132,995,704
1,738,807 1,605,384
(29,140,000) (26,700,000)
- 8,647,997
(858,293) (714,766)
(50,989,161) (61,482,337)
(49,600,802) (47,483,998)
267,253 558,744
- (230,554)
(128,582,196) 7,196,174
- (78,500,000)
18,100,000 60,400,000
2,905,391 2,093,019
21,005,391 (16,006,981)
(23,194,723) 70,005,264
117,322,464 47,317,200
$ 94,127,741 $ 117,322,464
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SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES - WATER FUND
(An Enterprise Fund of the City of Seattle)
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED)
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2011 AND 2010

2011 2010
RECONCILIATION OF NET OPERATING INCOME TO
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net operating income $ 40,075,805 $ 30,964,840
Adjustments to reconcile net operating income to net
cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation and amortization 46,061,914 48,085,386
Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable 86,166 (2,156,411)
Unbilled revenues (748,499) (1,090,118)
Due from other City funds 704,950 (128,922)
Due from other governments 572,356 647,191
Materials and supplies inventory 254,007 96,492
Prepayments and other (43,522) (33,217)
Notes and contracts receivable (459,914) 21,978
Vendor deposits payable (208,283) (71,847)
Accounts payable (195,618) (2,156,854)
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes payable 107,450 14,147
Taxes payable (17,732) 85,177
Compensated absences payable (69,171) (39,962)
Other postemployment benefits 482,424 314,618
Due to other City funds (2,406,482) 2,842,134
Due to other governments - (79,082)
Claims payable (144,899) 379,815
Deferred credits - Revenue Stabilization Fund (1,436,689) (2,863,094)
Other deferred credits and liabilities (829,005) 561,672
Total adjustments 41,709,453 44,429,103

NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES $ 81,785,258 $ 75,393,943

NONCASH TRANSACTIONS
Change in fair value of investments $ (8,142) $ 8,142
Contributed infrastructure 1,095,415 10,038,531
Total noncash transactions $ 1,087,273 $ 10,046,673

See accompanying notes. 15




SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES - WATER FUND
(An Enterprise Fund of the City of Seattle)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2011 AND 2010

Note 1 - Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Operations - The City of Seattle, Seattle Public Utilities - Water Fund (the “Fund”) is a public utility
enterprise fund of the City of Seattle (the “City”). The Fund was established to account for activities of
the water system operated by Seattle Public Utilities (“SPU”). The water system, established in 1890,
provides water to the greater Seattle area through direct service to customers and through purveyors,
such as suburban water districts and non-profit water associations. The activities of the water system
include protection of available water supply, transmission of water to customers, development of
water conservation programs, evaluation of new water sources, and management of the City’s water
system assets, which include the Tolt and Cedar River Watersheds, water pipes, pumping stations,
and aquifers.

On January 1, 1997, the City created SPU, which brought together under one administrative umbrella
the water, solid waste, and drainage and wastewater functions of the City. The Fund (as well as SPU’s
other funds) remains separate for accounting purposes.

SPU receives certain services from other departments and agencies of the City, including some that
are normally considered to be general and administrative. The Fund is charged a share of these costs
and additionally pays public utility tax to the City’s General Fund. During 2011 and 2010, the Fund
paid $9,547,222 and $10,263,046, respectively, to the City for its share of general and administrative
services. Additionally, the Fund paid $23,279,845 and $29,454,840 in 2011 and 2010, respectively, to
the City for public utility taxes.

Water services provided to other City departments and agencies are billed at rates prescribed by City
ordinances. The Fund collected $2,722,327 and $2,646,901 in 2011 and 2010, respectively, from the
City for water services provided.

The utility billing function is co-managed by both SPU and Seattle City Light (“SCL”). SPU provides
customer service through the call center and walk-in center. SCL operates and manages the billing
system, Combined Customer Services System (“CCSS”). SPU and SCL billed and reimbursed each other
for these services in 2011 and 2010. Within SPU, the costs and reimbursements were shared among
its three utility funds (Water, Drainage and Wastewater, and Solid Waste). The Fund received
reimbursements related to the call center and walk-in center of $1,438,374 and $1,637,727 in 2011
and 2010, respectively. The Fund paid $396,012 and $316,482 for CCSS services in 2011 and 2010,
respectively, which does not include reimbursements to SCL for the Fund’s share of capital costs to
upgrade the CCSS system.

The Fund is subject to regulation by the City and the state of Washington. Service rates are authorized
by ordinances passed by the Seattle City Council (“City Council”). Accounting policies and financial
reporting are regulated by the Washington State Auditor’s Office, and conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (“GASB”) is the accepted standard-setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The Fund has chosen to
apply all pronouncements and interpretations issued by GASB, as well as those issued by the Financial
Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) on or before November 30, 1989, except when they conflict
with GASB.
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SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES - WATER FUND
(An Enterprise Fund of the City of Seattle)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2011 AND 2010

Note 1 - Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Basis of Accounting - The Fund is accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus.
Its financial statements are prepared in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America as applied to governmental units using the accrual basis of accounting.
With the flow of economic resources measurement focus, all assets and liabilities associated with the
Fund’s operations are included on the balance sheets. The operating statements present increases
(revenues) and decreases (expenses) in total net assets.

Cash and Equity in Pooled Investments - Cash resources of the Fund are combined with cash
resources of the City to form a pool of cash that is managed by the City’s Finance and Administration
Services Department. Under the City’s investment policy, the Finance and Administration Services
Department invests all temporary cash surpluses either directly or through a sweep account. Interest
earned on the pooled investments is prorated to individual funds at the end of each month on the
basis of their average daily cash balances during the month when interest was earned. The Fund’s
share of the pool is included in the accompanying Balance Sheets under the caption “cash and equity
in pooled investments.” The pool operates like a demand deposit account in that all City departments
may deposit cash at any time and can also withdraw cash out of the pool without prior notice or
penalty. Accordingly, the Statements of Cash Flows reconcile to cash and equity in pooled
investments. Cash and equity in pooled investments are reported at fair market value.

Investments - The Fund'’s restricted cash resources are invested by the Finance and Administration
Services Department separate from the cash and investments pool. Investments are managed in
accordance with the City’s investment policy, with limits and restrictions applied at the City-wide
level rather than to specific investments of the Fund. These investments are reported at fair value.

Receivables and Unbilled Revenues - Customer accounts receivable consist of amounts owed by
private individuals and organizations for goods delivered or services rendered in the regular course
of business operations. Receivables are shown net of allowances for doubtful accounts. The Fund also
accrues an estimated amount for services that have been provided but not billed.

Notes and contracts receivable arise from written agreements or contracts with private individuals or
organizations. Activity between funds that is outstanding at the end of the year not related to the
provision of utility services is reported as due from other funds.

Allowance for Doubtful Accounts - A reserve has been established for uncollectible accounts
receivable based on actual historical write-off trends and knowledge of specific circumstances that
indicate collection of an account may be unlikely.

Materials and Supplies Inventory - The Fund values its inventory based on a moving average
method. The most recent total cost of an inventory item is divided by the total units of the item that
remain in inventory to determine the moving average cost of the item. The moving average cost is
then applied to all the units of the inventory item.

Restricted Assets - The construction fund accounts are comprised of unexpended bond proceeds, a
portion of which will be spent during 2012.
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SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES - WATER FUND
(An Enterprise Fund of the City of Seattle)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2011 AND 2010

Note 1 - Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Unamortized Bond Issue Costs - Costs associated with the issuance of bonds are amortized to
expense over the term of the related debt. Amortization expense is calculated under the straight-line
method or effective interest method, depending on the maturity schedule of the related bonds.

Revenue Stabilization Fund - The Revenue Stabilization Fund (“RSF”) was established by the City
Council to reduce year-to-year variation in rates. Amounts deposited into the RSF are excluded from
the statement of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets and treated as a deferred credit in
accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) 980. Council ordinance specifies that the
balance in the RSF be maintained at a minimum of $9.0 million. There were no deposits to the RSF
other than interest earnings of $0.1 million in both 2011 and 2010. The RSF is included in the
“Revenue Stabilization Account” identified in the Fund’s bond covenants. These covenants provide
that withdrawals and deposits from the “Revenue Stabilization Account” shall augment or reduce
adjusted net revenue available for the payment of debt service. During 2011 and 2010, $1.5 million
and $3.0 million, respectively, were withdrawn from the Revenue Stabilization Fund as authorized by
City ordinance 122841.

Deferred Conservation Costs - Conservation program costs that result in long-term benefits and
reduce or postpone other capital expenditures or have a legal requirement are deferred and
amortized over their expected useful lives, commencing when each program is in place. The
conservation program costs are amortized over their expected useful lives of ten years. Certain costs
related to the Habitat Conservation Plan (“HCP”) are included in the deferred costs and amortized
through 2050, the year in which the plan expires. An incidental take permit was issued to the City by
the federal government approving the HCP for 50 years. Costs of administering the conservation and
HCP programs are expensed as incurred.

Other Deferred Charges - Other deferred charges include costs such as the Water System Plan,
leasehold improvements, the hydrant settlement, Morse Lake Pump Plant, and payments to the
Muckleshoot Indian Tribe. The Fund amortizes these charges over a 2 to 33 year period. Further
discussion of the hydrant settlement may be found in Note 12.

Capital Assets - Capital assets are stated at cost or, if contributed, at fair value at the date of
contribution. Costs include direct material, labor, and indirect costs such as engineering, supervision,
payroll taxes, pension benefits, and interest relating to the financing of projects under construction.
The cost of current repairs and maintenance is charged to expense, while the cost of additions and
improvements is capitalized. SPU’s policy is to capitalize assets with a cost of $5,000 or more. The
Fund receives donated assets such as water mains from developers and other governmental agencies.

Construction in Progress - Capitalizable costs incurred on projects which are not in service or ready
for use are held in construction in progress. When the asset is ready for service, related costs are
transferred to capital assets. Upon determining that a project will be abandoned, the related costs are
charged to expense.

Other Property - Other property is stated at cost, or if contributed, the fair value at the date of
contribution. Other property includes artwork and property held for future use. The artwork is
acquired through the City’s “One Percent for Art” program, which supports the City ordinance
established to direct the inclusion of works of art in public spaces within the City.
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SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES - WATER FUND
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Note 1 - Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Depreciation - Capital assets in service are depreciated on the straight-line method over estimated
useful lives as follows:

Buildings and fixtures 10 to 50 years
Earthen source of supply developments 100 years
Transmission and distribution pipelines, reservoirs, and tanks 15 to 100 years
Water mains 33to 57 years
Pumps, wells, and treatment equipment 10 to 50 years
Machinery and equipment 3 to 20 years
Computer systems 3 to 10 years

Composite rates based on year of addition are used for depreciating the transmission and distribution
pipelines, water mains asset group, reservoirs, and tanks. For most assets, it is SPU’s policy to begin
depreciation in the year following acquisition and to record a full year’s depreciation in the year of
disposition. This does not apply to heavy equipment, for which depreciation begins in the month
following the equipment’s in-service date to more accurately allocate equipment costs to various
activities.

BPA Account - In 2003, the Bonneville Power Administration (“BPA”) purchased an easement in the
amount of $6.0 million from the Fund to construct a power transmission line through the Cedar River
Watershed. This amount was included in gain on sale of land rights and timber in the 2003 statement
of revenues, expenses, and changes in net assets. This $6.0 million, together with $657,149 in timber
sales related to the easement, were deposited into the BPA account and classified as restricted assets.
At December 31, 2011 and 2010, the cash balance in the BPA account was $463,294 and $563,101,
respectively. Monies in the BPA account are considered a portion of the “Revenue Stabilization
Account” described in bond covenants, and therefore shall augment or reduce adjusted net revenue
available for the payment of debt service. The Fund will recognize the revenues deposited in the BPA
account in the calculation of adjusted net revenues available for the payment of debt service as they
are withdrawn to fund certain activities in the Cedar River Watershed.

Compensated Absences - Employees earn vacation based upon their date of hire and years of
service, and may accumulate earned vacation up to a maximum of 480 hours. Unused vacation at
retirement or normal termination is considered vested and payable to the employee. Earned but
unused vacation is accrued as a liability of the Fund. Employees also earn up to 12 days of sick leave
per year and may accumulate sick leave balances without limit. The Fund records a liability for
estimated sick leave payments.

Employees who submit the required documentation to be represented by the Coalition of City Unions
are paid 35% of the value of unused sick leave upon retirement as part of the Health Reimbursement
Arrangement - Voluntary Employees’ Beneficiary Association (“HRA-VEBA”) program. If the
employee fails to submit the required documentation by their last working day of employment, their
sick leave balance is forfeited.
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Note 1 - Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Retiring employees who are not eligible to participate in the HRA-VEBA program may elect to receive
25% of the value of unused sick leave upon retirement or defer receipt of 35% of the value of their
sick leave balance to the City’s 457 Plan and Trust, subject to the year-to-date or life-to-date
limitations on deferrals and contributions. If the 35% value of the sick leave balance exceeds the
maximum amount deferred to the City’s 457 Plan and Trust, the employee shall receive a taxable cash
payment equal to the amount by which the 25% value of the sick leave balance exceeds the 35% that
was allowed to be deferred.

Operating Revenues - The Fund provides water service to wholesale and retail customers and
recognizes revenue when such service is provided. Wholesale customers (“Purveyors”) are under
contract with the Fund, and rates are set based on cost allocation criteria stipulated in the contracts.

Service rates for all customers are authorized by ordinances passed by the City Council. Service
revenues are recorded through cycle billings rendered to customers monthly or bimonthly. The Fund
accrues and records unbilled water service revenues in the financial statements for services provided
from the date of the last billing to year end.

Operating Expenses - Certain expenses of the Fund are reported on the statements of revenues,
expenses, and changes in net assets by functional category. The types of work performed within each
category are as follows:

e Pre-capital planning and development - Provides planning services and other related costs prior
to the start of capital projects.

o Utility systems management - Accounts for the overall management of the Fund’s infrastructure
assets, assuring they are properly designed, constructed, operated, and protected.

o Field operations - Operates and maintains the Fund’s water system.

e Project delivery - Provides project management and engineering services to the Fund and
executes the Fund’s capital projects from start to completion.

e (Customer services - Invoices the Fund’s customers for services provided and is the primary point
of contact for customers.

Taxes - The Fund is charged a public utility tax by the City at a rate of 15.54% of Fund revenues, net of
certain credits and certain revenues. In addition, the Fund paid a 5.029% public utility tax to the State
on a certain portion of revenues identified as utility revenues. The Fund also paid business and
occupation tax to the State at the rate of 1.8% on certain other non-utility revenues.

Other Revenues and Expenses - This includes the non-operating revenues and expenses that arise
from transactions not related directly to the major income-earning operations of the utility and are of
a recurring nature. Major items are investment and interest income, interest expense, gains or losses
on the sale of assets, and amortization of debt expenses.
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Note 1 - Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Net Assets - The Statement of Net Assets reports all financial and capital resources. The difference
between assets and liabilities is net assets. There are three components of net assets: invested in
capital assets - net of related debt, restricted, and unrestricted.

Net assets invested in capital assets, net of related debt, consists of capital assets, less accumulated
depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, mortgages, notes, or other
borrowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those assets.

Net assets are restricted when constraints placed on net asset use are either (1) externally imposed
by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments, or (2) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. The
Fund’s restricted net assets as of December 31, 2011, and 2010, are related to the BPA and RSF
accounts, bond debt reserve funds, and certain deferred charges.

Unrestricted net assets are those that are not “invested in capital assets, net of related debt” or
“restricted.”

Arbitrage Rebate Requirement - The Fund is subject to the Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”),
Section 148(f), related to its tax-exempt revenue bonds. The IRC requires that earnings on gross
proceeds of any revenue bonds that are in excess of the amount prescribed will be surrendered to the
Internal Revenue Service. As such, the Fund would record such a rebate as a liability. The Fund had no
liability for arbitrage as of December 31, 2011 or 2010.

Accounting Changes - The Fund adopted GASB Statement No. 51, Accounting and Financial Reporting
for Intangible Assets, as of January 1, 2010. This statement clarified the definition of intangible assets
as used in the description of capital assets in GASB Statement No. 34. The adoption of GASB 51 did not
have a significant impact on the Fund’s financial statements for 2011 or 2010.

The Fund adopted GASB Statement No. 53, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Derivative
Instruments, as of January 1, 2010. This statement provides guidance for the recognition,
measurement and disclosure of activity related to derivative instruments held by state and local
governments. The adoption of GASB 53 did not have a significant impact on the Fund’s financial
statements for 2011 or 2010.

GASB issued Statement No. 59 Financial Instruments Omnibus, to update and improve existing
financial reporting and disclosure standards of certain financial instruments and external investment
pools. This statement became effective for periods beginning after June 15, 2010 and did not have a
significant impact on the Fund'’s financial statements for 2011 or 2010.

GASB has issued Statement No. 62, Codification of Pre-November 30, 1989 FASB Pronouncements. This
statement combines the authoritative accounting and financial reporting of the FASB and the
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“AICPA”). The statement will eliminate the need
for financial statement preparers and auditors to determine which FASB and AICPA pronouncement
provisions apply to state and local governments. The statement is effective for periods beginning after
December 15, 2011 and likely will not have a significant impact on the Fund’s financial statements.
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GASB has issued Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position. The requirements of this statement will standardize the
presentation of deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources and their effects on
a government’s net position. The statement is effective for periods beginning after December 15,
2011. The Fund is evaluating the impact of this standard on the financial statements.

Use of Estimates - The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect amounts reported in the financial statements. Estimates and assumptions
are used to record unbilled revenues, allowance for doubtful accounts, accrued sick leave, capitalized
interest, depreciation, risk liabilities, and other contingencies. Changes in these estimates and
assumptions may have a material impact on the financial statements.

Significant Risks and Uncertainties - The Fund is subject to certain business risks that could have a
material impact on future operations and financial performance. These risks include, but are not
limited to, water conditions, weather and natural disaster-related disruptions, collective bargaining
labor disputes, fish and other endangered species act issues, Environmental Protection Agency
regulations, federal government regulations or orders concerning the operation, maintenance, and
licensing of facilities.

Reclassifications - Certain reclassifications have been made to prior year balances to provide a
presentation consistent with the current year.

Note 2 - Cash and Investments

Custodial Credit Risk - Deposits - As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the City’s pool contained cash
on deposit with the City’s custodial banks in the amounts of $19,666,051 and $16,663,123,
respectively. The deposits in excess of $250,000 in both 2011 and 2010 were uninsured and
uncollateralized. As such, these deposits were exposed to custodial credit risk, which is the risk that
the deposits may not be returned to the City in the event of a bank failure. The City attempts to
minimize exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits by requiring the depository bank to have
sufficient capital to support the activity of the City. In addition, banks having a deposit relationship
with the City are required to provide financial statements for the City’s use in reviewing the bank’s
financial condition.

All deposits not covered by FDIC insurance are under the regulation of the Washington State Public
Deposit Protection Commission (the “Commission”) established in RCW 39.58 for public depository
financial institutions. The Commission requires a pledge agreement and a trustee for each public
depository financial institution. The trustee ensures eligible collateral defined as securities and
designated for the benefit of public depositors as described in RCW 39.58.050 (5) and (6), are
segregated from all other assets. Eligible collateral is utilized by the trustee when the Commission has
determined a loss, net of deposit insurance, has been incurred by a public depository financial institution.
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Note 2 - Cash and Investments (Continued)

Investments - As of December 31, the Fund’s dedicated investments, the City’s pooled investments,
and dedicated investments of other funds were as follows:

2011
Weighted
Dedicated Other Average
Investments Dedicated Maturity
of the Fund City Pool Investments Total (Days)
U.S. Government Agencies $ - $ 991,128,738 $ - $ 991,128,738 974
State and Local Governments - 105,403,511 - 105,403,511 513
Commercial Paper - 77,494,937 - 77,494,937 10
Repurchase Agreements - 66,785,435 - 66,785,435 3
U.S. Government Obligations - 37,993,718 - 37,993,718 816
Total $ - $ 1,278,806,339 $ - $ 1,278,806,339
Portfolio Weighted Average Maturity 823
2010
Weighted
Dedicated Other Average
Investments Dedicated Maturity
of the Fund City Pool Investments Total (Days)
U.S. Government Agencies $18,097,906 $ 628,004,011 $ 63,436,250 $ 709,538,167 655
Commercial Paper - 256,364,545 - 256,364,545 21
Repurchase Agreements - 56,365,904 - 56,365,904 3
U.S. Government Obligations - 39,624,611 - 39,624,611 398
State and Local Governments - 1,020,110 - 1,020,110 213
Total $18,097,906 $ 981,379,181 $ 63,436,250 $1,062,913,337

Portfolio Weighted Average Maturity 458

The Fund'’s share of the City Pool was as follows as of December 31:

2011 2010
Cash and equity in pooled investments $ 7,297,606 $ 8,504,138
Restricted cash and equity in pooled investments 86,830,135 108,818,326
Total $ 94,127,741 $ 117,322,464
Balance as a percentage of City Pool
cash and investments 7.4% 11.9%
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Interest Rate Risk - Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates that will
adversely affect the fair value of an investment. In general, the longer the maturity of an investment,
the greater the sensitivity of the investment’s fair value to changes in market interest rates. The City
manages this risk by limiting the average maturity of investments to five years. However, the Fund’s
investments are selected for greater liquidity in order to support the Fund’s cash flow needs and
therefore typically have much shorter average maturities.

Credit Risk - Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not
fulfill its obligations. In accordance with the City’s investment policy, investments in commercial
paper purchased on the secondary market are limited to those with maturities not longer than
180 days from purchase and with the highest rating by at least two nationally recognized statistical
rating organizations (“NRSROs”). As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the City’s investments in
commercial paper were rated P-1 by Moody’s Investors Service and A-1 to A-1+ by Standard & Poor’s
Rating Service.

The City also purchases obligations of government-sponsored enterprises which are eligible as
collateral for advances to member banks as determined by the Board of Governors of the Federal
Reserve System. These include, but are not limited to, debt securities of Federal Home Loan Bank,
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation, Federal Farm Credit Bank, and Federal National Mortgage
Association. As of December 31, 2011 these investments were rated Aaa, Aal and P-1 by Moody’s
Investors Service and AAA, AA+, and AA by Standard & Poor’s Rating Service. As of December 31,
2010, these investments were rated Aaa by Moody’s Investors Service, and AAA by Standard & Poor’s
Rating Service.

As of December 31, 2011, the City’s investments in repurchase agreements require a signed and
executed 2011 Version of the Global Master Repurchase Agreement, a standardized form published by
the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association (“SIFMA”) and International Capital Market
Association (“ICMA”), with an approved repo counterparty of the City. Additionally, the City will have
to sign and execute a Tri-Party Custodial Agreement between the counterparty and one of the two
third-party custodians, JPMorgan Chase and BNY Mellon, respectively. The City conducts repo
transactions with investment grade rated primary dealers after thorough internal credit due diligence
of the counterparty. Securities delivered as collateral must be priced at a minimum of 102% of their
market value. Potentially higher margins of 103% to 105% would be used for pricing collateral in a
volatile market environment. Parameters for acceptable collateral are determined by the City’s
investment policy, which abides by Washington State statute. As of December 31, 2011, the securities
underlying the City’s investments in repurchase agreements have included U.S. Treasuries, U.S.
Agency debentures, and U.S. Agency mortgage-backed pass-throughs. The City has not accepted
collateral containing credit risk, such as bankers’ acceptances, commercial paper, or municipal bonds.
Repurchase agreements do not have credit ratings.

Concentration of Credit Risk - The City’s investment policy limits concentration of credit risk for the

City’s investments as a whole, inclusive of the Fund’s investments. These policy limits vary for each
investment category.
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The City’s investments in which 5% or more is invested in any single issuer as of December 31 are

as follows:
2011 2010
Percent of Percent of
Total Total
Issuer Fair Value Investments Fair Value Investments
Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corp $ 395,358,375 31% $ 114,398,437 11%
Federal National Mortgage Association $ 317,039,812 25% $ 276,373,623 26%
Federal Home Loan Bank $ 194,321,359 15% $ 218,644,903 21%
Federal Farm Credit Bank $ 83,708,078 7% $ 100,121,203 9%
Washington State $ 68,388,721 5% $ - 0%
Wells Fargo $ 66,785,435 5% $ 32,565,904 3%
Sheffield Receivables Corporation $ - 0% $ 54,343,164 5%

As of December 31, 2011, the Fund liquidated all dedicated investment to the construction fund
account. The Fund’s dedicated investments in which 5% or more is invested in any single issuer as of

December 31 are as follows:

2011 2010
Percent Percent
of Total of Total

Issuer Fair Value Investments Fair Value Investments

Federal Home Loan Bank $ - 0% $ 12,192,375 67%
Federal Farm Credit Bank $ - 0% $ 5,905,531 33%

Note 3 - Capital Assets
Capital asset activity consisted of the following for the year ended December 31, 2011:
Beginning Additions and Retirements and Ending
Balance Transfers In Transfers Out Balance

Buildings $ 169,430,642 $ 9,125,644 $ - $ 178,556,286
Structures 255,588,246 928,393 - 256,516,639
Machinery and equipment 1,104,325,621 29,020,514 (407,322) 1,132,938,813
Computer systems 98,614,389 2,510,212 (4,446,069) 96,678,532
Total capital assets - excluding land 1,627,958,898 41,584,763 (4,853,391) 1,664,690,270
Less accumulated depreciation (522,030,616) (42,267,086) 4,810,263 (559,487,439)
1,105,928,282 (682,323) (43,128) 1,105,202,831

Construction in progress 57,228,686 53,193,633 (54,402,125) 56,020,194
Land and land rights 40,634,660 1,104,956 (185,468) 41,554,148
Other property 913,372 14,836 - 928,208

Capital assets, net

$ 1,204,705,000

$ 53,631,102 $  (54,630,721) $ 1,203,705,381
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Capital asset activity consisted of the following for the year ended December 31, 2010:

Beginning Additions and Retirements and Ending

Balance Transfers In Transfers Out Balance
Buildings $ 168,996,850 $ 485,484 $ (51,692) $ 169,430,642
Structures 226,981,061 77,027,173 (48,419,988) 255,588,246
Machinery and equipment 1,042,886,627 62,501,572 (1,062,578) 1,104,325,621
Computer systems 92,434,967 6,222,023 (42,601) 98,614,389
Total capital assets - excluding land 1,531,299,505 146,236,252 (49,576,859) 1,627,958,898

Less accumulated depreciation (483,482,403) (40,864,673) 2,316,460 (522,030,616)

1,047,817,102 105,371,579 (47,260,399) 1,105,928,282
Construction in progress 87,082,670 116,669,354 (146,523,338) 57,228,686
Land and land rights 39,127,903 1,506,852 (95) 40,634,660
Other property 865,497 47,875 - 913,372
Capital assets, net $ 1,174,893,172 $ 223,595,660 $ (193,783,832) $ 1,204,705,000

During 2011 and 2010, the Fund capitalized interest costs relating to construction of $2,635,254 and
$2,697,823, respectively.

Note 4 - Revenue Bonds

The Fund issues bonds to provide financing for capital improvements. Payment of debt service on the
bonds is derived solely from the revenues generated by the Fund. The Fund has set aside $16,710,973
in a debt service reserve fund and has obtained reserve insurance policies to meet the remainder of
its reserve requirements. The total bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 were
$977,160,000 and $1,006,300,000, respectively.

The Fund did not issue Revenue Bonds during the year ended December 31, 2011.

In January 2010, the Fund issued $109,080,000 of Water System Revenue Bonds with varying annual
principal payments due beginning in 2019 and ending in 2040, at interest rates ranging from 4.67%
to 5.89%. The bonds were issued as taxable, direct pay Build America Bonds. Designation as Build
America Bonds allows the Fund a credit payable by the United States Treasury in an amount equal to
35% of the interest payable on each bond interest payment date. As a result, interest on the bonds is
not excludable from gross income. Proceeds of the revenue bonds are being used to finance certain
capital improvements and additions to the water system.
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Also, in January 2010, the Fund issued $81,760,000 of Water System Improvement and Refunding
Revenue Bonds with varying annual principal payments due beginning in 2010 and ending in 2027, at
interest rates ranging from 3.00% to 5.00%. A portion of the proceeds from the issuance was set aside
in the Fund’s restricted cash and used on January 21, 2010, to refund the remaining portion of the
1998 Water Revenue Bonds, totaling $61,825,000. The remaining proceeds will be used for certain
capital improvement projects for the Fund. As a result of the refunding, the Fund reduced total debt
service requirements by $9.5 million resulting in an economic gain (difference between the present
value of the debt service payments on the old and new debts) of $6.7 million. A deferred charge (the
difference between the cost to refund outstanding debts and the carrying value of bonds refunded) of
$1.2 million is being amortized over the life of the refunded bonds using the straight-line method. The
defeased bonds were subsequently redeemed in 2010. No outstanding bonds are considered defeased
at December 2011 and 2010.

Revenue bonds outstanding as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 consisted of the following Municipal

Water bonds:
Original Bonds Bonds
Issuance Maturity Interest Issue Outstanding, Outstanding,
Name of Issue Date Years Rates Amount 2011 2010
2001 parity bonds 11/20/01 2005-2031 4.5-5.0% $ 52,525,000 $ 44,320,000 $ 45,630,000
2003 parity,
refunding bonds 5/12/03 2003-2033 4.0-6.0% 271,320,000 185,725,000 194,240,000
2004 parity bonds 10/25/04 2005-2034 3.0-5.0% 84,750,000 73,735,000 75,430,000
2005 parity,
refunding bonds 12/28/05 2006-2029 4.0-5.0% 138,040,000 123,000,000 127,600,000
2006 parity,
refunding bonds 10/23/06 2008-2037 4.0-5.0% 189,970,000 177,655,000 182,100,000
2008 parity,
refunding bonds 12/15/08 2009-2038 4.0-5.25% 205,080,000 190,145,000 193,885,000
2010A parity,
revenue bonds 1/21/10 2019-2040 4.67-5.89% 109,080,000 109,080,000 109,080,000
2010B parity, refunding
revenue bonds 1/21/10 2010-2027 3.0-5.0% 81,760,000 73,500,000 78,335,000
$1,132,525,000 $ 977,160,000 $ 1,006,300,000
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Minimum debt service requirements to maturity on revenue bonds are as follows:

Years Ending December 31, Principal Interest Total
2012 31,425,000 $ 48,103,807 $ 79,528,807
2013 32,795,000 46,709,282 79,504,282
2014 34,240,000 45,251,907 79,491,907
2015 35,810,000 43,675,882 79,485,882
2016 37,545,000 41,926,482 79,471,482
2017 -2021 215,415,000 180,141,296 395,556,296
2022-2026 233,360,000 123,228,962 356,588,962
2027 -2031 191,700,000 68,544,422 260,244,422
2032-2036 117,810,000 27,958,776 145,768,776
2037 - 2040 47,060,000 4,894,093 51,954,093

977,160,000

$ 630,434,909

$ 1,607,594,909

The following table shows the revenue bond activity during the year ended December 31, 2011:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Bonds payable

Revenue bonds $ 1,006,300,000 $ $ (29,140,000) $ 977,160,000 $ 31,425,000
Add (deduct) deferred

amounts:

Issuance premiums 32,856,664 (1,906,975) 30,949,689

Issuance discounts - -

Loss on refunding (16,108,715) 1,349,325 (14,759,390)
Total bonds payable $ 1,023,047,949 $ $ (29,697,650) $ 993,350,299 $ 31,425,000

The following table shows the revenue bond activity during the year ended December 31, 2010:

Beginning Ending Due Within
Balance Additions Reductions Balance One Year

Bonds payable

Revenue bonds $ 903,985,000 $ 190,840,000 $ (88,525,000) $ 1,006,300,000 $ 29,140,000
Add (deduct) deferred

amounts:

Issuance premiums 28,111,017 6,662,351 (1,916,704) 32,856,664

Issuance discounts (306,733) - 306,733 -

Loss on refunding (16,345,700) (1,152,635) 1,389,620 (16,108,715)
Total bonds payable $ 915,443,584 $ 196,349,716 $ (88,745,351) $ 1,023,047,949 $ 29,140,000
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Debt Service Coverage - The revenue bonds contain certain financial covenants, the most significant
of which requires the Fund to maintain adjusted net revenue available for debt service of not less than
125% of actual annual debt service. In 2011, adjusted net revenue available for debt service, as
defined by the bond covenants was 148% of debt service. For 2010, adjusted net revenue available for
debt service was 159%. Net revenue available for debt service for the year ended December 31 is
determined as follows:

2011 2010
Change in net assets $ 1,796,605 $ 709,451
Add:
City taxes 23,279,845 29,454,840
Depreciation and amortization 46,061,914 48,085,386
Interest paid on revenue bonds 49,224,670 50,274,477
Draws on BPA account 100,000 198,207
120,463,034 128,722,361
Less:
Donation of assets 1,095,415 10,038,531
Capitalized interest 2,635,254 2,697,823
Amortization of bond premiums, debt
expenses, and loss on refunding 299,987 269,324
Adjusted net revenue available for debt service $ 116,432,378 $ 115,716,683
Debt service requirement (cash basis) $ 78,552,207 $ 72,749,679
Coverage percentage 148% 159%
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The Fund has non-cancelable operating lease commitments for real and personal property with
minimum payments of $384,595 in 2011 and $375,965 in 2010. Rents are paid as they become due
and payable. Minimum payments under the leases as of December 31, 2011 are shown below:

Minimum

Payments
2012 $ 392,972
2013 274,933
2014 248,136
2015 256,273
2016 221,013
2017 - 2021 54,045
2022 - 2026 54,045
2027 - 2029 32,427
$ 1,533,844

Note 6 - Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefit Plans

Pension Costs - All permanent Fund employees are eligible to participate in the Seattle City
Employees’ Retirement System (the “System”), a cost-sharing public employee retirement system
operated by the City. Benefits vest after five years of covered service. City employees may retire after
30 years of service regardless of age; after age 52, with 20 or more years of service; after age 57, with
ten or more years of service; and after age 62, with five or more years of service. The System also
provides death and disability benefits. These benefit provisions and all other requirements are
established by City ordinances.

City employees are required to contribute 9.03% of their annual base salaries to System. Employer
rates are established by the City Council on a biannual basis. The Fund’s contributions to the System
for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, were $3,892,675, $3,601,358 and
$3,861,387, respectively. The Fund’s contribution in 2011 represents its full liability to the System.

The System issues stand-alone financial statements, which may be obtained by writing to the Seattle

City Employees’ Retirement System, 720 Third Avenue, Suite 900, Seattle, Washington, 98104,
telephone: (206) 386-1293.
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SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES - WATER FUND
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2011 AND 2010

Note 6 - Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefit Plans (Continued)

Employer contributions for the City are as follows (dollars in millions):

City City
Year Ended Required Actual Percentage

December 31, Contribution Contribution Contributed

2009 $ 46.7 $ 46.7 100%

2010 $ 45.2 $ 45.2 100%

2011 $ 50.2 $ 50.2 100%

Actuarial data and assumptions:

Valuation date January 1, 2011
Actuarial cost method Entry age
Amortization method Level percent
Remaining amortization period 30 years, open
Asset valuation method 5-Year Smoothing Method
Investment rate of return 7.75%
Projected general wage inflation 4.0%
Postretirement benefit increases 1.5%

Schedules of funding progress are as follows (dollars in millions):

Actuarial
Accrued
Actuarial Liabilities Unfunded UAALasa %
Actuarial Value of (AAL) AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age' (UAAL)? Ratio Payroll® Payroll
Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (9] ((b-a)/c)
January 1, 2008 $ 21194 $ 22946 $ 175.2 92.4% $ 5019 34.9%
January 1, 2010 $ 1,645.3 $ 26538 $ 11,0085 62.0% $ 5809 173.6%
January 1, 2011 $ 20137 $ 2,709.0 $ 695.4 74.3% $ 563.2 123.5%

1 Actuarial present value of benefits less actuarial present value of future normal costs based on
entry age actuarial cost method.

2 Actuarial accrued liabilities less actuarial value of assets.

3 Covered payroll includes compensation paid to all active employees on which contributions are
calculated.

31




SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES - WATER FUND
(An Enterprise Fund of the City of Seattle)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2011 AND 2010

Note 6 - Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefit Plans (Continued)

Deferred Compensation - The City offers all of its employees a deferred compensation plan
(the “Plan”) created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code (“IRC”) Section 457. The Plan permits
employees to defer a portion of their salaries until future years. The deferred compensation is paid to
employees upon termination, retirement, death, or unforeseen emergency.

The Plan is an eligible deferred compensation plan under Section 457 of the IRC of 1986, as amended,
and a trust exempt from tax under IRC Sections 457(g) and 501(a). The Plan is operated for the
exclusive benefit of participants and their beneficiaries. No part of the corpus or income of the Plan
shall revert to the City or be used for, or diverted to, purposes other than the exclusive benefit of
participants and their beneficiaries. The Plan is not reported in the financial statements of the City or
the Fund.

It is the opinion of the City’s legal counsel that the City has no liability for investment losses under the
Plan. Under the Plan, participants select investments from alternatives offered by the Plan
Administrator, who is under contract with the City to manage the Plan. Investment selection by a
participant may be changed from time to time. The City does not manage any of the investment
selections. By making the selection, participants accept and assume all risks inherent in the Plan and
its administration.

Other Postemployment Benefits - Health care plans for active and retired employees are
administered by the City as single-employer defined benefit public employee health care plans.

Eligible retirees (younger than age 65) may contribute to the medical plan and any additional health
care programs contemplated or amended by ordinance of the City Council and as provided in Seattle
Municipal Code 4.50.020.

The Seattle City Council authorizes the obligations of the plan members and the City as employer by
passing ordinances and amendments regarding contributions to the plans. Eligible retirees self-pay
100% of the premiums based on blended rates which were established by including the experience of
retirees with the experience of active employees for underwriting purposes. The plan is financed on a
pay-as-you-go basis, and the City was required to contribute $3.2 million in 2010 and $3.0 million
in 2009.
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(An Enterprise Fund of the City of Seattle)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2011 AND 2010

Note 6 - Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefit Plans (Continued)

The table below summarizes the City’s annual cost, expected contributions to the plan, and changes in
the net OPEB obligation for fiscal year ended December 31, 2010 and 2009. These calculations are
based on the most recent actuarial valuation data available, dated January 1, 2010. The Fund has
accrued $2,033,474 to the plan as of December 31, 2011, as a reasonable estimate of expected
contributions.

2010 2009
Annual required contribution $ 10,709,000 $ 9,269,000
Interest on net OPEB obligation 898,000 693,000
Adjustment to annual required contribution (1,239,000) (915,000)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 10,368,000 9,047,000
Expected contribution (employer-paid benefits) (3,202,000) (2,954,000)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 7,166,000 6,093,000
Net OPEB obligation, beginning of year 20,446,000 14,353,000
Net OPEB obligation, end of year $ 27,612,000 $ 20,446,000
Fund’s allocated share of city liability $ 1,551,050 $ 1,236,432

Actuarial valuations involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of events far into the future. Actuarially-determined amounts are subject to continual
revision as actual results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the
future. Actuarial calculations are based on the types of benefits provided under the terms of the plan
and on the pattern of shared costs between the employer and plan members, at the time of each
valuation. The projection of benefits for financial reporting purposes does not explicitly incorporate
the potential effects of legal or contractual funding limitations on the pattern of cost sharing between
the employer and plan members in the future. Actuarial calculations reflect a long-term perspective.
Consistent with that perspective, actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and the actuarial value
of assets.
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Note 6 - Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefit Plans (Continued)

Significant methods and assumptions are as follows:

Actuarial data and assumptions
Valuation date
Actuarial cost method
Amortization method
Remaining amortization period
Discount rate

Health care cost trend rates -
medical:

Participation

Mortality

Marital status

Morbidity factors

Other considerations

January 1, 2010
Entry age normal
Level dollar

30 years, open
4.39%

10.0%, decreasing by 0.5% for each year for
10 years to an ultimate rate of 5%.

40% of Active Employees who retire participate

General Service Actives and Retirees based on the
Group Annuity Mortality (GAM) 1994 Static Table
(Final) with ages set forward one year.

60% of members electing coverage are assumed to
be married or to have a registered domestic
partner. Male spouses two years older than their
female spouses.

Morbidity rate ranges for ages 50 through 64:
104.25% to 203.61% for male retirees,
76.78% to 149.96% for female retirees,
123.03% to 229.84% for male spouses, and
90.62% to 169.29% for female spouses.

Retirees’ spouses pay a lower premium than
retirees.

Active employees with current spousal and/or
dependent coverage are assumed to elect same
plan and coverage after retirement.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31,2011 AND 2010

Note 6 - Retirement and Other Postemployment Benefit Plans (Continued)

Schedules of funding progress are as follows (dollars in millions):

Actuarial UAALasa %
Value of AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Actuarial Assets Entry Age UAAL Ratio Payroll Payroll
Valuation Date (a) (b) (b-a) (a/b) (c) ((b-a)/c)
January 1, 2008 $ - $ 78.8 $ 78.8 0.0% NA NA
January 1, 2009 $ - $ 84.1 $ 84.1 0.0% NA NA
January 1, 2010 $ - $ 93.5 $ 93.5 0.0% NA NA

The Health Care Subfund of the General Fund is reported in the City’s Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report, which can be obtained by writing the Department of Finance, City of Seattle, PO Box
94747, Seattle, WA 98124-4747.

Note 7 - Claims Payable

The City and the Fund are self-insured for certain losses arising from personal and property damage
claims by third parties and for casualty losses to the Fund’s property. Liabilities for identified claims
and claims incurred but not reported have been recorded by the Fund.

For 2011 and 2010, liabilities for workers’ compensation claims, as well as other claims, are
discounted over a 15-year period at the City’s rate of return on investments, 0.824% and 1.027%,
respectively. Claims expected to be paid within one year were $1,626,270 and $1,649,957 at
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The table below presents the changes in the liability for
workers’ compensation claims and other claims (risk-financing liabilities) as of December 31:

2011 2010
Beginning liability, undiscounted $ 5,929,939 $ 5,627,641
Payments (947,194) (1,698,655)
Incurred claims and changes in estimate 759,346 2,000,953
Ending liability, undiscounted $ 5,742,091 $ 5,929,939
Ending liability, discounted (recorded balance
at December 31) $ 5,592,866 $ 5,737,765

The Fund is involved in litigation from time to time as a result of operations. Claims are pursued if
determined to be in the best interest of the Fund’s customers.
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Note 8 - Compensated Absences

The Fund has recorded a liability for earned but unused holiday, compensatory, merit, and vacation
leave, as well as estimated sick leave payments calculated based on the termination payment method.
The schedule below presents the compensated absences activity during the years ended

December 31:

2011 2010
Beginning liability $ 4,817,901 $ 4,857,863
Additions 3,675,559 5,287,424
Reductions (3,744,730) (5,327,386)
Ending liability $ 4,748,730 $ 4,817,901

Note 9 - Public Works Trust Loans

The Fund has various construction projects that are financed by low interest loans issued by the State.
The loan agreements require that the Fund finance a portion of these projects from other sources.

These loans have been used to enhance and protect the water system.

Loans outstanding as of December 31,2011 and 2010 are as follows:

Loans Loans
Maturity Interest Amount Outstanding, Outstanding,

Description Years Rate Borrowed 2011 2010
Magnolia Manor Reservoir 1994-2013 1.0% $ 2,220,000 $ 236,433 $ 354,650
Myrtle Reservoir 2008-2025 1.5% 4,040,000 3,142,222 3,366,667
Beacon Reservoir 2008-2026 1.5% 4,040,000 3,189,474 3,402,105
West Seattle Reservoir 2009-2027 1.5% 3,030,000 2,551,579 2,711,053
Maple Leaf ARRA 2009-2032 1.0% 5,920,997 5,920,997 5,920,997
Maple Leaf 2010-2029 1.5% 2,727,000 2,583,474 2,727,000
$ 21,977,997 $ 17,624,179 $ 18,482,472
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Note 9 - Public Works Trust Loans (Continued)

Minimum debt service requirements to maturity on the loans are as follows:

Years Ending December 31, Principal Interest Total
2012 $ 858,293 $ 315,479 $ 1,173,772
2013 1,154,343 221,292 1,375,635
2014 1,036,126 206,048 1,242,174
2015 1,036,126 191,987 1,228,113
2016 1,036,126 177,925 1,214,051
2017 -2021 5,180,629 678,702 5,859,331
2022-2026 4,956,185 327,160 5,283,345
2027 -2031 2,070,302 74,519 2,144,821
2032 296,049 2,961 299,010

$ 17,624,179 $ 2,196,073 $ 19,820,252

The table below summarizes the activity for the loans for the years ended December 31:

2011 2010
Net public works trust loans, beginning of year $ 18,482,472 $ 10,549,241
Loan proceeds - 8,647,997
Principal payments (858,293) (714,766)
Net public works trust loans, end of year $ 17,624,179 $ 18,482,472
Public works trust loans due within one year $ 858,293 $ 858,293
Public works trust loans, noncurrent $ 16,765,886 $ 17,624,179

Note 10 - Notes and Contracts Receivable

The Fund has an agreement with the Seattle Housing Authority for the recovery of the remaining
unreimbursed cost of the Fund’s contributions of public infrastructure to the New Holly
redevelopment project. As of December 31, 2011 the Seattle Housing Authority receivable was
$480,855.
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Note 10 - Notes and Contracts Receivable (Continued)

Notes and contracts receivable are composed of the following as of December 31:

2011 2010
Seattle Housing Authority receivable $ 480,855 $ -
Water main assessments 457 4,038
Land sales receivable - 17,359
Total notes and contracts receivable 481,312 21,397
Due within one year (16,118) (21,228)
Total non-current notes and contracts receivable $ 465,194 $ 169

Note 11 - Commitments

The Fund is required by the Washington State Department of Health (“DOH”) to complete a program
to cover its open, above-ground distribution system reservoirs by the year 2020. The total cost of
burying five reservoirs is expected to be approximately $123.2 million through the year 2016; costs
beyond 2016 are not estimable as of the date of this report. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, total
cumulative costs incurred were $112.4 million and $111.5 million, respectively.

In 2011, Seattle signed new water supply contracts with eight wholesale customers whose contracts
were to expire January 31, 2011. Six of the customers signed full or partial requirements contracts
that are very similar to the full and partial requirements contracts already in place with the majority
of the Fund’s wholesale customers. These new full and partial requirements contracts do not change
Seattle’s obligation to supply water. All eight of these new contracts expire December 31, 2062.

Note 12 - Hydrant Settlement

A class action lawsuit against the Fund alleged that fire hydrant costs were improperly paid by the
Fund’s ratepayers and sought refund of such costs. The Fund settled the lawsuit and was ordered to
refund ratepayers and to collect hydrant charges from the City. At the settlement date, the Fund
recorded a liability of $16.2 million for refunds to ratepayers and a $14.3 million receivable due from
the City in reimbursements. As of December 31, 2010, the Fund processed $13.5 million for refunds
that were received per the terms of the settlement. Of the total estimated liability, $2.7 million was
not claimed by ratepayers and was recorded as other non-operating revenue of the Fund.

The Fund had $6.8 million of deferred costs related to the settlement, which represented a surcharge

collected from ratepayers to cover these costs. As of December 31, 2010, the deferred costs were
fully amortized.
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Note 13 - Habitat Conservation Program Liability

SPU has prepared a comprehensive environmental management plan for its Cedar River Watershed.
The purpose of the Habitat Conservation Plan (“HCP”) is to protect all species of concern that may be
affected by the operations of SPU and SCL in the Cedar River Watershed, while allowing the City to
continue to provide high quality drinking water to the region. The federal government has accepted
the HCP. The total cost of implementing the HCP is expected to be $101.6 million (in 2011 dollars)
over a period of 50 years (from the year 2000 through the year 2050).

Expenditures are being funded from a combination of the Fund’s operating revenues and issuance of
revenue bonds. The total amount expended for the HCP through 2011 is $81.2 million. The remaining
$20.4 million to complete the HCP is comprised of a $5.0 million liability and an estimate of
$15.4 million for construction and operating commitments. The construction activities will add to the
Fund’s capital assets and the operating activities are mainly research, monitoring, and maintenance of
the HCP program that will be expensed as incurred.
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SEATTLE PUBLIC UTILITIES - WATER FUND
(An Enterprise Fund of the City of Seattle)
SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION

Water System Operating Statistics

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

Population Served

Retail 642,385 649,286 658,951 664,458 669,654

Wholesale™ 609,613 616,592 621,606 628,536 634,193
Total Population Served 1,251,998 1,265,878 1,280,557 1,292,994 1,303,847
Water Sales Revenues ($000)(2)(3)

Retail $102,334 $106,689 $130,272 $136,443 $137,382

Wholesale $41,558 $42,884 $48,454 $45,073 $44,050
Total Water Sales Revenues $143,892 $149,573 $178,726 $181,516 $181,432
Billed Water Consumption (MG)B)

Retail 21,311 20,599 20,956 19,868 19,305

Wholesale 22,741 22,255 23,554 20,437 20,922
Total Billed Water Use 44,052 42,854 44,510 40,305 40,227
Operating Costs ($ per MG)™® $3,143 $3,423 $3,679 $4,075 $3,842
Gallons Used per Day per Capita 96 93 95 85 85
Retail Meters in Use 185,272 187,032 188,102 188,332 188,754
Number of New Retail Meters 1696 1760 1070 230 422
Total Water Diversions (MGD) 125.9 125.1 129.5 118.4 117.9

Non-Revenue 5.2 8.0 7.5 8.0 7.7

% Non-Revenue 4.1 6.4 5.8 6.7 6.5

@)

(2)

(3

4

This is the estimated total population served by SPU’s water supply. As some Wholesale Customers obtain
some or all of their water from sources other than SPU, this number is less than the total population shown in
the shaded areas on the map on the inside front cover.

Revenues represent payments from customers for service provided at published rates in each year. Revenues
shown are not net of transfers to the Rate Stabilization Account or other credits or deferrals of income.

Revenue increases have been a result of increases in rates, as retail consumption has steadily decreased due
largely to conservation efforts. Variations in billed water use are primarily associated with year-to-year
variations in temperature and precipitation in the summer irrigation period. There has been no change in the
geographic area served or any appreciable change in the number or composition of retail customers.

The increases in per unit operating costs in 2009 and 2010 are due in part to a temporary increase in the

City’s utility tax rate and increased amortization expense, both due to Lane v. City of Seattle. See “Litigation
and Claims.”
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Major Retail Water Customers - 2010 Annual Revenues and Volumes

The Water System’s ten largest retail water users in 2011 were the University of Washington, City of Seattle,
Port of Seattle, Seattle Housing Authority, Seattle Steam Company, Todd Shipyards, Nucor Steel Seattle,
Seattle Public Schools, and Swedish Medical Center. In the aggregate, revenue from these customers was less
than nine percent of billed direct service.
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Water Rates - Effective January 1, 2012

Direct Service Wholesale
RATE SCHEDULES Inside City Outside City City of Shoreline/City of Lake Forest Park
Residential MMRD* Gen Svc Fire Service | Residential MMRD* Gen Svc Fire Service| Residential MMRD* Gen Svc Fire Service| Full and Partial
Commodity Charge ($/100 Cubic Feet)

Offpeak Usage (Sept 16-May 15) $4.04 $4.04 $4.04 $4.61 $4.61 $4.61 $4.90 $4.90 $4.90 $1.52
Peak Usage (May 16-Sept 15)
Up to 5 ccf** $4.34 $4.34 $5.15 $4.95 $4.95 $5.87 $5.26 $5.26 $6.25 $2.26
Next 13 ccf** $5.15 $5.15 $5.15 $5.87 $5.87 $5.87 $6.25 $6.25 $6.25 $2.26
Over 18 ccf** $11.80 $11.80 $5.15 $13.45 $13.45 $5.87 $14.31 $14.31 $6.25 $2.26
Usage over base allowance $20.00 $22.80 $24.30 $22.00
Utility Credit ($/month) $16.97 $10.14 $16.97 $10.14 $16.97 $10.14

New Srvc Fee

Base Service Charge ($/month/meter) (One Time)
3/4 inch and less $13.25 $13.25 $15.10 $15.10 $16.05 $16.05 $483
1inch $13.65 $13.65 $15.55 $15.55 $16.55 $16.55 $1,566
1-1/2 inch $21.05 $21.05 $21.05 $24.00 $24.00  $24.00 $25.55 $25.55  $25.55 $3,915
2 inch $23.35 $23.35 $23.35 $15.40 $26.60 $26.60  $26.60 $18.00 $28.30 $28.30  $28.30 $19.00 $6,264
3 inch $86.35 $86.35 $86.35 $20.00 $98.45 $98.45  $98.45 $23.00 $104.70 $104.70 $104.70 $24.00 $17,226
4 inch $123.75  $123.75 $123.75 $37.00 $141.10 $141.10 $141.10 $42.00 $150.10 $150.10 $150.10 $45.00 $24,273
6 inch $152.30  $152.30 $63.00 $173.60 $173.60 $72.00 $184.70 $184.70 $76.00 $51,678
8 inch $199.00  $199.00 $100.00 $227.00 $227.00 $114.00 $241.00 $241.00 $121.00 $87,696
10 inch $297.00  $297.00 $144.00 $339.00 $339.00 $164.00 $360.00 $360.00 $175.00 $132,327
12 inch $402.00  $402.00 $210.00 $458.00 $458.00 $239.00 $488.00 $488.00 $255.00 $186,354
16 inch $477.00  $477.00 $544.00 $544.00 $579.00 $579.00 $186,354
20 inch $614.00 $614.00 $700.00 $700.00 $745.00 $745.00 $186,354
24 inch $771.00  $771.00 $879.00  $879.00 $935.00  $935.00 $186,354

* Master Metered Residential Development
** per residence
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DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC INFORMATION

Seattle is the largest city in the Pacific Northwest, serves as the County seat and is the center of the County’s
economic activity. King County is the largest county in the State in population, number of cities and
employment, and the fourteenth most populated county in the United States. Of the State’s population, nearly
30% reside in King County, and of the County’s population, 32% live in the City of Seattle.

Population

Historical and current population figures for the State of Washington, the County, the two largest cities in the
County, and the unincorporated areas of the County are given below.

POPULATION
King Unincorporated
Year Washington County Seattle Bellevue King County
1980 @ 4,130,163 1,269,749 493,846 73,903 503,100
1990 @ 4,866,692 1,507,319 516,259 86,874 NA
2000 @ 5,894,121 1,737,034 563,374 109,827 349,773
2001 @ 5,974,900 1,758,300 568,100 111,500 353,579
2002 @ 6,041,700 1,774,300 570,800 117,000 351,675
2003 @ 6,098,300 1,779,300 571,900 116,400 351,843
2004 @ 6,167,800 1,788,300 572,600 116,500 356,795
2005 @ 6,256,400 1,808,300 573,000 115,500 364,498
2006 @ 6,375,600 1,835,300 578,700 117,000 367,070
2007 @ 6,488,800 1,861,300 586,200 118,100 368,255
2008 @ 6,587,600 1,884,200 592,800 119,200 341,150
2009 @ 6,668,200 1,909,300 602,000 120,600 343,180
2010@ 6,733,250 1,933,400 612,000 122,900 343,340
2011@ 6,767,900 1,942,600 612,100 123,400 285,265

(1) Source: U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Census
(2) Source: State of Washington, Office of Financial Management
Per Capita Income

The following table presents per capita personal income for the Seattle Primary Metropolitan Statistical Area
(“PMSA”), the County, the State, and the United States.

PER CAPITA INCOME
2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
Seattle PMSA $ 50,202 $ 53,327 $ 54,621 $51,118 $51,698 N/A
King County 54,641 57,735 58,628 54,517 55,136 N/A
State of Washington 39,570 42,192 44,106 41,837 42,589 44,294
United States 37,725 39,506 40,947 38,846 39,937 41,663

Source:  U.S. Bureau of Economic Analysis, U.S. Department of Commerce
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Construction

The table below lists the value of housing construction for which building permits have been issued by entities
within the City of Seattle. The value of public construction is not included in this table.

CITY OF SEATTLE
RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMIT VALUES

New Single Family Units New Multi-Family Units
Year Number Value($) Number Value($) Total Value($)
2005 533 94,398,888 3,185 278,146,082 372,544,970
2006 482 90,534,640 5,538 597,085,138 687,619,778
2007 775 153,268,586 5,939 681,283,338 834,551,924
2008 595 122,997,326 4,256 562,871,753 685,869,079
2009 216 47,666,932 562 67,880,407 115,547,339
2010 241 53,269,934 2,456 192,261,935 245,531,869
2011 316 71,808,767 2,857 376,591,834 448,400,601
Source:  U.S. Bureau of the Census
Retail Activity

The following table presents taxable retail sales in Seattle and King County.

THE CITY OF SEATTLE AND KING COUNTY
TAXABLE RETAIL SALES (000)

Year King County Seattle

Source:

2005 $ 40,498,328,830 §$ 14,236,200,469
2006 43,993,478,514 15,564,363,159
2007 47,766,338,768 17,030,512,254
2008 45,711,920,389 17,096,581,492
2009 39,594,903,520 15,101,407,742
2010 39,275,353,182 14,783,168,934
2011 40,846,119,020 15,751,585,858

Washington State Department of Revenue
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Industry and Employment

The following table presents State-wide employment data in 2010 for certain major employers in the Puget
Sound area.

PUGET SOUND AREA

MAJOR EMPLOYERS
Employer Employees*
The Boeing Company 76,400
U.S. Army Fort Lewis 51,000
Navy Region Northwest 41,300
Microsoft 40,300
University of Washington 27,900
Providence Health & Services 19,100
‘Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. 18,000
Fred Meyer Stores 13,500
King County Government 13,400
U.S. Postal Service 12,400
City of Seattle 10,700
MultiCare Health System 9,000
Franciscan Health System 8,200
Costco 8,200
Group Health Cooperative 8,100

*  Excludes part-time or seasonal employment figures.

Source:  Puget Sound Book of Lists, 2012 (rounded)

D-5



KING COUNTY

RESIDENT CIVILIAN LABOR FORCE AND EMPLOYMENT
AND NONAGRICULTURAL WAGE AND SALARY EMPLOYMENT*

Civilian Labor Force
Total Employment
Total Unemployment
Percent of Labor Force

NAICS INDUSTRY

Total Nonfarm

Total Private

Goods Producing
Natural Resources and Mining
Construction
Manufacturing

Services Providing
Trade, Transportation, and Utilities
Information
Financial Activities
Professional and Business Services
Educational and Health Services
Leisure and Hospitality
Other Services
Government

Workers in Labor/Management Disputes

Civilian Labor Force
Total Employment
Total Unemployment
Percent of Labor Force

*  Columns may not add to totals due to rounding.
Source:  Washington State Employment Security Department

Annual Average
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2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
1,071,850 1,094,310 1,115,900 1,107,060 1,105,550
1,030,140 1,042,790 1,021,540 1,006,000 1,015,970

41,710 51,520 94,360 101,060 89,580
3.9 4.7 8.5 9.1 8.1

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011
1,156,242 1,133,200 1,151,950 1,217,567 1,200,600

991,450 966,233 984,750 1,051,158 1,037,175

149,983 148,158 160,442 186,475 188,358

500 467 508 583 692
48,792 49,675 57,142 73,883 74,525

100,717 98,017 102,792 112,000 113,133
1,006,258 985,042 991,508 1,031,092 1,012,242

212,233 206,350 209,175 224,667 224,392

80,050 79,408 80,192 79,767 75,642
67,292 67,658 71,192 77,525 78,683

184,592 176,675 176,792 194,242 189,925

142,908 138,142 137,683 133,258 127,683

112,133 108,700 108,117 113,358 111,750

42,258 41,142 41,158 41,867 40,742

164,792 166,967 167,200 166,408 163,425

0 0 0 958 0
Mar. 2012
1,108,310
1,029,730
78,590
7.1%
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BOOK-ENTRY TRANSFER SYSTEM

The following information has been provided by the Depository Trust Company (“DTC”). The City makes no
representation as to the accuracy or completeness thereof. Purchasers of the Bonds (the “beneficial owners”) should confirm
the following with DTC or its participants (the “Participants”).

The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), New York, NY, will act as securities depository for the Bonds. The
Bonds will be issued as fully-registered securities registered in the name of Cede & Co. (DTC’s partnership
nominee) or such other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-
registered Bond certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Bonds, each in the aggregate principal
amount of such maturity, and will be deposited with DTC.

DTC, the world’s largest securities depository, is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New
York Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member
of the Federal Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform
Commercial Code, and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 3.5 million issues of U.S.
and non-U.S. equity issues, corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments (from over
100 countries) that DTC'’s participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-
trade settlement among Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities,
through electronic computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This
eliminates the need for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and
non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other
organizations. DTC is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation
(“DTCC”). DTCC is the holding company for DTC, National Securities Clearing Corporation and Fixed
Income Clearing Corporation, all of which are registered clearing agencies. DTCC is owned by the users of its
regulated subsidiaries. Access to the DTC system is also available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S.
securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, and clearing corporations that clear through or maintain
a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, either directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants™). DTC
has a Standard & Poor’s rating of AA+. The DTC Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the
Securities and Exchange Commission. More information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com.

Purchases of Bonds under the DTC system must be made by or through Direct Participants, which will receive
a credit for the Bonds on DTC’s records. The ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond
(“Beneficial Owner”) is in turn to be recorded on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial
Owners will not receive written confirmation from DTC of their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however,
expected to receive written confirmations providing details of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of
their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the
transaction. Transfers of ownership interests in the Bonds are to be accomplished by entries made on the books
of Direct and Indirect Participants acting on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive
certificates representing their ownership interests in Bonds, except in the event that use of the book-entry
system for the Bonds is discontinued.

To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Bonds deposited by Direct Participants with DTC are registered in the
name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by an authorized
representative of DTC. The deposit of Bonds with DTC and their registration in the name of Cede & Co. or
such other DTC nominee do not effect any change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the
actual Beneficial Owners of the Bonds; DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to
whose accounts such Bonds are credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and
Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers.

Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct Participants to
Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners will be
governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be in effect
from time to time. Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to take certain steps to augment the transmission to
them of notices of significant events with respect to the Bonds, such as redemptions, tenders, defaults, and
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proposed amendments to the Bond documents. For example, Beneficial Owners of Bonds may wish to
ascertain that the nominee holding the Bonds for their benefit has agreed to obtain and transmit notices to
Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to provide their names and addresses to the
registrar and request that copies of notices be provided directly to them.

Redemption notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Bonds within a maturity are being redeemed,
DTC'’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be
redeemed.

Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. will consent or vote with respect to Bonds unless authorized by a Direct
Participant in accordance with DTC’s MMI Procedures. Under its usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus
Proxy to the City as soon as possible after the record date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s
consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to whose accounts Bonds are credited on the record
date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus Proxy).

Payments on the Bonds will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an
authorized representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s
receipt of funds and corresponding detail information from the City or Bond Registrar, on payable date in
accordance with their respective holdings shown on DTC’s records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial
Owners will be governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held
for the accounts of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of
such Participant and not of DTC, the Bond Registrar, or the City, subject to any statutory or regulatory
requirements as may be in effect from time to time. Payments to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may
be requested by an authorized representative of DTC) are the responsibility of the City or the Bond Registrar,
disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants will be the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of
such payments to the Beneficial Owners will be the responsibility of Direct and Indirect Participants.

DTC may discontinue providing its services as depository with respect to the Bonds at any time by giving
reasonable notice to the City or the Bond Registrar. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor
depository is not obtained, Bond certificates are required to be printed and delivered.

The following information has been provided by the City.

The City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a
successor securities depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be printed and delivered to DTC.

The information in this appendix concerning DTC and DTC’s book-entry system has been obtained from
sources the City believes to be reliable, but the City takes no responsibility for the accuracy thereof.

The Bond Registrar is not obligated to exchange or transfer any Bond during the 15 days preceding any
principal or interest payment or redemption date.

The City and the Bond Registrar may treat DTC (or its nominee) as the sole and exclusive registered owner of
the Bonds registered in such name for the purposes of payment of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest
with respect to those Bonds, selecting Bonds or portions thereof to be redeemed, giving any notice permitted or
required to be given to registered owners of Bonds under the Bond Legislation, registering the transfer of
Bonds, obtaining any consent or other action to be taken by registered owners of Bonds, and for all other
purposes whatsoever; and the City and the Bond Registrar shall not be affected by any notice to the contrary.
The City and the Bond Registrar shall not have any responsibility or obligation to any direct or indirect DTC
participant, any person claiming a beneficial ownership interest in the Bonds under or through DTC or any
such participant, or any other person which is not shown on the Bond Register as being a registered owner of
Bonds, with respect to: (i) the Bonds; (ii) any records maintained by DTC or any such participant; (iii) the
payment by DTC or such participant of any amount in respect of the principal of, premium, if any, or interest
with respect to the Bonds; (iv) any notice which is permitted or required to be given to registered owners of
Bonds under the Bond Legislation; (v) the selection by DTC or any such participant of any person to receive
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payment in the event of a partial redemption of the Bonds; or (vi) any consent given or other action taken by
DTC as registered owner of the Bonds.
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